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JAIN SONS FINLEASE LIMI

CiN: UBS910TGI998PLEOEEE41; RBI Reg. No.: B-09.00441

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty-First Annual General Meeting of Jain Sons Finlease Limited will
be held on Thursday, 09-May-2019 at 1ST 11:30 AM at the Registered Office of the company situated
at Babukhan's Millenium Centre, 4th Floor, Block-B, Premises No. 403 & 404 {6-3-1099/1100),
Somajiguda Hyderabad -500082, Telangana, india to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. Adoption of Audited Financial Accounts for the financial year ended 31-Mar-2019:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Accounts of the Company for the financial
year ended 31-Mar-2019 together with the reports of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. Re-appointment of Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Nominee Directors of the company, who
retires by rotation:

To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran {DIN: 01983108}, who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Aleem Remtula, Nominee Director of the company, who retires by
rotation:

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Aleem Remtula (DIN: 02872107), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. Confirmation and ratification of the appointment of Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP (having Firm
Registration Number: 001076N}, Statutory Auditors and fixing of their remuneration:

To ratify the appointment of Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (having Firm
Registration Number: 001076N) as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for the FY2013-20 &
FY2020-21 and to authorise Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director or Mrs, Kiran Agarwal
Todi, Chief Financial Officer of the Company to fix the remuneration. The Companies Amendment
Act, 2017 has removed the requirement of annual ratification once the auditors have been
appointed for five years w.e.f. 07-May-2018. The provisions with respect to annual ratification
has been removed from Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules as well.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. Regularisation of appointment of Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sirtha, Additional Director of the Company
as Director:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification{s) meﬁt—ili ing resolution as
. . “E\ £
an Ordinary Resolution: oo
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the pravisions of Section 152, 160, 196, 197 & 203 read with
Schedule V and. all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appointment and qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and such other applicable
provisions, rules as may be applicable {including statutory modification{s} or re-enactment(s}
thereof for the time being in force)} and any other law for the time being in force, and in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and based on recommendation of
members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and Board of Directors
of the Company held on 30-Oct-2018. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha {(holding DIN: 08268336), whose
term of office as an Additional Director, expires at this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby
appointed as Director of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Chairman or Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director of
the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this
resclution.”

Approval for Re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Rewari as an iIndependent Director for another
term of five years

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {“Act”) and the Companies {Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 {“Rules”) read with Schedule IV to Act and other applicable
provisions of Act and Rules and other rules made pursuant to Act (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and any other law for the
time being in force, if applicable and based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board and Board of Directors of the Company approval of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Rewari (holding DIN:
00286853), Independent Director of the Company, whose first term of 5 consecutive years is
expiring on 28-Sep-2019 and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for
independence as prescribed under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and who s eligible
for re-appointment for second term under the Act and rules made thereunder, be and is hereby
considered and approved as an Independent Director of the Company for a second term of 5
consecutive years on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 29-Sep-2019 till 28-Sep-2024 and whose
term shall not be subject to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director or Ms. Kiran Agarwal
Todi, Chief Financial Officer or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby severally authorised to file necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all
such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary in order to give eff/t‘::t\\! hove resolution.”
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7. Agproval for revision in remuneration payable to Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Pirector
of the Campany:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197 & 203 read with Schedule V and
all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company revision in remuneration payable to Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha,
Managing Director of the Company far the remaining period of his tenure w.e.f. 01- Apr-2019 as
detailed below table be and is hereby approved:

SI,No.| ©  Particulars i " . Composition .-

1 |Fixed Salary Rs.1,20,00,000/-

2 Performance lfinked variable pay | 50% of Fixed Pay

3 Mediclaim coverage As per rules of the Company’s scheme
4 Leave Encashment As per rules of the Company’s scheme
5 Provident Fund As per rules of the Company’s scheme
a Gratuity As per rules of the Company’s scheme
7 Other perguisites As per rules of the Campany’s scheme

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year
during the currency of tenure of service of Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, as a Managing Director of
the Company, the payment of salary, perguisites and other allowances as approved by this
resolution shall be payable as minimum remuneration.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Chairman or Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director of
the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to enter into an agreement /fissue a letter
for appointment and increase in remuneration and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to the
above resolution.”

8. Authorisation to the Board of Directors to mortgage, create charge on all or any of the assets
of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the;faitowmg resolution as

a Special Resolution: 4 \: el
.-1.; {0\
8 \\'"SLQT- 4
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10.

“RESOLVED THAT consent of the Members of the company be and is hereby accorded pursuant
to provisions of section 180(1){a) and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 to the Board of Directors of the company to pledge, mortgage and/for charge in all orany
part of the moveable or immovable properties of the Company and the whole or part of the
undertaking of the Company of every nature and kind whatsoever and/or creating a floating
charge in all or any movable or immaovable properties of the Company and the whole of the
undertaking of the Company to or in favour of Banks, Financial Institutions, any other lenders or
debenture trustees to secure the amount borrowed by the Company or any third party from time
to time for the due payment of the Principal together with interest, charges, costs, expenses and
all other monies payable by the Company or any third party in respect of such borrowings
provided that the maximum extent of the indebtedness secured by the properties of the
Company does not exceed INR 1000,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Thousand Crore only) at any
time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director or Mrs. Kiran Agarwal
Todi or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to do such acts, deeds, things and execute all such documents, undertakings as may
be necessary for giving effect to the above resolution.”

Borrowing Limits under section 180{1) {c) of the Companies Act, 2013

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification{s} the following resolution as
a Special Resoiution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 180(1}{c) and other applicable provisions if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, consent of the Members of the comparny be and is hereby accorded to the
Board of Directars of the Company to raise or borrow from time to time such sum or sums as they
may deem appropriate for the purposes of the Company notwithstanding that the monies atready
borrowed and the monies to be borrowed ({apart from temporary loans obtained from
Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business} will exceed the paid-up capital of the
Company and free reserves not set apart for any specific purpose provided that the total amount
upto which monies may be borrowed by the Board of Directors shall not exceed INR
1000,00,00,000/- {Indian Rupees One Thousand Crore Only) at any time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director or Mrs. Kiran Agarwal
Todi, Chief Financial Officer or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby severally authorized to do such acts, deeds, things and execute all such documents,
undertakings as may be necessary for giving effect to the above resolution.”

Approval for shifting of Registered Office from the State of Telangana to the State of
Maharashtra and alteration of clause H of Memorandum of Association of the Company:

a Special Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 12, 13 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 30 of the Companies {Incorporation) Rules, 2014
and any other applicable rules thereon (including any statutory modification thereta or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force}, RBI guidelines issued from time to time and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the regulations/guidelines, if any,
prescribed by any relevant autharities from time to time, to the extent applicable and subject to
approval of the Regional Director, Hyderahad or of applicable jurisdiction, Registrar of Companies,
Hyderabad, Reserve Bank of India, Hyderabad and such other approval as required from
regulatory authoritylies) and approval of Board Directors in the meeting held on 08-May-2019,
consent of the Members of the company be and is hereby accorded to shift the registered office
of the Company from Babukhan’s Millenium Centre, 4™ Floor, Block-B, Premises No. 403 and 404
{6-3-1095/1100), Somajiguda, Hyderabad — 500082, Telangana, India to 128, 3 Floor,
Techniplex-H IT Park, Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregagn {West), Mumbai —~ 400062,
Maharashtra, India.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon shifting of the registered office, the existing clause Il of the
Memorandum of Assaciation of the Company be and is hereby substituted as below:

Il. The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the State of Maharashtra.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director or Mrs. Kiran Agarwal
Todji, Chief Financial Officer or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the Company, be and are
hereby severafly authorised, to neminate/authorise someone to appear, represent and make
such statement, furnish such information and do such things, as may be required on behalf of
the Company in the matter of the petition before the office of Regional Director for seeking
confirmation for the proposed alteration of the registered office clause of the Merorandum
of Association of the Company and also authorised to appoint any Consultant, Practicing Company
Secretary, Advocate/Attorney or any other professionals as may be required from fime to time
basis and to fix their remuneration/fee and to sign, execute and deliver the petition, applicatian,
affidavits, undertakings and such other documents including but not limited to filing of e-forms
with the concerned Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this
resotution.”

Approval for modification of clause, pertaining to common seal, in Articles of Association of
the Company:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s} the following resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 9, 14 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable rules thergon, as amended from time to
time, the Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered by deletion of
following clauses of the Articles of Associations of the Company whic_fh;a\tjéﬁfj_ﬁ@&_t{nder:

P Tl
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Sl. | Clause No. ' . Particulars

1 9.1 The certificate of title to shares shall be issued under the Seal of the
Company.

2 24.1 The Board shall provide for the safe custody of the Seal and the Seal

{Article shall never be used except by the authority of the Director or a

XXiv) Committee of the Board previously given and one Director at least shall

sign every instrument bearing the Seal of the Company and issued for
valuable consideration shall be binding on the Company
notwithstanding any irregularity touching the authority of the Board to
issue the same.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director or Mrs. Kiran Agarwal
Todi or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to file all the necessary forms and other necessary documents as may be required by
the statutory authorities including the Registrar of Companies (ROC) and to do such acts, deeds
and things that may be required for the purpose of alteration of Articles of Association of the
Company that may be suggested by the Registrar of Companies or such other statutory
authorities in the implementation of the aforesaid resolutions and to authorize such person or
persons 1o give effect to the above resolutions and to submit all documents to the concerned
authorities with regard to the same and to take all the necessary steps in this regard.”

Approval of Debt Raising Agreement to be entered with Intellecap Advisory Services Private
Limited:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s} the following resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and any other applicable provisions, if any of the
Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and rules made thereunder, consent of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into Debt
Raising Agreement with Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited, a Company in which Mr.
Vineet Chandra Rai, Chairman of the Company is interested as a Shareholder in the said Intellecap
Advisory Services Private Limited, in order to raise debt/loan from various lender{s} or Investor{s)
to expand business of the Company, on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed
between the Company and Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the draft copy of “Debt Ra:smg Agreement” as placed before the

approved.




RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director or Ms. Kiran Agarwal Todi,
Chief Financial Officer or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorised to negotiate, finalise and to sign, execute and detiver such documents as may
be required from time to time and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

~ »/ Chirag Desai
“===Company Secretary
(Membership No.: A22880}

S

Mumbai, 08-May-2019

Registered Office:

Babukhan's Millenium Centre, 4th Floor,

Block-8, Premises No. 403 & 404 {6-3-1099/1100},
Somajiguda Hyderabad -500082, Telangana, India
CIN: UE5910TG1998PLCORE941



Notes:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
special business is annexed hereto and forms part of this notice.

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote instead of himself or herself and the proxy need not be a member of the company.

3. Proxies in order to be effective should be duly completed, stamped and signed and must be
deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 24 hours before the time for
holding the Annual General Meeting.

4. Corporate Members are requested to send duly certified copy of Board Resclution pursuant to
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 authorising their representative to attend and vote at
the Annuatl General Meeting of the company.

5. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the statement are open for
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the company during work hours upto the
date of Meeting.

6. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts and operations, are requested
to write to the company to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the
meeting.

7. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify immediately any change in
their address to the company.

8. The Register of Directors” and Key Managerial Personnel’'s Shareholdings maintained under
Section 170 and Register of Contract or Arrangements in which Director are interested under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the
company during work hours upto the date of Meeting.
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JAIN SONS FINLEASE LIMITED

CIN: UBSS10TG1S08PLC088841; RBI Reg. No.: B-08.00441

Explanatory Statement
{Pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013}

As required by section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 {Act], the foHowing explanatory statement sets
out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under item Nos. 5 to 12 of the accompanying
Notice:

kem No. 5 — Regularisation of appointment of Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Additional Director of the
Company as Director

Based on the recommendation of the Members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Board of Directors in its Board Meeting held on 30-Oct-2018 has appointed Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha
as an Additional Director of the Company

Further, pursuant to the provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha
holds office as Additional Director of the Company upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and
approval of the Members of the Company is required for regularisation of Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha as
Director of the Company.

Brief Profile of Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha is as follows:

Mir. Nikesh Kurnar Sinha has rich experience of 24 years of global banking experience across business-
branch banking and prior to joining the Company he was positioned as the Head of Medium
Enterprises Group (MEG) since 2014. He was one of the key personnel that made the SME pitch to
Bain Capital during their diligence process for their investment process. He has pursued his post-
graduation diploma in Forestry Management from Indian Institute of Forest Management, Bhopal.

Further, Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha is not disqualified from being appointed as director in terms of
Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to as Director of the company.

The Board of Directors recommend the Ordinary Resolution respectively as set out at item no. 5 of the
notice for approval of the Members.

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha is not holding any Directorship in other listed company and any shares in this
company. Except, Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, being appointee, none of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel of the company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Item No. 8 ~ To consider and recommend the re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Rewari as an
Independent Birector for another term of five years

The Company had in its meeting of the Board of Directors held on 25-Aug-2014 and Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 29-Sep-2014, appointed Mr. Rakesh Rewari as an Independent
Director of the Company for a period of 5 consecutive years starting from 29-5ep-2014 upto 28-Sep-
2019. Mr. Rakesh Rewari will complete his initial term as an Independent Director of the Company on
28-Sep-2019.

11
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Based on the performance evaluation done by the Board for Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director
of the Company and considering his knowledge, experience, skills and contribution made by him in
the development of the Company in last 5 years and based on the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Commitiee of the Board, the Board of Directors here by recommend to the
Shareholders the re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Rewari as an Independent Director of the Company,
whose term shal not be liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for a second term of 5
consecutive years on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 29-Sep-2019 till 28-Sep-2024 in terms of Sectian
149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act’}.

The Board is of the view that the continued association of Mr. Rakesh Rewari would benefit the
Company, given the knowledge, experience and performance of Mr. Rakesh Rewart, and contribution
to Board processes by him.

The Company has aiso received declaration from Mr. Rakesh Rewari, being eligible for re-appointment
as an Independent Director for the second term providing his consent in writing to act as Director in
Form DIR-2 and also declaration stating that he meets with the criteria of independence as mentioned
in Section 149(6} of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution respectively as set out at item no. 6 of the
notice for approval of the Members.

Except, Mr. Rakesh Rewari, being appointee, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the
company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said Resolution.

Hem No. 7 — Revision in remuneration of Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director of the
Company:

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha was appointed an Executive Director & CEQ in the Board Meeting hetd on 30-
Oct-2018 of the Company and was further re-designated as Managing Director in Board Meeting held
on 22-Jan-2019 with the same terms and conditions and at such remuneration as decided by the Board
of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 30-Oct-2018.

ivir. Nikesh Kumar Sinha has rich experience of 24 years of global banking experience across business-
branch banking and prior to joining the Company he was positioned as the Head of Medium
Enterprises Group (MEG)} since 2014. He has pursued his post-graduation diploma in Forestry
Management from [ndian institute of Forest Management, Bhopal.’

Considering his contribution made in the development of the Company and considering his

knowledge, experience and skills and bases upon recommendation of the Members of Nomination

and Remuneration Committee of the Board, it is proposed to revise the remuneration payable to Mr.

Nikesit Kumar Sinha, Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. Ol-Apr-Z{%?ﬁgQremaining tenure

of his appointment, subject to approval of the members of the company},é:' ‘ﬁ‘ﬁgn:g herein below:
o

Noheor g o
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Sl No. | Particulars

Composition

1 Fixed Salary Rs.1,20,00,000/-

2z Performance linked variable pay 50% of Fixed Pay

3 Mediclaim coverage As per rules of the Company’s scheme
4 Leave Encashment As per rules of the Company’s scheme
5 Provident Fund As per rules of the Company's scheme
6 Gratuity As per rules of the Cornpany’s scheme
7 Other perguisites As per rules of the Company’s scheme

The above remuneration is to be paid as minimum remuneration in the absence or inadequacy of
profits, subject to the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution respectively as set out at item no. 7 of the
notice for approval of the Members.

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha is not holding any Directorship in other listed company and any shares in this
company. Except, Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, being appointee, none of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel of the company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Additional Information for ltem No. 7:

The details as required Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, are given below:

1. General Information:

1 Nature of Industry The company is engaged in the business of
lending or advancing money either with or
without security and to arrange and negotiate
loan.

2 Date or expected date of commencement | The company is an existing company and is in

of commercial production operation since 1998
3 in case of new companies, expected date | Not Applicable
of commencement of activities as per
project approved by financial institutions
appearing in the prospectus
4 Financial performance based on given | As on 31-Mar-2019:
indicators EPS (basic): Rs.2.06 per share
EPS (diluted}: Rs.1.29 per share
Total Revenues: Rs.61,36,91,000/-
Profit After Tax: Rs.2,45,07,000/-
5 Foreign investments or collaborations, if | Rs 10,00,00,000/- by Michael and Susan Dell
any Foundation;
Rs 40,00,00,015.04/- by ON Mauritius
Rs 24,45,42,515.40/- by DWM (International)
Mauritius Limited
Rs. 12,22,71,257.70/- Triodos SICAV i Triodos
Micrafinance Fund
Rs. 12,22,71,257.70/- Triondos Custody B.V. INZ.
Triodos Fair Share Fund.z ... . .




11. information about the appointeea:

1 Background details Mr. Nikesh Kurnar Sinha has a rich experience
of 24 years of global banking experience across
business-branch banking and prior to joining
the Company he was positioned as the Head of
Medium Enterprises Group (MEG) since 2014.
He was one of the key personnel that made the
SME pitch to Bain Capital during their diligence
process for their investment process.

He has pursued his post-graduation diploma in
Forestry Management from Indian Institute of
Forest Management, Bhopal.

2 Past Remuneration Rs.1,77,50,095 {inclusive of perquisites)

3 Recognition or awards Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha is having good
experience in the industry in which the
Company operates.

4 Job profile and his suitably He is actively involved in the business of the
Company and manages day to day business
activities. He is also responsible for new
business development of the Company. Taking
into consideration his expertise, he is well
suited for the responsibilities currently
assigned to him by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

5 Remuneration proposed Fixed Salary: Rs. 1,20,00,000/-

Performance linked variable pay: upto 50% of
the fixed amount

6 Comparative remuneration profile with | At par with the industry standards in which the

respect to industry, size of the company, | company operates
profile of the position and person (in case
of expatriates the relevant details would
be with respect to the country of his
origin)
7 Pecuniary  relationship  directly  or | No relationship with any promoter, directors or
indirectly with the company, or | other managerial personnel.
relationship  with the managerial
personnel, if any
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1. Other information:

1 Reasons of loss or inadequate profits Not Applicable
2 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for | Not Applicable
improvement

3 Expected increase in productivity and | Nat Applicable
profits in measurable

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution respectively as set out at item no. 7 of the
notice for approval of the Members.

Except, Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, being appointee, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

ftem No. 8 & 9 — Authorisation to the Board of Directors to mortgage, create charge on all or any of
the assets of the company and Borrowing Limits under sections 180{1){a} and 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013:

In order to meet the future requirements of funds, which may arise on account of the
plans/programs/business, the company may require further loans/borrowings from time to time from
the financial institutions, banks and other entities. Further, to secure such borrowings, the company
may be required to create charge/mortgage/hypothecation on all or any of its movable and/or
immovable assets, both present and future as may be required from time to time.

In terms of the provisions of Section 180{1)(c) &180(1){a} of the Companies Act, 2013, the company
needs to take approval of Members of the company for increasing the borrowing powers and authority
to create charge / mortgage on the assets of the company to secure the money(ies) borrowed from
the financial institutions, banks and other financiat entities from time to time.

Considering the substantial growth in business and operations of the Company, present and future
requirements, as per the financial plan approved by the Board on 02-Mar-2017, it is proposed to
increase the borrowing limits upto INR 1000,00,00,000/- {indian Rupees One Thousand Crore only).

The Board of Directors hereby recommends the Special Resolutions as set out at item nos. 8 & 9 of
the notice for approval of the Members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the company or their relatives are concerned or

il

interested in the said resolution.
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Item No. 10 — Approval for shifting of Registered Office from the State of Telangana to the State of
Maharashtra and alteration of clause 1l of Memorandum of Association of the Company:

At present, the Company’s registered office is situated at Babukhan’s Millenium Centre, 4th Ficor,
Block-B, Premises No. 403 and 404 {6-3-1099/1100), Somajiguda, Hyderabad — 500082, Telangana,
India. However, the Coampany is mainly operating from its corporate office i.e. 12B, 3rd Floar,
Techniplex-1l IT Park, Off. Veer Savarkar flyover, Goregaon West, Mumbai — 400062, Maharashtra,
Indis. Hence, in order to carry out the business more economically, efficiently and with better
operational convenience, the Board of Directors has approved the said proposal in its Meeting held on 08-
May-2019 subject to approval of shareholders for shifting the registered office from Hyderabad, Telangana to
Mumbai, Maharashtra.

Further, as per the provisions of Section 12 and Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 a Special
Resolution is required to be passed if the Registered Office of the Company is shifted outside the local
timits of any city, town or village requires approval of Shareholders and tonseguent alteration of
Memorandum of Association of the Company is proposed to be substituted as given below:

iI. The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the State of Maharashtra.

The proposed resolutions are in the interest of the Company and your Directors recommends Special
Resolution at item no. 10 for your approval.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of directors and KMP are
concerned or interested in the Special Resolution at item No. 10 of the accompanying Notice.

The proposed draft Memarandum of Association of the Company is available for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during Business days between i.e. 3.30 a.m. te 6.00 p.m. excluding
Saturdays till the conclusion of the General meeting. The aforesaid document and will also be made
available for inspection at the General Meeting,

Item No. 11 - Approval for modification of clause, pertaining to common seal, in Articles of
Association of the Company:

Pursuant to the Companies Amendment Act, 2015, use of Comman Seal has now become optional for
Companies. Further, our Company, being Non-Banking Financial Company has to execute various
agreements, documents, etc. towards its business maiters including for borrowing proposals and
other administrative necessities. In view of the same and to facilitate administrative convenience for
execution of such documents on behalf of the Company it is proposed to alter the existing Articles of
Association (“AOA”} of the Company by deleting the related clauses in AQA.

The proposed resolution is in the interest of the Company and your Directors recommends Special
Resolutign at item no. 11 for your approval.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel {KMP) or relatweyoﬁ‘dma'ﬁg \and KMP are
concerned or interested in the Special Resolution at ltem No. 11 of the L/\:tf Hotice.
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The proposed draft Articles of Association of the Company is available for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Company during Business days between i.e. 09.30 a.m. to 06.00 p.m. till the canclusion
of the General meeting. The aforesaid document and will also be made available far inspection at the
General Meeting.

1tem No. 12 - Approval of Debt Raising Agreement to be entered with Intellecap Adviscry Services
Private Limited:

The Companies Act, 2013 aims to ensure transparency in the transactions and dealings between the
related parties of the Company. The provisions of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, which
governs the Related Party Transactions, and it reguires that for entering into any contract or
arrangement as mentioned herein below with the related party, the Company must obtain prior
approval of the Board of Directors and in case if the Company meet the criteria as mentioned in the
Companies {Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, prior approval of the shareholders by way
of a Resolutian must be obtained:

Sale, purchase ar supply of any goods or materials;

Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;

Leasing of property of any kind;

Availing or rendering of any services;

Appointment of any agent for purchases or sale of goods, materials, services or property;

Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in the company, its subsidiary
company or associate company and

7. Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the Company.

G\Ui:hWNI—‘

In the light of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of your Company in their
meeting held on 08-May-2019, had approved the Debt Raising Agreement, to be entered into with
Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited.

The particulars of the transaction pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as under:

“Sk-Noz: Patticulat _ “i - DebtRaising Agreement
1 Name of the Related Party Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited
2 Name of the Director or Key Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai
Managerial Personnel who is
related, if any
3 Nature of Relationship Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Chairman is interested as a
Shareholder in the said Intellecap Advisory Services Private
Limited
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4 Nature, Material Terms,
Monetary value and
particulars of the contract or

Intellecap shall be paid a fee equal fo 0.65% (plus
applicable taxes) of the amount procured for Fund Raising
for the Company.

relevant or important for the
members to take a decision
on the proposed resolution

arrangement

Incremental fee at .5% will be applicable on any
additional limits sanctioned by the same lender within a
period of 1 year from the date of execution of this
mandate.

The mandate is valid till period of 1 year from the date of
axecution of this Offer letter.

5 Any other Information As mentioned in Debt Raising Agreement.

The members are further informed that no member/s of the Company being a related party or having
any interest in the resolution as set out at item No. 12 shall be entitled to vote on this special
resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends the special resolution set forth in item No. 12 for approval of the
Members.

Except the said interested Director, no other director or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives,
is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in passing of this resolution.

TN
By Orde; Q}fgﬁl&f axd of Directors
,f-'rC)‘f oy
i

Company Secretary
(Membership No.: A22880}

Mumbai, 08-May-2019

Registered Office:

Babukhan's Millenium Centre,

4™ Floor, Block-B, Premises No. 403 & 404 (6-3-1099/1100),
Somajiguda Hyderabad -500082,

Tefangana, India

CIN; U65910TG1998PLCO8R94 L
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Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19({3) of the Companies

CinN:
Name of the Company:
Registered Office:

{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

U65910TG1998PLC0O88941

Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Babukhan's Millenium Centre, 4" Fioor, Block-B, Premises No. 403
8 404 {6-3-1099/1100), Somajiguda Hyderabad -500082,
Telangana, India

Name of the Member(s):

Registered address:

E-mail id:

Folic No/ Client id:

BPI1D: N.A.

i/We, being the member (s} of

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:

shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint

SIENATUNE: o ccee e v e, OF failing him

2. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:

Signature:....cooeeeeeeeeeeen, 01 failing him

3. Naihe:
Address:
E-mail 1d:

SIENATUTE e s

as my/our proxy to attend and vote {on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the company, to be held on Thursday, 09-May-2019 at 11:30 a.m. at Babukhan's Millenium
Centre, 4th Fioor, Block-B, Premises No. 403 & 404 {6-3-1099/1100}, Somajiguda Hyderabad -500082,




Sl. No. | Resolutions

1 Adoption of Audited Financial Accounts for the financial year ended 31-Mar-2019

2 Re-appointment of Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Nominee Directors of the company,
who retires by rotation

3 Re-appointment of Mr. Aleem Remtula, Nominee Director of the company, who retires by
rotation

4 Confirmation and ratification of the re-appointment of Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP {(having
Firm Registration Number: 001076N), Statutory Auditors and fixing of their remuneration:

5 Regularisation of appointment of Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Additional Director of the
Company as Director

6 Approval for Re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Rewari as an Independent Director for
another term of five years

7 Approval for revision in remuneration payable to Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing
Director of the Company

8 Authorisation to the Board of Directors to mortgage, create charge on all or any of the
assets of the Company

9 Borrowing Limits under section 180{1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013

10 Approval for shifting of Registered Office from the State of Telangana to the State of
Maharashtra and alteration of clause Il of Memorandum of Association of the Company

11 Approval for modification of clause, pertaining to common seal, in Articles of Association
of the Company

12 Approval of Debt Raising Agreement to be entered with Intellecap Advisory Services
Private Limited

Signed this _____ day of 2019
Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Shareholder:

Signature of Proxy holder{s): {1}

{2)

(3)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the company, not fess than 24 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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JAIN SONS FINLEASE LSMITED

CIN: U65910TG1998PLC0O88941
Registered office: Babukhan's Millenium Centre, 4" Fioor, Block-B, Premises No. 403 & 404
{6-3-1099/1100), Somajiguda Hyderabad -500082, Telangana, India
Tel: 91-40-4030 0200; Fax: 91-40-4030 0275; Website: www.intellegrow.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Name of the Meamber(s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:
Falio No/ Client 1d:

DP ID: N.A.

I/we hereby certify that |/we am/are a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder
of the company and hereby record my/our presence at 21* Annual General Meeting of the company
being held on Thursday, 09-May-2019 at 11:30 am at the registered office of the company at
Babukhan's Millenium Centre, 4% Floor, Block-B, Premises No. 403 & 404 {6-3-1099/1100}, Somajiguda
Hyderabad -500082, Telangana, India.

Member's/Proxy’s name in Block Letters Member's/Proxy’s Signature

21




Route Map

. L e MAHREUVPALL
BALAJL ENCLAVE Q) Hoselat Jah - it e
wrond " Batkamset Yellamrhn Gk - -
2a5 o Bnchni:\rh Tomphs Q c Tl Extrama Theatre: Yashoda 1i; -'Atm'i.
Gevemamen Grneral Bakampl palamia - ¥ il ;eﬁ; 3::‘., *
763 Chost oSOt gy - frichamtng e : o

Lextra lat Gocd
i Governancd

e,

S DI

BEGUMPET
a_a”:\:d‘

.Q.

4

“Krighm -
agaw “Hesth Park ¢ Secunderabad.
e Hatinnzt Institie fo7 g 3 . o S e L]
* Mizm, smalland . -:-t-‘_ AMEERPET . m_ﬂ o el rS0 gﬂwé "
' L bl b’ Qi - ' :
ts YOUSUFGUDA e :
o e e W R 8 .
3 ] Garnwal inemes G batkion -
. S Loty Wgin g ; .
te B 91";““""111 L‘v:v.emme"'n' AHDIGLD.
o mmma M auR Cinainan @ “Dfiges Tovwer @ e
M ;| K, CINepiex ros 1o )
Hational P ) 2 el Q The Bretrolase Gaiy et q}

e -fest - L
yHEREased
Srer SITE-3
PERTU-T.
HAKHAPET

sihn,

mrgevivea.

sebal qu&hreraSeq
’ . Bolice Siztica
iy
! . Gastoenterelagy i;im
- BANJARA HILLS: [ - Bl gk y
’ ““‘;‘:" Triargane Nats.. Q
A : .
CARS Hosmmgia -
Earara Wi, Hygevatad § AZAMABAD

e lin el

Fliget ey

<]

Birlz Mt

Cetre lar T ettt

“Saarthya ToM G
Higratieen tdedizine - :

22



JAIN SONS FINLEASE LIMITED

CIn: UB5910TG1998PLC088247: RB! Rer. No.* B-09.00441

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To the Members of Jain Sons Finlease Limited {IntelleGrow},

Your Directors are hereby presenting their Twenty First {21} Annual Report of the Company together
with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31-Mar-2019:

1. Financial Results:
The financial performance of your Company for the year ended 31-Mar-2019 are summarised as
below:

Current Year ended Current. Year ended.
- 31-Mar-2019 {inRs.)  31-Mar-2018 {in Rs.)

Revenue from Business Operations 54,47,53,000 49,59,20,820
Other Income 6,89,38,000 5,04,60,052
Totzal Revenues 61,26,81,000 54,63,80,872
Less: Expensas 27,75,31,000 41,88,86,780
Prefit before Interest and Degpreciation 33,61,60,000 12,64,84,092
Less: Interest 31,74,60,000 31,84,87,271
Erofit before Depreciation 1,87,00,000 {19,20,03,179)
Lass: Depreciation 56,72,293 33,18,952
Profit after Depreciation and Interest 1,30,27,707 {19,53,22,131)
Less: Current Income Tax 56,08,129 -
Less: Defarred tax benefits (1,14,79,267) 42,61,182
Less: Tax ¢f earlier years - -
Met Profit after Tax 1,88,58,845 {19,95,83,313)
Amount transferred to Statutory Reserve 39,68,757 -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 1,49,30,088 -
Earnings per share {Basic) 1.61 (18.12)
Earnings per share (Diluted) 0.75 (18.12)

2. Transfer to Reserves:

During the year under review, the Company has transferred Rs. 39,68,757/- (Rupees Thirty-Nine Lakhs
Sixty-Eight Thiousand Seven Hundred and Filty-Seven Only) to the Statutory Reserve maintained under
Section 451C of the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) Act, 1934.

3. Dividend:

During the year under review, your Directors have pieasure in informing that the Company has made
a Net Profit of Rs.1,88,58,845/-. However, since the distributable profits, after considering losses of
previous financial year, available for deciaration of dividend are not sufficient enough, your Directors
are not recommending for declaration of any dividend to any of its shareholders.

4, Review of Business Operations and Future Prospects:

tntelleGrow continues to spot deserving Ventures and support their growth funding with team’s ability

to structure deals. intelleGrow mainly focusses on small-corporates in their early-stages of growth.

Much before startups became a buzzword] IntelleGrow has been funding the early-stage businesses. =

The Company focus on ventures which would not get debt from traditional sources. The Indian earl z;é?}ﬂi@qb

stage ecosystem has been starved of quality debt providers who could offer cash-flow based lendi 6’ «
N

intelleGrow pioneered this concept with an impact thesis.

During the year under review, the Company has disbursed Rs.327cr. fresh (Rs.598cr gross including
rollovers) as compared to Rs.305cr. fresh (Rs.342cr. gross including rolovers) in previous financia)_‘x -zf_rg,__,_
7N Sy
o5 g
Regd. Office : Babukhan's Millenium Centre, 4" Fioor, Block-8, Premises No. 403 & 404 (6-3-1099/1100; 8! 1 Mg
Somajiguda, Hyderabad — 500082, Telangana, India, Tel: +81-40-4030 0200, Fax: +81-46-4030 0275 \\ oy
Mumbai Office : 128, 37 Flor, Techniplex-l IT Park, Off. Veer Savarkar £ lyover, Goregaon (W), Mumbai - 400062 Mah %

. oy

J: +9 2 Qp'm“m%a?f’}

Tel: +91-22-6249 2700, Fax; +91-22-6249 2787 wf & -
www.intellegrow.com N
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Fy18, showing a YoY growth of 7%. This has resulted In increase in Portfolio Outstanding (POS)
Rs.379cr. as compared to Rs.317¢r. in previous financial year FY17, showing a growth of 20%,

Buring the financial year under review, revenue of the Company has also grown up by 11%, while the
operating expense ratio has came down o 4.3%. The focus of the Company for the financial year
ending 31-Mar-2020, shall be to increase the granularity of Loan book by SME client acquisition and
disbursement growth.

5. Resource Mohitization:
During the year under review, the Company met its funding requirements through the following:

a. Non-Convertibie Debentures:

During the year under review, your Company has successfully completed the issue of 150 Secured,
Rated, Unlisted, Redeemahte, Non-Convertible Debentures of Face Value of Rs.10,00,000/- (Rupess
Ten Lakhs only) through private pfacement basis. Your Directors are thankful to the investor who have
subscribed and shown their trust towards your Company.

h. Bank & Financial Institution:

buring the year under review, Financial Institution remains an important source of funding for your
Company. Financial Institution continued their support to your Company during the Financial Year. As
of 31-Mar-2018, borrowing from Bank and Financial Institutions were Rs.2,24,29,12,558/- as against
Rs.2,46,61,58,357/- in the previous year.

6. Shares:
a. Buy back of securities:
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

b. Sweat Equity:
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review,

c. Bonus Shares:
Ne Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

d. Emplocyees Stock Option plan:

During the year under review, the Company had in its meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Company heild on 30-0ct-2018 and in its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders held on
30-0ct-2018, approved the “IntelleGrow Employee Stock Option Plan 2018” {intelleGrow ESOP 2018)
with a view to reward the key employees for their association, dedication and contribution to the
goals of the Company. The Company also intends to use this plan to attract, retain and motivate key
talents working with the Company by way of rewarding their performance and motivate them to
contribute to the overail corporate growth and profitability; and thereby increasing the shareholders’
value. The total number of equity shares to be allotted pursuant to IntelleGrow ESQP 2018 to the
employees of the Company and its subsidiary{ies} if any, not exceeding 7,27,068 equity shares. The
details of the IntelleGrow ESOP 2018 forms part of the Notes to Accounts of the financial statements
of FY2019.

During the year under review, the Company has granted stock options under Intel[g.ﬁéﬁﬁalﬁ_Sb?._ZDlB

sy

to the following key employees: (\J
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~Grant”
1. 22-Jan- | Mr. Mikesh | 1,25,000 87.18 | 125,000 Stock Options | As per

2019 Kumar Sinha will be vested in the | IntelleGrow -
following manner: Embloyee Stock

a. 41,667 Stock | Option Plan -

Options on and | 2018 and subject

from 22-Jan-2020; | to SEBI

b. 41,667 Stock | Regulation  as

Options on and | and when it is
from 22-1an-2021; | made applicable
41,666 Stock :

Options on and
from 22-}an-2022

0

2. 22-lan~ § Mr. Nikesh [ 1,25,000 10.00 | 125,000 Stock Options | As per
12019 Kumar Sinha : will be vested in the | IntelleGrow -
following manner: Employee Stock

a. 41,667 Stock | Option Plan -

Options on and | 2018 and subject

from 22-Jan-2020; | to SEB!

b. 41,667 Stock | Reguiation  as

Options on and | and when it is
from 22-}an-2021; | made appiicable
c. 41,666 Stock
Options on and
from 22-lan-2022

3. 22-lan- | Ms. Kiran 25,000 87.18 | 25,000 Stock Options | As per
2019 Agarwal Todi will be vested in the | intelleGrow -~
following manner: Employee Stock

a. 8,334 Stock | Option Plan -~

Options on and | 2018 and subject

from 22-]Jan-2020; | to SEB}

b, 8,333 Stock_ Regulatioh as

Options on and | and when it is
from 22-fan-2021; | made applicable
c. 8,333 Stock
Options on and
from 22-Jan-2022

e. Private Placement:;

During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted Equity Shares to Aavishkaar
Venture Management Services Private Limited on 26-Feb-2019 on private placement basis:
3/ 5. - Name & Occupation of I -~ - Numberof.

Management
Private Limited
Occupation: Business

Services | Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon {West),
Mumbai — 400062

Total
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f. Rightlssue:

The Company has issued and allotted 26,27,724 Series D Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 77.18/- on right issue basis on 09-Apr-2018 to the following
allottees:

Name & Occupationof ... -~ :Address of the Allottees . . Numberof .
U Allottees L o A e sharés altotted
i. | Aavishkaar Venture | 13B Il 6w Floor, Techniplex-1H1T Park, Off Veer - 11,487,052
Management Services | Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon {W), Mumbai
Private Limited A00062
Gccupation: Business
2. | DWM (International) | Suites 340-345, Barkly Wharf, Le Caudan 7,40,336
Mauritius Limited Waterfront, P. O. Box 1070, Port Louis,
Occupation: Business Republic of Mauritius
3. | Triodos SICAV l-Triodos | 11-13 Boulevard De La Foire, 1L — 1528, 3,70,168
Microfinance Fund Luxembotrg
Occupation: Business .
4. | Triodos Custody B.V. INZ. | Utrechtseweg 60, 3704 HE CZeist, The 3,70,168
Triodos Fair Share Fund Netherlands
Qccupation: Business
Total 26,27,724

g. Cenversion of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares into Equity Shares:

in the Board Meeting heid an 22-Mar-2019, the Company has approved the conversion of Series B1
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) and Series B2, CCPS into Equity Shares at
conversion price of Rs.52.25/-. Details of the same are mentioned herein below:

Namé & Occupation of Allottees .. Class of CCPS No.of CCPS  No. of Equity
R T N L SR ST ' Shares .
ON Mauritius ' Series B1 24,99,948 47,84,585
Qccupation: Business
2. | DWM (International) Mauritius Limited Series B2 1,50,000 2,87,081
Qccupation: Business
3. | Triodos Custody B.V. INZ. Triodos Fair Series B2 75,000 1,43,540
Share Fund
Occupation: Business
4. | Triodos SICAV Il — Triodos Microfinance Series B2 75,000 1,43,540
Fund
Total 27,99,948 53,58,750

h. Authorised Share Capital:
During the year under review, the Company had increased its Authorised Share Cap
which are mentioned herein below:

JAs
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(&)

Revised Capital (inRs.) -~
Numberof  Face . -~ Nominal
Shares  Value = Value {in RS.) -

Particulars ~ .

Number.of -

" ‘Shares

Equity Shr
Capital

2,60,00,000

26,00,00,000

4,14,00,000

10

41.40,00,000

Compulsority
Convertible
Preference
Share Capital

20,00,000

4,00,00,000

20,060,000

20

4,00,00,000

Series B1
Compulsorily
Convertible
Preference
Share Capital

25,00,000

100

25,00,00,000

25,00,000

100

25,00,00,000

Series B2
Compuisorily
Convertible
Preference
Share Capital

3,00,000

100

3,00,00,000

3,00,000

100

3,00,00,000

Sertes C
Compulsorily
Canvertible
Preference
Share Capital

60,00,000

10

6,00,00,000

60,00,000

10

6,00,00,000

Series D
Compulsorily
Convertible
Preterence
Share Capital

56,00,000

10

5,60,00,000

56,00,000

10

5,60,00,000

| Total

4,24,00,000

69,60,00,000

5,78,00,000

£5,00,00,000

g. Paid-up share Capital:

In view of the above said allotments and conver.
up share capital of the Company is Rs.30,61,4
Thousand Three Hundred and Seventy Only)
Thirty-Six Thousand Four Hundred and Forty-Seven) Equity Shares of R
58,49,966 (Fifty-Eight Lakhs Forty-Nine Thousand Nine Hundr
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- {Rupees Ten only)
Twenty-Seven Thousand Seven Hundred and Twenty-Four

Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

7. Change in Constitutional Documents:

During the year under review, the Company had amen
special resolution in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Comp &5
to accommodate the provisions of Addendum Agreement No.l to Amendéd ;and Restaféd” P
Shareholders Agreement executed on 27-Mar-2018 between th 3

ed and Sixty
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sion of CCPS into equity shares, as on date, the paid-
1,370/- (Rupees Thirty Crores Sixty-
divided into 2,21,36,447 (Two Crores Twenty-One Lakhs

One Lakhs Forty-One

s. 10/- (Rupees Ten anly};
-Six) Series C Compulsorily
each and 26,27,724 (Twenty-Six Lakhs
} Series D Compulsorily Convertible

ded its Articles of Association by way of passing
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Further, your Directors recommends modification of clause pertaining to Common Seal in Articles of
Assoication of the Company in order to facilitate administrative convenience for execution of various
agreements, documents, etc. on hehalf of the Company, subject to approval of the shareholders in
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. '

The Memorandum of Association of the Company was amended by way of passing an ordinary
resolution in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 30-Oct-2018 by way of
increasing Authorised Share Capital of the Company from Rs.69,60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Nine Crores
and Sixty Lakhs Only) to Rs.85,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighty Five Crores Only) in order to meetits growth
objectives and to strengthen its financial position.

Further, your Directors recommends shifting of Registered Office of the Company from the State of
Yelangana to the State of Maharashtra and accordingly recommends to alter Clause N0 of
temorandum of Association of the Company, subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

8. Shifting of Registered Office:

During the year under review, Registerad Office of the Company has been shifted within Jocal limits
of City i.e. from “1002, 10th Floor, A Block, The Platina, Gachibowli, Hyderabad — 500032, Telangana,
India” to “Babukhan’s Millenium Centre, 4th Floor, Block-B, Premises No. 403 and 404 (6-3-
1099/1100), Somajiguda, Hyderabad — 500082, Telangana, India” w.e.f. 20-Mar-2015.

further, in order 1o carry out the business more economically, efficiently and with better operational
convenience, your Directors recommends shifting of Registered Office of the Company from the State
of Telangana to the Siate of Maharashtra i.e. “Babukhan’s Millenium Centre, 4th Floor, Block-B,
premises No. 403 and 404 (6-3-1099/1100}, Somajiguda, Hyderabad — 500082, Telangana, india” to its
corporate office i.e. 128, 3" Floor, Techniplex-li {T Park, Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon West,
Mumbai — 400062, Maharashtra, india, subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

9. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

a. Retirement by Rotation:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) read with
Companies {Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the
Company, Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran (DIN: 01983108}, Nominee Director and Mr. Aleem Remtula
{DIN: 02872107), Nominee Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment and your Directors
recommends their re-appointment.

b. Cessation of Directors:

During the year under review, Mr. Akbar Khan, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer {CEO) of
the Company has resigned from the post of Executive Director w.e.f. 01-May-2018 and Mr. John
Arunkumar Diaz, Managing Director of the Company has resigned from the close of working hours of
04-Dec-2018.

The Board places on record their sincere appreciation of the valuable contribution made: bv_-M__r_. Akig Y

Khan as an Executive Director and Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz as a Managing Dirgdtpﬁ--df’fﬁé' C@mqugx} o

during their tenure in the Company. froy: L "(i ) B
oo N
\l\ S g * Q,.;,'"
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c. Appointment of Directors:

During the year under review, upon recommendation of the Members of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board, the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed
Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz, Additional {Managing) Director for a period of 1 Year w.e.f. 24-Apr-2018.

Further, the Company had in its 0% Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 25-Apr-2018
regularised the appointment of Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz as a Managing Director and Mr. Sarunas
Kubilickas as a Nominee Director of the Company.

The Company had in its meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on 30-0ct-2013
appointed Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sintha, CEQ as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 30-0ct-2018,
subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has
received notices under section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director of
the Company. Your Directors recommends his appointment. Further, in the Board Meeting held on
23-}an-2019, Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha has been re-designated as a Managing Director of the Company.

Based on the performance evaluation done by the Board for Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director

-of the Company and considering his knowledge, experience, skills and contribution made by him in
the development of the Company in last 5 years and based on the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board and subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, your Directors recommends re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Rewari, as an
Independent Director of the Company, whose term shall not be liable to retire by rotation and to hotd
office for a second term of 5 consecutive years on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 29-Sep-2019 till
28-Sep-2024.

pursuant to the “Fit and Proper” criteria adopted by the Company under the RBI's Master Directions
for NBFCs, the Company has received the “Fit and Proper” declarations from Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz
as a Managing Director,Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director and Mr. Rakesh Rewari,
Independent Director of the Company.

d. Composition of Board:
As on date, the Board is comprised of 9 (nine} Directors viz:

1. Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai - Chairman

2. Mr. Rakesh Rewari - Independent Director
3. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy - \ndependent Director
4. Mr. Pradeep Pursnani - MNominee Director

5. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran - Nominee Director

6. Mr. Aleem Remtula - Nominee Director

7. WMr. Sarunas Kubilickas - Mominee Director

8. Mr. Anurag Agrawal - Director

g. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha - Managing Director

¢. Declaration from Independent Directors:
The Company has received declarations from Mr. Rakesh Rewari and Ms. Bha__r_r{\a;._',‘l(r_iShna_murthy,f

independent Directors of the Company, confirming that they meet the criterig of independence g AT
stipulated in Section 149{6} of the Act. iy 8 !
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f. Disqualification of Directors:

The Company has received declarations from all the Directors including Independent Directors of the
Company confirming that they are not disqualified on account of non-compliance with any of the
provisions of the Act and as stipulated in Section 164 of the Act.

g. Annual Performance evaluation of the Board:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own
performance, the Directors individually {including Chairman). The feedback of the Independent
Directors on their review of the performance of Non-independent Directors and the Board as whole,
the performance of the Chairman of the Company was made based on the questionnaire to evaluate
the performances of executive, Non-Executive Directors. The evaluation framework for assessing the
performance of Directors comprised of the following key areas:

i, Structure and Composition of Board;

ii. Corporate Culture;

ili. Board Effectiveness;

iv. Board Information;

v. Board functioning;

vi. Performance Evaluation

h. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):
During the year under review, following changes occurred in the Key Manageria! Personnel of the
Company:

& = S 1) H e B = L) 4 p ate o E e Lrate o
1. Mr. Akbar Khan Executive Director - 01-May-2018
2, Mir. John Arunkumar Diaz | Managing Director 24-Apr-20i8 05-Dec-2018
3. Mir. Nitin Agrawal Chief Financial Officer - 24-May-2018
4, Mr. Akbar Khan Chief Executive Officer - 16-Jun-2018
5. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha Chief Executive Officer 16-0Oct-2018 -
6. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha Additional {Executive) 30-0ct-2018 -

Director
7. Ms. Kiran Agarwal Todi Chief Financial Officer 02-}an-2019 -
8. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha Managing Director 22-Jan-2019 - |

10.Managerial Remuneration and sther details:

The necessary details/disclosures of Ratio of Remuneration to each Director to the median employee’s
remuneration and other details pursuant to the Section 197{12) of the Act and as per Rule 5 of the
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed as
Annexure-A with this report.

11.Policy on Directors’ appointment, payment of remuneration and discharge of their duties:
The Company’s policy relfating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration,
Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as
provided under Section 178{3} of the Act and the ‘fit and proper’ criteria to be adopted at the time of
appointment of Directors and on a continuing basis, pursuant to the Non- Banking Financial
Companies (NBFC) — Corporate Governance: (Reserve Bank) Directions 2015 isg_ué",d bythe RBI i§,
annexed as Annexure-B with this report. The Nomination and Remuneration Polifi_:_-j(.-’jcdhsiétih:g‘-—%_al't nt

features is available on the Company’s website at www.intellegrow.com. !E_;
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12. Corporate Governance:
The report on the Corporate Governance of the Company as on 31-Mar-2019 be and is hereby
annexed as Annexure-C to this report.

13.Number of Board Meetings conducted during the year under review:

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company’s/ business policy and strategy
apart from other Board business. A tentative annual calendar of the Board and Committee Meelings
of the Company is placed in the Board Meeting at the end of each financial year to facilitate the
Directors to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful participation in the meetings. However, in
case of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s approval is taken by passing resolutions
through circulation, as permitted by law, which are confirmed and noted in the subsequent Board
meeting.

The agenda for the Board and Committee meetings includes detailed notes on the items to be
discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take an informed decision. The intervening gap
between the two consecutive meetings was within the period as prescribed under the Act.

The Board met 6 {six} times during the year, the details of which are as given below:
"sl ate of Board - Venue of the Board Meeting Name of Director’s Present

1. | 09-Apr-2018 | 12B, 3" Floor, Techniplex-1l IT Park,
Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon
{West), Mumbai -~ 400062,

Maharashtra, India

Mr. Rakesh Rewari
Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
Mr. Anurag Agrawal

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
Mr. Aleem Remtula

M. Sarunas Kubilickas

Mr. Akbar Khan

2. 24-Apr-2018 | 128, 3" Floor, Techniplex-ll IT Park,
Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon
{west}, Mumbai ~ 400062,
Maharashtra, India

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai

Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
Mr. Anurag Agrawal

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
Mr. Aleem Remtula

Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas

tr. Akbar Khan

Mr. lohn Arunkumar Diaz

3. 18-Jul-2018 | 128, 3™ Floor, Techniplex-11 [T Park,
Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon
(West), Mumbai — 400062,
Maharashtra, india

Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
Mr. Anurag Agrawal

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas

Mr. Aleem Remtula

Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz

a. 30-Oct-2018 | 12B, 3™ Floor, Techniplex-ll IT Park,
Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon
(West), Mumbai ~ 400062,
Maharashtra, India

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai
Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
Mr. Anurag Agrawal

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandra
Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas
Mr. John Arunkumar:Diaz

F Mo npwNP N AeNElomNe AW NRING G A E N e

Mr. Nikesh Kurnar Sinha
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22-Jan-2019

128, 3 Floor, Techniplex-il IT Park,
Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon
(West), Mumbai - 400062,
Maharashtra, india

Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
Mr. Pradeep Purstani

Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas
Mr. Anurag Agrawal

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha

6. 22-Mar-2019

128, 3 Fleor, Techniplex-I1 IT Park,
Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon
(West), Mumbai - 400062,
Maharashtra, India

Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
Mr. Anurag Agrawal

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran

Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas
Mr. Aleem Remtula
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sintha

i
2
3.
4.
5
6.

1.
2
3
4
5.
G
7

|

14, Committees of the Board:

During the year under review, in accordance with the Act, the Board had re-constituted below
committees upon the appointment of Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz, Managing Director and resignation
of Mr. Akbar Khan, from the post of Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. 01-May-2018 and further
upan appointment of Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha as an Executive Director & CEO w.e f. 30-Oct-2018.

1. Corporate Governance & Executive Committee;

2. Product, Process, Credit Policy and Grievance Redressal Committee;
3. Asset Liability Management Committes;

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Further, with the resignation of Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz, Managing Director of the Company with
effect from close of working hours of 04-Dec-2018, the below committees again re-constituted:

1. Corporate Governance & Execuytive Committee;

2. Risk Committee;

3. Product, Pracess, Credit Policy and Grievance Redressal Committee;
4. Asset Liability Management Commitiee;

There are currently seven Committees of the Board, as mentioned herein below:
1. Audit and Compliance Committee;

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

3, Risk Committee;

4. Corporate Governance and Executive Commitiee;

5. Product, Process, Credit Policy and Grievance Redressal Committee;

6. Asset Liability Management Committee;

7. Corporate Social Respaonsibility Committee

The composition and number

of meetings held during the year under review of the above s ﬁ
committees are as under: RN

16
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sl Nameofthe - - Composition of Committees < -

- Numberof - Date of Meetings
- Meetings held " held during the .
during the FY 2019 FY 2019 -

.No. - :Commiittees .~

during the FY'2019 -, -
. w: oMeetings . -

1. | Audit and Mr. Rakesh Rewari 24-Apy-2018
Compliance Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 18-jul-2018
Committee Mr. Pradeep Pursnani 30-0Oct-2018

22-5an-2019
22-Mar-2019

2. | Nomination M. Rakesh Rewari 24-Apr-2018
and Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 18-Jul-2013
Remuneration | Mr. Pradeep Pursnani 30-0ct-2018
Committee Mr. Anurag Agrawal 22-1an-2019

3. | Asset Liability Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 24-Apr-2018
Management Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 18-Jul-2018
Committee Mr. Aleem Remtula 30-0ct-2018

Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas 22-Jan-2019
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha

4, | Product, Mr. Rakesh Rewari 22-Jan-2019
Pracess, Credit | Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
Policy and Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas
Grievance Mr. Aleermn Remtula
Redressal Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha
Commitieg

5. | Risk Mr. Rakesh Rewari 24-Apr-2018
Committee Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 18-1ul-2018

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 20-5ep-2018
Mr. Anurag Agrawal 30-Oct-2018
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha 22-lan-2019

6. | Corporate Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai 24-Apr-2018
Governance Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 18-Jul-2018
and Executive Mr. Anurag Agrawal 30-Oct-2018
Committee Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha 22-lan-2019

29-Mar-2019

7. | Corporate Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 24-Apr-2018
Social Mr. Pradeep Pursnani
Responsibility Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
Committee Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas

Mr. Aleem Remtula
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha

The Charters of the above said committees are annexed as Annexure-D with this Report.

15.Audit and Compliance Committee and is Comnposition:
As on 31-Mar-2019, Audit and Compliance Committee

1. Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director;
2. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy, Independent Director;
3. Mr. Pradeep Pursnani, Nominee Director

of the Board comprises of following memb

11
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Mr. Rakesh Rewari is the Chairman of Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board of the Company.
Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the Company, acts as Secretary of the Audit and Compliance
Committee. :

The Audit and Comphiance Committee of the Board reviews the reports, which are to be submitted
with the Board of Directors with respect to auditing and accounting matters. It also supervises the
Company’s internal control and financial reporting process. Further, ali'the recommendations made
by the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board have been taken up by the Board.

16.Risks Management and Areas of Concern:

The Company has laid down a well-defined Risk Management Policy covering the risk mapping, trend
analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. A detailed exercise is being
carried cut to identify, evaluate, manage and monitoring of both business and non-business risk. Risk
Committee of the Board constituted in accordance with the RBI guidelines has overall responsibility
for overseeing the Risk management activities of the Company. The Board periodically reviews the
risks and suggest steps to be taken to control and mitigate the same through a properly defined
framework.

As on 31-Mar-2019, the Risk Committee of the Board comprises of following members:

Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director;

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy, Independent Director;
Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Nominee Director;
Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director

LA

17.Corporate Social Responsibility:

As per Section 135 of the Act, your Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR)
Committee of the Board to support the Company in achieving the CSR objectives of the Company. As
on 31-Mar-2019, the CSR Committee of the Board comprises of following members:

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy, Independent Director;

Mr. Pradeep Pursnani, Nominee Director;

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Nominee Director;

Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas, Nominee Director;

Mir. Aleem Remtula, Nominee Director

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director

oW

CSR Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility
Palicy in fine with CSR activities as defined in Schedule Vil of the Act, which has been approved by the
Board. During the year under review, there were no changes in the said policy recommended by CSR
Committee and approved by the Board. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy consisting salient
features is available an the Company's website at www.intellegrow.com,.

since the average net profit for three preceding financial years i.e. FY2016-17, FY2017-18 and FYZ2018-

19 is below the thireshold limit, as specified in section 135 of the Act, your Company was not required . ':
to spend any amount towards CSR during the financial year under review. Accordingly, No CSR activity
R

was undertaken by the Company.

Further, the Report on CSR activities as required under the Companies (Cogppt‘a.t?é;_s_gt‘_':ia._!___Responsibili. :
policy) Rules, 2014, forming part of this Annual Report is hereby annexeffj_,“_a“':%,fAnnexur‘_'é.'
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18. IT Strategy Committee and its Composition:

As per RBI's master directions on Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector on 08-Jun-
2017, the Company has formed an IT Strategy Committee in the Meeting of the Board of Directars of
the Company held on 18-Jul-2018 to review and amend the IT strategies in line with Company’s various
policies and |T governance. As on 31-Mar-2019, IT Strategy Committee comprises of following
members:

1. Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director - Chairperson;
2. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Nominee Director - Chief Technology Officer (CTO);
3. Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz, Managing Director — Chief Information Officer {ClO}

Further, with the resignation of Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz, Managing Director and C10 of the Company,
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director has been appointed to hold the position as C10 of the
Company.

19.Independent Directors Meeting:

During the year under review, a meeting of Independent Directors was held on 22-5an-2019 as

required under the Act and in compliance of Schedule 1V of the Act. In the meeting, the following

issues were discussed in details:

« Reviewed the performance of the Chairman, Nominee Directors and the Board as whole;

s Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company
management and the Board as necessary for the Board to function effectively and perform their
duties.

20.Directors Responsibility Statement:

Your Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and

explanations obtained by them and as required under Section 134(3}{c) of the Act states that:

{a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

{b} the Directors had selected such accounting poticies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

{c} the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d} the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

{e} the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internat financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

{(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adeguate and operating effectively.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and

maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and

the reviews performed by management and the relevant board committees, including the Audit and- L

Compliance Committee, the board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal. financial controls ;
R A s

were adequate and effective during the FY 2018-19.

13
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21.Compliance on Secretarial Standards:

The Board of Directors of the Company have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions af all applicable Secretarial standards and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

22.Statutory Auditors:

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 26-May-2016 and Annual General
Meeting held on 26-May-2016, had appointed Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a tenure of 5 years till the conclusion of Twenty Third Annual
Genera! Meeting of the Company subject o ratification to the said appointment in every Annual
General Meeting of the Company. However, proviso to sub-section 1 of Section 139 of the Act
pertaining to ratification of the appointment of Statutory Auditor during their tenure of appointment
by the members of the Company at every annual general meeting has been omitted w.e.f. 07-May-
2018 by issuing the Companies {Amendment)} Act, 2017.

The notes to the accounts referred to in Auditors Report are self-explanatory. The Statutory Auditors’
Report on the financial statements for the financial year 2018-19 does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

23.Secretarial Audit Report:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M Baldeva
Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in practice, Mumbai to undertake the Secretarial Audit of
the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed and forming part of this report as an
Annexure-F,

24.Internal Auditor:

During the year under review, The Company had in its meeting of the Board of Directors held on 24-
Apr-2018 appointed M/s. Anujs. Sharma & Company, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, as its Internal
Auditor of the Company. Subseguent {0 the Meeting of Audit & Compliance Committee and Board
Meetings held on 24-Apr-2018, when the re-appointment of M/s. Anuj Sharma and Company as
internal Auditors for FY 2018-19 was approved, the Company had received resignation from Internal
Auditor siting reason of pre-occupation with some other assignments. in relation to the same, the
Company had in its meeting of the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board and Board Meeting
held on 18-lul-2018 had approved the resignation of M/s. Anuj Sharma and Company as an Internal
Auditor of the Company and in its place appointed KPMG to carry out internal audit for FY2018-18.

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates internal audit function, corrective action in their
respective areas and thereby strengthen the contrals and reports the same on monthly, quarterly and
haif yearly basis to the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board.

25.Explanation or comments on gualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made

by the Statutory Auditors and the Secretarial Auditor in their reports:
There were no gualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors or by,
Secretarial Auditor in their respective reports. However, following are. the __q_b_se;vations from t}}gﬂ R

Statutory Auditor and Secretarial Auditor: rg

W
- 4
R

14
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; Statutory[Secretarlai
~ Auditor’s Observation

¥ Management Response
Delav in filing of certain e- There was detay in submission of following forms with ROC:

forms with ROC S, | Particulars Response
a. | Delay in filing of e- | Requisite approvals from the
form MGT-14 Directors and Management are

taken well in advance while filing
is done post completion of the
whole transaction. Thus, in certain
cases there were lag in filings of e-
form MGT-14

2. | The composition of Board | The Company and Members of the Nomination Remuneration
of Directors is not in | are in search for the suitable candidate to induct another
comphiance  with  the | independent Director on the Board of the Company to take the
provisions of Section 149(4} | count to 3 Independent Directors.

of the Companies Act,
2013, the Company is
required to appoint one
mare Independent Director

3 | The Company has delayed | There was delay of 10-15 days in submission of following
in intimating to the stock | information or disclosure with BSE Limited under SEB! {LODR)
exchange regarding | Regulations 2015:

meeting of Board of || Particulars Response

Directors / Committee, at | | Delay in intimation to [ We contest this requirement,
which issue of non- || the stock exchange for | since the Non-Convertible
convertible debt securities | | the intimation of | Debentures {NCD), which were
was proposed to be || Meeting of Board of | proposed to be issued were ‘un-
considered as required || Directors in  which | listed’ and nat as ‘listed’. Further
under Regulation 50 (3} of | | issuance of Non- | the series of NCD, which were
SEBI {LODR) Regulations, | | Convertible Debentures | proposed to be issued are of new
2015. were proposed to be | class, having different terms and
considered. conditions as compared to our
existing class of NCD. However, as
a matter of good corporate
governance we have intimated to
Stock Exchange, about the
issuance of NCD.

26.Material changes and commitment if any affecting the financial position of the Comipany
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relate and the
date of the Report:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred

between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement refate on the date of this

report.

27.Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism:
The Company has a Vigil Mechanism to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The;
mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of DireCters and Empioyees
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who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit and
Compliance Committee of the Board in the exceptional cases. The Company also provides direct access
to the Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committee on reporting issues concerning the interests
of employees and the Company. Further, during the year review, the said policy was revised and
approved by the Board by way of passing a resolution in its Board meeting held on 24-Apr-2018, the
key change in the said policy is that the Vigilance Officer of the Company has been changed to Mr.
Anurag Agrawal, Director in place of Mr. Rajan Juneja, Head of Credit of the Company and rest of the
changes are presentational and not material.

We affirm that during the financial year 2018-19, no Employee or Directors was denied access to the
Audit and Compliance Committee. The Whistie Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism is available on the
Company’s website at www.intellegrow.com.

28.Fair Practice Code:

Your Company has in place a Fair Practice Code (FPC), which includes guidelines on the terms and
conditions relating to receipt of loan applications from prospective borrowers and processing thereof,
sanction, manitoring and recovery of loarns and other financial products being offered by it etc. FPC is
available on the Company’s website at www.intellegrow.com.

29.Know Your Customer (KYC) Guidelines & Anti-Money Laundering (AML} Policy:

The Company in the ordinary course of its business grants loans to various borrowers which comes
under the ambit of RBI. The Company is required to abide by the extant regulatory and statutory
norms relating to Know Your Customer and Anti Money Laundering. in view of the same, your
Company has in place KYC & AML Policy with an objective to prevent NBFCs being used, intentionally
or unintentionally by criminal elements for money laundering activities by way of making reasonable
efforts to determine the identity and beneficial ownership of accounts, source of funds, the nature of
customer’s business, reasonableness of operations in the account in relation to the customer’s
business, etc. which in turn helps the Company 1o manage its risk prudently. KYC & AML Policy is
available on the Company’s website at www.intellegrow.com.

30.Details of significant and material orders passecd by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future:

There was no significant or material order passed by any regulator or court or tribunal, which impacts

the going concern status of the Company or will have bearing on Company's operations in future.

31.Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The information as reguired under Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Campanies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conversation of energy, technology absorption is not applicable as
the Company is not carrying on any manufacturing activity during the year.

The particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review are as
under:

Particulars {In Indian Rupees)

2018-19 2017-18
Total Expenditure in Foreign Currency 6,44,258 5,90,886
Total Earnings in Foreign Currency 15,63,466 17,121,740

32 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or [nvestments made under Seciion 186 of the Act: e,
Pursuant to Section 186{11)(a) of the Act read with the Rule 11(2} of the Companies {Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and any amendment thereto from time, to: titne;.the loans made
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guarantee given or security provided in the ordinary course of business by a NBFC registered with RBI
are exempt from the applicability of provisions of Section 186 of the Act. Hence, particulars of the
loans and guarantee have not be disclosed in this report. The details of current investments and non-
current investments are furnished under Notes to Accounts of financial statements.

33. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties under Section 183 of the
Act:

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties pursuant to Section 188 of

the Act, in Form AOC-2 as prescribed under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to Accounts of

Companies under the Act as on 31-Mar-2019, is annexed as Annexure-G with this report.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company has
been uploaded on the website of the Company. The same is available on the company’s website at
www.intellegrow.com.

34.Extract of Annual Return:

The extracts of Annuat Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Act read with Rule 12 of
the Companies (Management and Administration} Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure-H with this
report,

35.Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Cormpanies:
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

36.Public Deposits:

Your Company is a non-depasit taking Company (NBFC-ND-S1}. During the year under review, the
Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 and 76 of the Act read with
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. The Company has passed a resolution for non-
acceptance of deposits from public.

37.Internal Control Systems:

The Company has an internal control system which is commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The Internal Auditor monitors the efficiency of the internal control
systems in the Company, compliance with operating systems/accounting procedures and policies of
the Company. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to Audit
and Compliance Committee of the Board.

38.Management Discussion and Analysis Report:
The detailed report on Management Discussion and Analysis is hereby annexed as Annexure-t with
this report.

39.Reporting under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act 2013:

The Company has constituted an Internal Compliant Committee under Section 4 of the Sexual

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the

year under review, no complaint was filed before the said Committee. 3

40.Credit Rating: L
CARE Ratings Limited, vide its Press Release dated 01-Apr-2019, has revised Outlook from ‘Negati@é’}é;.,_ _
to ‘Stable’ on account of demonstrated support by the promoter group Company i.e. Aavishkaar'=/

Venture Management Services Private Limited by way of infusion of capita_!‘-ﬂufing FY18 (refers to
TQNLE

F Y

'I_r..:_. - .
L
\ 723}

‘i‘,’f:,\\ .

17




JAIN SONS FINLEASE LHIVITED \(é iNTELLEGRO‘*N
Annual Report: 2018-2019 * CRTRIT T ML GEolwTH

period from April 01 to March 31} as well as current financial year, to make good the loss incurred in
FY18.

41.Capital Adequacy:
Your Company is well capitalized and has capital adequacy ratio of 38.13% as at 31-Mar-2019 as
against the minimum regufatory requirement of 15.00 % for non-deposit accepting NBFCs.

42 listing of Securities:
Non-convertible Debentures of the Company are listed on BSE Limited and your Company has paid
required listing fees to BSE Limited.

43.RBI Guidelines:

The Certificate of Registration was issued to the Company in January, 1999 vide registration no.
14.0145B by RBI, New Delhi. Later on, the Company has shifted its registered office from Hissar to
Hyderabad in the year 2013 and revised Certificate of Registration was issued to the Company in 2014
vide registration no. B-09.00441 by RBI, Hyderabad, to commence the business of a non-banking
financial institution without accepting deposits. Your Company has complied with and continues to
comply with all applicable regulations and directions issued by RB1 fram time to time.

44.Acknowledgements:

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, and
various Government Authorities including Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for their continued support
extended to your Companies activities during the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges
gratefully the shareholders for their support and confidence reposed on your Company.

Nik urdar Si
Chairman Managing Director
(DIN: 00606290} {DIN: 08268336)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08-May-2018
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Annexure-A
Disclosure on Managerial Remuneration and other details

The Information required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5{1) of the
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnet) Rules, 2014 are given below:

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees
of the Company for the financial year:

" [Ratic to median
Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai -
Mr. Rakesh Rewari -
Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy -
Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran -
Mr. Pradeep Pursnani -
Mr. Aleem Remtula -
Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas -
Mr. Anurag Agrawal -

“Non-executive Directors .+ o0

Exeéutive:D_ir_écto_rs_'--".".__ I | Ratio - to ‘median-

_ e e e remyneation
Mr. Akbar Khan {uptc 30-Apr-2018}) 12.67
Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz {W.e.f. 24-Apr-2018 upto 04-Dec-2018) NA
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha {w.e.f. 30-Oct-2018) 9.15

h. The percentage increase in remuneration of each directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year:

ny.| .- -%increase in

wnération in the
B e T T T S financiat year

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai -
Mr. Rakesh Rewari -
Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy -
Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran -
Mr. Pradeep Pursnani -
Mr. Aleem Remtula -
Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas -
Mr. Akbar Khan {Executive Director upto 30-Apr-2018} -
Mr. Akbar Khan {Chief Executive Officer upto 15-Jun-2018} -
Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz (W.e.f. 24-Apr-2018 upto 04-Dec-2018}) -
Mr, Nikesh Kumar Sinha {w.e.f. 30-0¢t-2018) -
Mr. Anurag Agrawal -
Mr. Nitin Agrawal, Chief Financial Officer {upto 23-May-2018) -
Ms. Kiran Agarwal Todi, Chief Financial Officer {w.ef. 02-lan-2019) -
Mr. Chirag Dasai, Company Secretary 10%

Directars, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Co
Secretary. .. ¢ e el




d.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31-Mar-2013: 51

e. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the

8-

managerial personnel in the fast financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase
in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out is there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year is 13.81%.
Average percentile increase in the managerial remuneration is NIL.

Justification:
a. To keep in line with business and growth, there is increase in percentile.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company:
The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration poficy of the company.

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under section 197{12} of the Act
read with Rule 5{2) of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
personnel) Rules, 2014:

Not Applicable
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JAIN SONS FINLEASE LIMITED

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction:

In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human resources as its invaluable assets, to pay
equitable remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP}and Employees of the company,
to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the company and in terms
of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, this policy on nomination and remuneration of Directaors,
KMP and Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(“NRC”) and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Composition of Committee:
1. The Nomination and Remuneration Comimittee shall consist of three or more non-executive directors
out of which not less than one-half shali be independent directors.

2. The Chairperson of the Company {whether executive or non-executive) may be appointed as a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair the Committee,

Dbjective:

The Namination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Guidelines of Reserve Bank
of India. The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to remuneration of directors,
KMP, senior management personnel and other employees.

The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:
1.1. To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, KXMP and Senior
Management.

1.2. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, KMP
and other employees.

1.3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

1.4. To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluation of the Board.

1.5. To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, KMP and Senior
Management.

1.6. To provide to KMP and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, performance,
dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

1.7. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive advantage. '
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1.8. To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.
1.9. To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities.

1.10 To Implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.

Applicability:

a) Directors {Executive and Non-Executive}
b} KmMP

¢} Senior Management Personnel

pefinitions:
“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time.

sgoard” means Board of Directors of the Company.
“Directors” mean Directars of the Company.

“Key Manageria! Personnel” means

i Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time
Director;

ii. Chief Financial Officer;

iii. Company Secretary; and

iv.  such other officer as may be prescribed.

"Senjor Management” means Senior Management means the personnel of the company who are
members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of
management one level below the executive directors, including the functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein
but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning

respectively assigned to them therein.

Palicy for Appointment and Remova! of Director, KMP and Senior Management:

1. Appointment Criteria and Qualifications:

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of
the person for appoiniment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the
Board his / her appointment.

b} The Committee shall undertake a process of due difigence to determine the suitability of the person
for appointment/continuing to hold appointment as a director on the Board, hased upon
qualification, expertise, track record, integrity and other ‘fitand proper’ criteria.

¢) A person should possess adequate gualification, expertise and experience for the posi_’;__i,oiéi]}fgfﬁ:-;he
is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether_.;;?;};_'ﬁali'ficatié'

ol

)




d}

f)

g)

h)
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expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

The Company shall not appoint of continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position
may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a
special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such mofion
indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

The Company shall appoint Independent/Non-Executive Directors nominated to the Board should be
between 35 to 70 years of age.

The Company shall obtain necessary information and declaration from the proposed/existing
directors as per the format provided under the Companies Aci, 2013 and Guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

The Company shall cbtained annually as on 31% March a simple declaration from the Directors the
information already provided has not undergone change and where there is any change, requisite
details are furnished by them forthwith.

The Company shall ensure in public interest that the nominated/elected directors execute the deeds
of covenants in the Format provided under the Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of india from time
to time.

2. Term f Tenure:

a)

b}

Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Directot
or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shalt be made
earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

independent Diractor:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up 10 five consecutive years on the Board of the
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

No independent Director shall hold office for mare than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of
5 years each, but such independent Director shall be efigible for appointment after expiry of three
years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall
not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company inany
other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an independent
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Directar in case such person_j-iﬁ(sg‘[?‘_\r_ihg'_a:_-;_a

Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other nuraber as may be prescribed:under the Adt.
> .
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3. Evaluation:

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel at regular interval {yearly).

4. Rermoval:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and
regulations there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing,
removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and campliance
of the said Act, rules and regulations.

5. Retirement:

The Director, KMP and Senior Management persannel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the
Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director,
KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after

attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

poticy for Remuneration to Directors/KMP/Senior Management Personnel:-

1. Remuneraticn to Managing/Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel:

The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director / Managing Director etc. shall
be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other
enactment for the time being in force.

2. Remuneration to Non- Executive / independent Director:

The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration / compensation / commission as per
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as
provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time
being in force.

Duties in Relation to Nomination Matters:

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

« Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of Senior
Management and reviewing its effectiveness;

o Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

e Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation;
s Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;

e Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly revi"éﬁiﬁﬁj =
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plan;

» Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the
Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective;

« Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office
of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director
as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service contract.

» Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Commitiee;

¢ Recommend any necessary changes to the Board;

s Scrutinize the declarations received from directors and based on the information provided in the
signed declaration, the Committee shall decide on the acceptance or otherwise of the Birectors,
where considered necessary;

s Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

Duties in Relation To Remuneration Matters:

The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

e Considering and determining the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing
in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members
of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate alt elements of the
remuneration of the members of the Board.

e Approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including KMP of the Company maintaining
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company.

» Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee.

» Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board.

Review and Amendment;
i.  The NRC or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems necessary.

ii. The NRC may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manual in
supplement and better implementation to this Policy, if it thinks necessary.

jii.  This Policy may be amended or substituted by the NRC or by the Board as and when requlred
and also by the Compliance Officer where there is any statutory changes necess:tatmg the
change in the policy. iy -
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COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

IntelleGrow is committed to the adeption of best practices of Corporate Governance and its
adherence in true spirit, at all times. The Company’s governance praciices are a product of self-desire,
reflecting the culture of trusteeship that is deeply ingrained in our value system and reflected in our
strategic thought process. The Corporate Governance framework of the Company is based on an
effective and independent Board, separation of the Board's supervisory role from the Executive
Management team and constitution of the Board Committees, as required under applicable laws. The
Board functions either as a full Board or through various Committees constituted to oversee specific
functions.

The Executive Management provides the Board detailed reports on the Company’s performance on
monthly basis. The details of campliance with Corporate Governance requirements during the
financial year ended 31st March, 2019 (“financial year under review”) are as follows:

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1.a. Composition: The Board of Directors of the Company (“the ‘Board”) comprises of 9 (Nine)
Directars, which includes 2 {Twa) Independent Directors, & (Six) Non-Executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Board is 2 Non-Executive Director.

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act}, the Directors submit necessary
disclosures regarding the positions held by them on the Board of other public and/or private
Companies, from time to time. All Independent Directors on the Board are Non-Executive
Directors. The maximum tenure of the Independent Directors is in compliance with the Act. All
the independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as
mentioned under Section 149{6} of the Act. As per the declarations received, none of the
Directors serve as an Independent Director in more than seven listed Companies. The brief profile
of the present Directors on the Board is available on the Company’s website at
hitps://www.intellegorw.com.

The details of the Directors of the Company with regard to outside Directorship held as on 31%
March, 2019 are as follow:

Name of the Birector Category No. of Quiside
Directorship(s) held
Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai Non-Executive 7
Mr. Rakesh Rewari Independent 5
Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy Independent g
Mr. Pradeep Pursnani Non-Executive Nominee 2
Ms. Anuracha Ramachandran | Non-Executive Nominee 6
Mr, Aleem Remtula Non-Executive Nominee 2
Mr. Saunas Kubitickas MNon-Executive Nominee 4]
Mr. Anurag Agrawal Non-Executive 5
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha Executive 0

1.b. Non-Executive Directors Compensation and Disclosures: Sitting fees paid te Independent
Directors for attending Meetings of the Beard / Committees has been approved by the Board. No
sitting fees were paid to Non-Executive Nominee Directors of the Company during the financial
year under review. No commission was recommended/ paid to any of Directors during the
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financiat year under review. Details of the Sitting fees paid to Independent Directors are given
separately in this Report.

1.c. Board’s Functioning and Procedure: The Company's Board plays a pivotal role in ensuring good
governance and functioning of the Company. The Board’s role, functions, responsibilities and
accountabitities are well defined. All relevant information Is regularly placed before the Board.
The Members of the Board have complete freedom to express their opinion and decisions are
taken after detailed discussions.

The Board meets at least once in every guarter to review the guarterly results and other items
on the agenda and additional Meetings are held to address specific needs and business
requirements of the Company.

6 (Six) Roard Meetings were held during the financial year under review. The gap beiween any
two Meetings was not more than 120 {One Hundred Twenty) days. The details of the Board
Meetings held during the financia! year under review, dates on which held and number of
Directors present are as follows:

Date of Board Meeting | Board Strength | No. of Directors Present
039-Apr-2018 9 7
24-Apr-2018 9 9
18-Jul-2018 9 7
30-0ct-2018 9 8
22-Jan-2018 9 6
22-Mar-2019 9 7

The Directors on the Board are professionals, having expertise in their respective functional areas
and bring a wide range of skills and experience to the Board. The Board has an unfettered and
complete access to any information within the Company. Members of the Board have complete
freedom to express their views on agenda items and can discuss any matter at the Meeting with
the permission of the Chairperson. The Board periodically reviews all the relevant information,
which is required to be placed before it and in particular reviews and approves corporate
strategies, business plans, annual budgets, projects and capital expenditure, etc. The Board
provides direction and exercises appropriate control to ensure that the Company is managed in
a manner that fulfils stakeholder's aspirations and societal expectations. The details of
attendance of each Diréctor at the Board Meetings held during the financial year under review
and at the previous Annual General Meeting {("AGM”) of the Mernbers of the Company held on
25-Apr-2018, at the Registered Office of the Company are as follows:

Mame of the No. of Board Attended Board Attended Last No. of Equity
Director Meetings held Meetings AGM Shares
during the tenure
Mr. Vineet 6 2 No Nil '
Chandra Rai
Mr. Rakesh 6 b No Nil
Rewari
Ms. Bhama & 6 No Nil
Krishnamurthy
Mr. Pradeep & 1 No i}
Pursnani




IAIN SONS FINLEASE LIMITED 4 2

nTsLLEGROA

Corporate Governance Report A

Ms. Anuradha 6 5 Yes Nii
Ramachandran

Mr. Aleem & 4 No Nil
Remtula

Mr. Saunas 6 4] No Nil
Kubilickas

Mir. Anurag 6 & Mo Nil
Agrawal

Mr. Nikesh 6 3 No Nil
Kumar Sinha

1.4,

1.

Code of Conduct: The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Board Members and
Senior Management Personnel of the Company (“the Code”}. The Code is applicable to alt the
Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. All the Beoard Members and Senior
Managementi Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code during the financial year
under review.

. Performance Evaluation of the Board: A formal evaluation mechanism has been adopted for

evaluating the performance of the Board, the Committees thereof, individual Directors and the
Chairman of the Board. The evaluation is based on criteria which include, among others, providing
strategic perspective, Chairmanship of Board and Committees, attendance, time devoted and
preparedness for the Meetings, quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information
between the Board Members and the Management, contribution at the Meetings, effective
decision-making ability, role and effectiveness of the Committees. The Directors completed
questionnaires providing feedback on functioning of the Board, Committees and Chairman of the
Board.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors:

During the year under review, a meeting of Independent Directors was held on 22-Jan-2015 as

required under the Act and in compliance of Schedule IV of the Act. In the meeting, the following

issues were discussed in details:

+  Reviewed the performance of the Chairman, Nominee Directors and the Board as whole;

«  Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of How of information between the Company
management and the Board as necessary for the Board to function effectively and perform
their duties.

Committee of the Board:

Curing the year under review, in accordance with the Act, the Board had re-constituted below
committees upon the appcintment of Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz, Managing Director and
resignation of Mr. Akbar Khan, from the post of Executive Director of the Company w.ef. 01-
May-2018 and further upon appointment of Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha as an Executive Director &
CEO w.e.f. 30-0ct-2018.

1. Corporate Governance & Executive Committee;

2. Product, Process, Cradit Policy and Grievance Redressal Committeeg;

3. Asset Liability Management Committee;

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Commitiee

Further, with the resignation of Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz, Managing Director of the Company
with effect from close of working hours of 04-Dec-2018, the below committees again re-
constituted:

1. Corporate Governance & Executive Committee;
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2. Risk Committeg;
3. Product, Process, Credit Pelicy and Grievance Redressal Committee;
&. Asset Liability Management Committee;

There are currently seven Committees of the Board, as mentioned herein below:
1. Audit and Compliance Committee;

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

3, Risk Committee;

4. Corporate Governance and Executive Committee;

5. Product, Process, Credit Policy and Grievance Redressal Commitiee;

6. Asset Liability Management Committee;

7. Corporate Social Responsihility Committee

The compasition and number of meetings held during the year under review of the above said
commitiees are as under:

sl. Name of the Composition of Comenittees Number of Date of Meetings
No.  Committess during the FY 2019 Meetings heid held during the
Meetings during the FY 2019 FY 2019
1. | Audit and Mr. Rakesh Rewari 24-Apr-2018
Compliance Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 18-Jul-2018
Committee Mr. Pradeep Pursnani 30-Oct-2018
22-}an-2019
22-Mar-2019
2. | Nomination Mr. Rakesh Rewari 4 24-Apr-2018
and Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 18-lut-2018
Remuneration Mr. Pradeep Pursnani 30-0ct-2018
Commitiee Mr. Anurag Agrawal 22-Jan-2019
3. | Asset Liability Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 4 24-Apr-2018
Management Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 18-jul-2018
Committee Mr. Aleerm Remtuta 30-0ct-2018
Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas 22-]an-2019
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha
4. | Product, tr. Rakesh Rewari 1 22-1an-2019
Process, Credit | Ms., Anuradha Ramachandran
Policy and Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas
Grievance Mr. Aleem Remtula
Redressal Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sirtha
Committee
5. | Risk Mr. Rakesh Rewari 24-Apr-2018
Commitiee Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 18-Jul-2018
Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 20-5ep-2018
Mr. Anurag Agrawal 30-0ct-2018
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha 22-Jan-2019
6. | Corporate Mir. Vineet Chandra Rai 24-Apr-2018
Governance Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 18-jul-2018
and Exacutive | Mr. Anurag Agrawal 30-Oct-2018
Committee Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha 22-)Jan-2019
29-Mar-2019
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7. | Corporate Bs, Bhama Krishnamurthy i 24-Apr-2018
Social Mr. Pradeep Pursnant
Responsibility Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
Committee Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas

Mr. Aleem Remtula
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha

The Charters of the above said committees are annexed as Annexure - C with the Director’s
Report.

1. Audit and Compliance Committee and its Composition:
As on 31-Mar-2019, Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board comprises of fellowing
members:
a. Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director;
h. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy, Independent Director;
¢.  Mr. Pradeep Pursnani, Nominee Director

Mr. Rakesh Rewari is the Chairman of Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board of the
Company. Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the Company, acts as Secretary of the
Audit and Campliance Committee.

The Audit and Campliance Committee of the Board reviews the reports, which are to be
submitted with the Board of Directors with respect to auditing and accounting matters. It also
supervises the Company’s internal control and financial reporting process. Further, ali the
recommendations made by the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board have been
taken up by the Board.

2. Risks Management and Areas of Concerm:

The Company has laid down a well-defined Risk Management Policy covering the risk
mapping, trend analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. A
detailed exercise is being carried out to identity, evaluate, manage and moenitoring of both
business and non-husiness risk. Risk Committee of the Board constituted in accordance with
the RBI guidelines has overall responsibifity for overseging the Risk management activities of
the Company. The Board periodically reviews the risks and suggest steps to be taken to
control and mitigate the same through a properly defined framework.

As on 31-Mar-2019, the Risk Committee of the Board comprises of following members:
1. M. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director;

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy, Independent Director;

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Nominee Director;

Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director

Ut N

3. Corporate Social Responsibility:

As per Section 135 of the Act, the Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee of the Board to support the Company in achieving the CSR objectives of the
Company. As on 31-Mar-2019, the CSR Committee of the Board comprises of following
members:

1. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy, Independent Director;
2. Mr. Pradeep Pursnani, Nominee Director;

3. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Nominee Director;
4. Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas, Nominee Director;
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S. My, Aleem Remtula, Nominee Director
6. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director

CSR Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy in line with CSR activities as defined in Schedule VIl of the Act, which has
been approved by the Board. During the year under review, there weré no changes in the said
policy recommended by CSR Committee and approved by the Board. Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy consisting salient features is available on the Company's website at
https://www.intellegrow.com/investor retations.

Since the average net profit for three preceding financial years i.e. FY2016-17, FY2017-18 and
FY2018-19 is below the threshold limit, as specified in section 135 of the Act, the Company
was not required to spend any amount towards CSR during the financial year under review.
Accordingly, No CSR activity was undertaken by the Company.

Further, the Report on CSR adtivities as required under the Companies {Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy} Rules, 2014, forming part of this Annual Report is hereby annexed as
Annexure - D,

Vigil Mechansim / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any.
The mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors and
Employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board In the exceptional cases. The Company also
provides direct access to the Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Commiittee on reporting
issues concerning the interests of empioyees and the Company. Further, during the year review,
the said policy was revised and approved by the Board by way of passing a resolution in its Board
meeting held on 24-Apr-2018, the key change in the said policy is that the Vigitance Officer of the
Company has been changed to Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director in place of Mr. Rajan Juneja, Head
of Credit of the Company and rest of the changes are presentational and not matertal.

We affirm that during the financial year 2018-13, no Employee or Directors was denied access 1o
the Audit and Compliance Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism is available
on the Company’s website at https://www.intellegrow.com/investor relations.

Other Disclosures:

- Related Party Transactions: During the financial vear, the Company had entered into related

party transactions which were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business.
There were no material transactions with any related party as defined under Section 188 of the
Act. All related party transactions have heen approved by the Audit and Compliance Committee
of the Company.

Particulars of related party transactions are listed out under the notes to accounts forming part
of this Annual Report.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Audit and Campliance Committee
and the Board is available an the Company’s website i.e. www.intellegrow.com.
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3.b. Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors: The Directors other than

3.c.

Independent Directors of the Company evaluate the performance of Independent Directors on

following criteria as to how an Independent Director:

1. Invests time in understanding the Company and its unique requirements;

2. Brings in external knowledge and perspective to the table for discussions at the Meetings;

3. Expresses his/ her views on the issues discussed at the Board; and

4. Keeps himself/ herself current on areas and issues that are likely to be discussed at the
Board level

Proceeds from Public Issues, Right issues, Private Placement, Preferential Issues etc.: The
Company discloses to the Audit Committee, the uses/applications of proceeds/funds raised from
public issues, private placement of Equity Shares, etc., if any, as part of quarterly review of annual
accounts.

Website Disclosures:
The information as required to be disseminated on the website of the Company pursuant to the
Act, has been updated on the website of the Company i.e. www.intellegrow.com.

Details of New Directors and Directors seeking Re-appointment: The Company has provided the
details of the Directors seeking appeintment in the Notice of the ensuing Annual Geheral
Meeting.

KKK KKl Ko Yo XWX
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Scope of Committees:

Given below are the various committees proposed of the Board of the Company. This document detatls
the scope of the various committees. The purpese of the committees is {0 have more focused oversight
on the respective areas for better corporate governance. The following 7 {seven) committees and their
scope are in line with the Companies act, 2013, RBI Guidelines and Industry best practices:

The scope or any of the authorizations here, if repugnant with the constitutional documents of the
company, or any changed regulatory norms, shall be over-ruled by the constitution documents and
changed regutatory norm, as applicable from time 1o time.

1) AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

internal

a. To oversee the internal audit, compliance and financial reporting process and ensuring correct,
adequate and credible disclosure of financial information, at stipulated frequency {meonthiy,
quarterly, annually) as per extant regulatory & statutory guidelines.

b. To examine the efficacy of audit functions and systems and suggesting steps on a periodic basis
{quarterly, half yearly) for its improvement.

¢. To report, on a quarterly basis, the key audit findings for the quarter, as well as the actions

taken report on the same for previous quarters to the Board of the Company.

To do valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

To evaluate internal financial controls

To monitor the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters

Te review and recommend accounting policies and treatment — including decisions regarding

write-offs.

h. To get Information Systems Audit conducted and track implementation of accepted
recommmendations/ corrective action.

w e oo

External

a. To facilitate in smooth conduct of audits by external agencies, Statutory Auditors, Reserve Bank
of India {RB1}, lenders and any other external auditers as appointed by the Company or any
other stakeholder (lenders, shareholders, regulators, government etc.]

b. To review with management, verifying and recommending adoption of quarterly, half yearly and
annual accounts to Board of the company with special emphasis on accounting pelicies and
practices, provisioning norms adopted by the company and any amendments adopted during
the year, adherence to capital adequacy norms, comphiance with accounting standard and other
requirements concerning financial statements that may arise.

¢. To report, on a quarterly basis, the key findings of the quarter, as well as the action taken report
on the same for previous quarters, o the Board of Directors.

d. To establish procedures for receipt and treatment of complaints regarding accounting and
auditing matters and engage independent counsel, if required, for such conflict resolution and
to update the Board of the Company on the status of the same, every quarter;
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Compliance

a.

To prepare a calendar detailing the list of compliances/ covenants that needs to be monitored
and the frequency of its reporting to the Board of the Company as well as the regulatory
agencies and the stakeholders.

To review statement of significant related party transactions and examinatien of the reasons for
substantial defaults, if any, in payment to stakeholders.

To review compliance within stipulated statutory and regulatory requirements particularly in
relation to financial management and reporting.

To review compliance of various inspections and audit reports of internal, concurrent and
statutory auditors and commenting on the action taken report prepared by the management
and ensuring submission to the Board of the Company from time to time — classified under
heads for major/ material and minor and also set timelines if the compliance is still to be met.
To review the consolidated compliance report and the final accounting system for the financial
year hefore it is submitted to the Board of the Company for adoption.

To internalize guidelines issued by the regulator specifically for the NBFCs or any ather
guidetines as may be relevant to the Company and monitor adherence to the same.

Administrative

.

To recommend appointment and removal of external auditors on company’s request, or as
mandated by the regulators, lenders or other stakeholders.

To review and recommend a scope of audit on the basis of requirements and reviewing the
policies, procedures, techniques and findings of such audits.

To oversee that contracied fees are paid to the various audit firms, at stipulated frequency on
receipt of their reports.

To establish procedures for receipt and treatment of complaints regarding accounting and
auditing matters and engage independent counsel, if required, for such conflict resolution.
Updating the Board of the Company on the status of the same, every quarter.

2}

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

Nomination
a. To guide and assist the Board and work out a policy and implement it besides monitoring

progress in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP},
Senior Management and Credit Committee members.
i.  Torecammend to the Board appointment of directors. To develop a succession plan for
the Board and to regularly review the plan
ii.  To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report
to the Board for further evaluation of the Board.
jli. To formulate the criteria for determining gqualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director in line with the prevailing regulatory guidelines.
iv.  Torecommend appointments of senior management to the Board of the company.
To review and advise the management on the organization structure, including creating a2 two
tire organization structure for smooth succession planning and operational backups:. -
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.

To objectively examine the annual manpower plan in relation to the husiness plan of the
company and to examine management recommendations regarding manpower strategy and
suggest corrective action, if required.

Remuneration

4.

To recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, KMP and other
employees and Credit Coammittee members,

To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, KMP and Senior
Management and Credit Committee members.

To provide to KMP and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, performance,
dedication and achievement relating to the Company's operations,

To evaluate and approve the compensation packages of above mentioned persons with
particular reference to fixed and variable pay {inctuding bonuses and Employees Stock Options).
To guide the management in developing a balanced remuneration policy with no biases and
focus and enhancing performance drivers and motivation levels of the employees with a view to
attract, retain, promote and groom/ train employees. This shall also include considering grant of
stack options to employees, reviewing compensation levels of the employees vis- a- vis other
NBFCs and industry in generai and create competitive advantage.

3) RISK COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

Risk Control

d.

To review company’s risk management palicies in relation to various risks (credit, market,
liguidity, operational and reputation risk)
To review the risk return profile of the Company, Capital adequacy based on risk profile of the
company’s balance sheet, business continuity plan and disaster recovery plan, key risk indicators
and significant risk exposures and implementations of enterprise risk management.
To hold such risk reviews to ensure adequate monitoring as may bhe felt necessary by the
internal as well as external stakeholders and to appraise the Board of the Company on a periodic
basis. This shall cover:
i.  Tareview performance of credit risk in the business and portfolio using risk assessment
taols
ii. To review and approve the risk rating tool, performance of portfolio on the tool and
review the tool’s efficacy periodically
iii. To review stress in portfolio, and recommend corrective measures and policy level
changes based on portfolio performance
iv.  To review performance against the exposure norms and make recommendatiens to the
board based on cutlook of business
To give oversight to the Credit Committee {CC} and review and take note of minutes of CC
meetings. Risk Committee at its discretion may calf one or any of the CC members when they
feel it is desired for any specific discussions.
Review portfolio against the expasure norms and credit delegation and give approvals based on
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per the business plan {loan loss provisioning and write-off as per the approved budget), then the
cc will have discretion to limit approvals to some of the areas showing stresses.

Fraud Control and Monitoring

a. To monitor and review all frauds that may have occurred in the company and involves an
amount of Rs. 0.1 million and above or as decided from time to time.

b. To repart such frauds and other flag-offs to stakeholders along with the extent of losses. This
would include reviewing and recommending a calendar of reporting frauds and the remedial
measures taken, to the Board of the Company.

c. To conduct a root cause analysis and identify the systemic lacunae, if any, that may have
facilitated perpetration of the fraud and put in place measures to rectify the same. Also, to
ascertain reasons for delay in detection of such frauds, if any.

d. To ensure the staff accountabiiity is examined at alt levels in all the cases of frauds and actions,
if required, is completed quickly without loss of time.

e. To review of efficacy of remedial actions taken to prevent recurrence of frauds, such as
strengthening interna controls and putting in place other measures as may be considered
relevant to strengthen preventive measure.

Vigil Mechanism

a. To recommend Vigil Mechanism to the board and monitor its progress and implementatian and
efficacy and recommend changes to the same from time to time.

b. To ensure that the Vigiiance Mechanism is adeqguate for the directors and employees to report

their genuine concerns. Such Vigil Mechanism should provide adequate safeguards against
victimization of persons who use such mechanism and they should have a direct access 10 the
Chairman of the Audit Committee in appropriate cases.

4}

ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

To put in place an effective fiquidity management poficy, including, inter alia, the funding
strategies, liguidity pfanning under alternative crisis scenarios, prudentiai limits and review the
same periodically.

To articulate the interest rate view of the company and decide the pricing methodology for
advances in line with extant regulatory guidelines.

To aversee the implementation of the Asset Liability Management (ALM) system and review the
functioning periodically and to ensure that the decisions taken on financial strategy are in line
with the objectives of the committee.

To review the management of balance sheet of the Company within the risk parameters laid
down by the Board of Directors or & committee thereof, with a view to manage the current
income as well as to take steps for enhancing the same.

To review the capital & profit planning and growth projections of the company in line with the
business plan and ensure that the same is reported to the Board of the Company.

To consider and recommend any other matier related to liquidity and market risk managernent
including matters that might be required by the ienders or any other regulatory body to ensure
that the same is recommended to the Board of Directors of the Company for suitab_l'e‘«-aﬁtior\j._-' i’
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5) PRODUCT, PROCESS, CREDIT POLICY & GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

Product and Process

a. To review from time to time the suite of products run by the company covering its fulfillment
process within the regulatory compliance norms, customer service quality, viability and
profitability within the objectives of the company

b. To approve new products {including pilats and full scale roliouts} and rolling out of business in
new geographies in which products (new as well as existing) can be rolled out.

c. To set up standard operating processes with regard to the products and ensure that these are
being reviewed and strengthened by the management

d. To monitor adherence to the process compliances by internat as well as third-party evaluations.

Credit Policy

a. To review and recommend credit policy framework in line with the stipulated guidelines of the
8oard and other extant regulatory and statutory guidelines for conduct of business.

b. To recommend setting up of delegation of functional powers for staff to the Board of the
Company for suitable action.

c. To consider and approve any other matter related to the credit policy including matters that
might be required by the Board or any other regulatory body.

Customer Service and Grievance Redressal

a. To review the customer service initiatives, overseeing the functioning of the customer service
council and evolving innovative measures for enhancing the quality of customer service and
improvement in the overall satisfaction fevel of customers.

b. To review and recommend a customer grievance redressal policy in line with extant regulatory
and statutory guidelines which shall include, among other things, the contact details of the
employees responsible, the turn-around-time stipulated for addressing the grievances, the
escalation mechanism etc and to ensure that this policy is available for reference all branches of
the company.

c. To set up a grievance redressal mechanism to address the complaints of the customers and
report a synopsis of such complainis received to the Board of the company on a quarterly basis.

6) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

The Executive Committee serves as an administrative committee of the Board to facilitate approval of
certain operational corporate actions that do not require consideration by the full Roard. In normal
course of business, Executive Committee is delegated with following authorisations -

a. To make applications for obtaining licenses, registrations, connections, clearances, services etc.
and to authorize/appoint company directors/employeesfofficers for signing applications,
returns, forms, bonds, agreements, documents, papers etc. and for represeniing Company
before the authorities under various Laws including but not fimited to Corporate Laws, Industrial
Laws, Tax Laws, Labour Laws and other business laws applicable to the Company infnjé_’s}i_‘:-‘ei:ﬁ:iffajg. )
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present and future offices of the Company for compliance of all provisions, rules, clauses,
regulations, directives and other related matters under the said Laws, which may he applicable
to the Company.

To open/close account with any bank and to authorize and reauthorize any empioyee of the
Company to operate the account.

To authorize company person{s) for execution of documents, including loan documents and
affixing common seal of the company therean, if required.

To invest funds of the company in the Fixed Deposits to the extent necessary to avail credit
facilities/ foans from the Banks/ Financial Institutions etc. and to invest surplus/ idle funds in
liquid funds (i.e. mutual funds etc.) for short term as per the Board approved investment policy
of the campany.

To incur capital expenditure outside the annual business plan up to a limit of Rs.10 lakhs
between two board meetings.

To apply for telephone connection or to disconnect.

Delegation of borrowing powers

g. To apply for loan and hypothecate book debts of the Company at such terms and conditions as
may be decided by the committee from time to time within the borrowing powers delegated by
shareholders to the board and board to the Executive Committee {documented below).

h. To apply for portfolio sell-down or securitization within the limits approved by the board and
the sharehotders at such terms and conditions as may be decided by the committee fram time
to time, subject to reporting to the board in the next board meeting.

i To review and recommend, seek and operate borrowing and investment fimits delegated from
the board (subject to delegation by Shareholders to the Board in the latest AGM/ EGM)

i.  To borrow the moneys subject to a maximum of Rs. 30 Crore per facility/ loan.

ii.  To sell or securitise portfolio of the Company upto a limit of Rs. 20 crore per sanction.

iii.  To purchase book debts or securitized paper of other Companies/ SPVs upto a limit of
10% of networth of company per transaction aggregating to not more than 25% of
netwroth as on date of reckoning.

iv.  Toissue Non-Convertible Debentures {NCD) upto a limit of Rs. 50 crore per sanction.

The terms of all such transactions — including the term loans, securitization, asset sale, or NCD
issuance should be within mits approved by the board.

j.  Summary of each of such sale, securitization, purchase, subscription of securitized paper should
be placed before the board in next ensuing board meeting.

Emergency response

The Executive Committee exercise powers of the Board in the event that an emergency 0Of ather
time sensitive matter arises and in it not practicable to assemble the entire Board.

Corporate Goverhnance

a.
b.

To implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.
To review the status of company on various corporate gavernance retated norms, guidetines and
industry best practices and recommend action to the Board and to the Management to improve
the practices. SEIRTPUAL
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7] CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

a. To establishment and review of Corporate Social Responsibitity {CSR) policies and programs and
compliances wrt to the Companies Act on CSR matters

b. To review and evaluate the adequacy of its charter and recommend to the Board any proposed
changes.

c. To review annual budgets with respect 1o CSR and review its utilization. The Board shall ensure
that the company spends, in every financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits
of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of
its CSR guidelines under the companies Act and any changes there-under.

d. To ensure that the CSR program includes significant sustainabie development, community
relations and security policies and procedures

e. To have an oversight on implementation of CSR policies and programs

f. To review the findings and recommendations from any investigation or audit by regulatory
agencies or external auditors or consultants concerning the Company’s CSR matiers; and

g. To review the Company's disclosure of corporate social responsibility matters in the Company’s
continuous disclosure documents and any annual social responsibility report.

h. To have the power to obtain advice and assistance from outside legal or other advisors in its sole
discretion.

i. To annually evaluate its performance and report the results of such evaluation fo'the Board.

-x end of document x-




Annexure-E

The Report on Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) Activities
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3] of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of the
Compunies {Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 ]

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR palicy, including overview of projects or programs proposed
to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs:

Kindly refer the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy as mentioned in this report as Annexure-
1

The Compoasition of the CSR Committee as on 31-Mar-2019:

As on 31-Mar-2019, the composition of CSR Committee is mentioned herein below:
+ Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy, Independent Director;

s Mr. Pradeep Pursnani, Nominee Directot;

» Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Mominee Directar;

« Mr. Sarunas Kubilickas, Nominee Director;

¢ Mr. Aleem Remtula, Nominee Director

¢ Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director

Average net profit/loss of the Company for last three financial years: The average net profit/ioss of
the Company for last five years is (Rs.3,54,38,296/-).

Prescribed CSR Expenditure {two per cent of the amount asin item 3 above): (Rs.7,08,766/-), further
since, there is Joss of Rs. 3,54,38,296/- from average profit/loss of last three financial years, the
Company does not recommend any CSR Expenditure for the financial year 2018-19.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2018-15:

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Nil

{(b) Amount unspent, if any; Nil

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

(1) {2] {3 (4) {5) (6) (7) (8)
5L | CSR Sectar Projects or | Amount | Amount Cumulative | Amount
No. | projector | in programs outlay spent on expenditure | spent: Direct
activity which {1) Local {budget) | the projects | upto tothe | orthrough
identified | the area or project ar reporting implementing
Project other ar programs period agancy
is covered | (2) Specify | programs | Sub-—
the State wise heads:
and district (1) Direct
where expenditure
projects ar on projects
programs or
was programs
undertaken (2}
Overheads
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6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the
amount in its Board report: Not Applicable

7. Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR
palicy, is in compliance with C5R objectives and Policy of the Company duly signed by Director and
Chairperson of the CSR Committee.

The CSR Committee hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy is in
SR objectives, CSR policy and in accardance with the provisions of the Companies

compliance with C
Act, 2013. %)

o\

_ e ¢
Anurag Agrawal ~“gHama Krishnamurthy
{Director} {Chairperson of CSR Committee)




ANNEXURE-1

This Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy is being proposed in line with provision of Companies
Act, 2013 and subsequent adoptien of charter and constitution of CSR Committee of the Board of Jain
Sons Finlease Limited (IntelleGrow). It is proposed that CSR activities/ projects/ programs shall be
governed by this policy.

in order to have an efficient and effective execution, co-ordination, monitoring of CSR activities,
IntelleGrow shall constitute CSR execution team (hereafter referred to as 'CSR Team’}). This team will
report to CSR committee.

1. CSR activities:

IntelleGrow can undertake any project/program that is in line with following sectors as listed in

Schedule VIt of the Act:

a. Fradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition;

b. Promoting health care including preventive healthcare;

¢. Promoting sanitation including contribution to the Swachh Bharat Kosh set-up by the Central
Government;

d. Providing safe drinking water;

e. Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills,
especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement
projects;

f.  Promoting gender eguality, empowering women, setting up of homes and hostels for women and
orphans, setting up of old age home, day care Centre and such other facilities for senior citizens
and measures for reducing inegualities faced by sodially and economically backward groups;

g. Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal
welfare, agro forestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and
water {including contribution to Clean Ganga fund set up by Central government for rejuvenation
of River Ganga);

h. Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of
historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development of
traditional arts and handicrafts;

i. Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;

j. Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sporis and Olympic
sports;

k. Contributions of funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions
which are approved by the Central Government;

| Contribution to Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Central
Government for socio- economic development and refief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the
Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

m. Rural development projects;

n. Slum area development

intelleGrow will review the sectors from time to time and make amendment to the above sectors, if
necassary.

2. Exclusions from CSR activities:

The following activities shalt not form part of the intelleGrow CSR activities:-
a. The activities undertaken in pursuance of normal course of business of intelleGrow;



b. CSR projects/programs or activities that benefit only the employees of IntelleGrow and their
families;

c. Any contribution girectly/indirectly to pofitical party or any funds directed towards political
parties or political causes;

d. Any CSR projects/programs of activities undertaken outside India.

3. C$R Partner/Collaboration:

The Board of Directors of IntelleGrow may decide to undertake CSR activities, projects or programs,

approved by the CSR committee,

a. by IntelleGrow itself;

b. through setting up of registered Trust, registered society or Section % company by IntelleGrow or
its Holding or Subsidiary or Associate Company;

c. through any Section 8 company, registered trust or registered society operating within India and
having three years.of established track record in undertaking the similar projects or activities that
aligns with IntelleGrow's CSR activities;

d. In collaboration with any other company provided IntelleGrow’s CSR Committee are in a position
to report separately in accordance with CSR rules.

4, Budget:

Budget allocated for CSR activities at IntelleGrow is as per the guidelines provided in the Act and

change from time to time, currently at 2% of the average net profit of 3 immediately preceding

financial years.

5. Project identification:

a. The CSR team will identify and propose the projects to the CSR Committee for approval;

b. The project identified and finalized will be in consanance with the Schedule VIi of the Companies
Act, 2013.

6. Monitoring:

The CSR committee along with CSR team would be responsible of monitoring approved projects. A

comprehensive monitoring mechanism will be devised by [ntelleGrow which may include visits to

project sites, meetings, progress reports, analysis of Key indicators etc. on a periodic basis.

7. Documentation:

The CSR Team of IntelieGrow will ensure that CSR projects are well documented including all the

utilization certificates, agreements, invoices of actual spent etc. and accountability is fixed at requisite

level of the CSR process and the implementation mechanism.

8. Treatment of Surpluses:

Any surplus, generated out of the CSR activities, will not be added to the normal business profit of the. . “~
IntelleGrow. RAA




5. Disclosure of CSR Palicy:

As per the CSR Rules, the contents of the CSR Policy shall be displayed on Intellegrow’s website —
www.inteflegrow.com apart from the disclosure in the Board’s report.

10. Review:
The Committee shall review its CSR Policy from time to time based on the changing needs and

aspirations of the target beneficiaries and make suitable modifications as may be necessary and
submit the same for the approval of the Board.

Pro et v bbbt e bes i
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2019

[Pursuant ta section 204(1] of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8 of the Companies {Appointment ond Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Yo,
The Members,
Jain Sons Finlease Limited

i have conducted the Secretasial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Jain Sons Finlease Limited (hereinafter calted
‘the Company’}. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me 2
reasonable basis for evaluatian the corperate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and retumns
fited and other records maintained by the Company and also the infarmation provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Companyhas, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 317 March 2019 (*Audit Period’) generally complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes ‘and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter.

| have examined the boaks, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Companyfor the financial year ended on 315 March, 2019 according to the
provisions of:

i, The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

i The Securities Contract {Regulation} Act, 1956 ['SCRA") and the rules made thergunder;

ii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct tnvestment, Qverseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings(not appiicable to the Company during the Audit
period};

Secretarial Audit Report/ISFL/2018-18
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v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines presceihed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of india, 1992 {'SEBI Act):

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of tndia (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers} Regulations, 2011inot applicable to the Company during the Audit
periad);

b, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibltlon of Insider Trading}
Regulations, 2015 (not applicable to the Company during the Audit pesiod);

¢. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulaticns, 2009 {not applicable to tha Company during the Audit
period);

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

e. The Securities and Exchange ioard of India (issue and Listing of Debt Securities}
Regulations, 2008;

£ The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrar to an jssue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Campanies Act and dealing with
the cllent;

g. The Securities and Exchange oard of India {Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
7009 (not applicable to the Company during the Audit period};

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Sacurities) Regutations,
1998 (not applicable to the Company during the Audit period); and

i. The Securitles and Exchange soard of india {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requiremants) Regulations, 2015.

vi. Other laws, including the law relating to Non-Banking Financial Companies to the
axtent applicable to the Conipany as per representation made by the Company.

| have alse examined compliance with the appticable clauses of the following:

(i} secretarialStandards [$5-1 and gs-2}issued by The tnstitute of Company-Secretaries
of India.
{ii) The Debt Listing Agreement entered by the Company with BSE Limited, Mumbai.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Repulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned ahove except-

{a} delay in filing of certain e-forms with ROC;

{b) the composition of Board of Directors is hot In compliance with the provisions. of Section
149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company is required to appoint ong more
independent director;

{e} the company has delayed in intimating to the stock exchange regarding meating of Board of
Directors / Committee, at which issue of non convertible debt securities was proposed to
be considered as required under Regulation S0(3} of SEBI (\ODR} Regulations, 2015.

Page2of 5
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i further repart that

The Board of Disectors of the Company is duly constituted with proper batance of Executive
Directer / CEQ, Nan-Executive Blrectors, except appolntment of adeguate number of
independent Directors as required under Section 149(4} of the Companies Act, 2013. Except as
ahservation given above, the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Ak,

Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days i advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining turther information and clarifications on the agenda items hefora the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Commitiee Meetings were carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board,
a5 the case may be.

1 further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company ta miohitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that the compliznce by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and
indirect tax faws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the sama have been subject to
review by statutory auditors and other designated professionats.

§ further report that during the audit period:

3. the company has adopted new set of Articles of Association in the Extra Ordinary Generat
Meeting held on 8™ April, 2018;

b. on & April, 2018, the Company has allotted 26,27,724 Series D Cormpulsoriiy Convertible
preference Shares {CCPS} of Rs. 10/- {(Rupees Ten only) each, ata premium of Rs. 77.18 on
Rights basis;

¢. the Company has allotted 130 on-Convertible Debentures of EFace value of Rs. 10,00,000/-
each aggregaiing to Rs. 15,00,00,000/- on a private placement hasis through clreular
resolution passed on 30™ August, 2018;

d. the Company has obtained approval of members for increase in Authorised Share Capital
from Rs. 69,60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Nine Crore Sixty Lakhs only} to Rs. 85,00,00,000/-
{Rupees Eighty Five Crore anly) and comresponding cthanges In Capital Clause of
memorandum of Association in Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 30 October, 2018;

Sacretarial Audit Report/J5FL/2018-19
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e. the Company has obtained approval of members for offer and issue of 1,14,70,521 Equity
Shares of Re.10/- each {Rupees Ten only) at a premium of Rs.77.18 (Rupees Seventy-Seven
and paisa Eighteen only) amounting 10 ]:.100,00,00,020.78, on private placement basis in
Extra Ordinary Genesal neeting held on 30™ October, 2018; .

£, the Company has allotted 57,35,260 tauity Shares of Rs.10/- each, apgregating to Rs.
49,99,99,966.80 ta M/fs. Aavishkaar Venture Management services Private Limited on
private placement hasis through circular resohution passed on 25"‘ February; 2019.

For M Baldeva Associates

Compony Secretaries
.
/‘

€S Manish Baldeva
Place:Thane i / Propristor
pate: 87 May, 2019 M, No.6180, CP No.11062

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-i and forms
an integrat part of this report-

Sacretarial Audit Report/ISFLf2018-13
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Annexure.-|
To.
The Members,
Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Continuation Sheet

My report of even date is 1o read afong with this fetter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibifity of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on

our audit.

2. §have followed the audit practices and processes

as were appropriate to abtain reasonable

assufance about the correctness of the contents of the Sacretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are: reflected in secretarial records. |
nelieve that the processes and practices, § followed, provided a reasonable hasis for my

opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropri
Accounts of the Company.

atenass of financial records and Baok of

4. Wherever required, 1 have obtained the Managemenf representation apout the compliance
of taws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compiiance of the provisions of Corporate and other appficable laws, rules, regulation,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination” was limited to the

«erification of precedures an the test basis.

6. The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as 10 the future viabifity of the

Company nor of the efficiency or effectivenass wi
the affatrs of the Company.

Place: Thane
Date: 8 May, 2019

Sacretariat Audit Report/ISFL/2018-19

th which the management has conducted

or M Baldeva Associétes

B

-

Company Secretaries

C5 Manish Baldeva
Proptigtar
M. No.6180, CP No.11062
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Poperoae -

FORM ADC -2

pursuant to ciause (h} of sub-section {3) of Section 134 of the Act and Ruie 8(2) of the Companies

{Accounts} Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contract / arrangements entered into by the Company with

related parties referred to in sub-section

(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Not Applicable

{a} Name(s} of the related party and. nature of | NIL
relationship

(b} WNature of contracts / arrangements /1 Nit
transactions

(¢} Duration of the contracts / arrangements / | NIL
transactions

{d} Safient terms of the contracts or | NIL
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

{e) Justification for entering into such contract /| NIL
arrangement or transaction

(A Date(s) of approval of the Board NIL
(g) Amount paid in advance, if any ML
{h) Date on which the special resolution was § NiL
passed in general meeting as required under first

proviso to Section 188

|

2.i. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: The following contract
or arrangement or transaction is at arm’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Mr. lohn Arunkumar Diaz

{b) Nature of contracts / arrangements /[
transactions

Agreement for Appointment of Managing
Director dated 24-Apr-2018

{c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
fransactions

One year starting from 24-Apr-2018 till 23-Apr-
2019

(d) Salient terms of the contracts oF
arrangements of transactions including the
value, if any

Mr. John Arunkumar Disz was appointed as
Managing Director for period of one year
starting from 24-Apr-2018 on professional fees
of Rs.4,00,000/- per month. Other terms and

conditions are detailed in his Agreement
enterad with the company.
(e) Date(s) of approval of the Board 24-Apr-2018
{f) Amount paid in advance, if any Nil
{g} Date on which the special resolution was 25-Apr-2018

passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188

2.i. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis:
contract or arrangement or transaction is at arm’s length basis:




(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

TribeTech Private Limited, a Company in which

e« Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai and Mr. John
Arunkumar Diaz are interested as Directors
and Members in TribeTech Private Limited

« Mr. Anurag Agrawal and Mr. Nitin Agrawal as
members in TribeTech Private Limited

{b} WNature of contracts / arrangements /
transactions

Sourcing and Servicing Agreement dated 08-
May-2018

(c} Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

The Agreement is entered for a period of two
years and the said period can be extended
further, with the consent of both Company and
TribeTech Private Limited.

{d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

The Company is proposing to enter into the said
agreement with TribeTech Private Limited for
sourcing, servicing and collections {upto S0DPD)
of clients.

The Material Terms and Monetary Value of the
Agreement is mentioned herein below:

Processing Fee Share: 100% to TribeTech Private
Limited

Interest on Loans:

. Upta 21% - to the Company

. From 21% to 33% - to Tribetech Private
Limited

. Over and Above 33% - to be shared

between the Company and Tribetech Private
Limited in equal proportion.

First Loss Defaut Guarantee:

Cap of 10% of total Joan disbursed which is
currently envisaged to be Rs.20Cr (Program
Limit)

Upfront FLDG: 5% of the total loan disbursed by
the Company {immediate trigger)

Contingent FLDG: 5% of the total loan disbursed
by the Company {shall get triggered in the event
any loan disbursed crosses 90days DPD)

The Agreement is proposed to be entered for a
period of two years and the said period can be
extended further, with the consent of bath
Company and TribeTech Private Limited.

(e) Date(s) of approval of the Board 24-Apr-2018
(f) Amount paid in advance, if any Nil
{g) Date on which the special resolution was 25-Apr-2018

passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188




2.ii. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: The following
contract or arrangement or transaction is at arm’s length basis:

{a) Name{s) of the related party and nature of
refationship

TribeTech Private Limited, a Company in which

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai and WMr. John

Arunkumar Diaz are interested as Directors

and Members in TribeTech Private Limited

e Mr. Anurag Agrawal as Member in TribeTech
Private Limited

L]

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements /
transactions

Addendum to Sourcing and Servicing Agreement
dated 08-May-2018 executed on 01-Nov-2018

(c} Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

The Agreement is an Addendum to Sourcing and
Servicing Agreement dated 08-May-2018
executed on 01-Nov-2018 and will be valid for a
period upto which Sourcing and Servicing
Agreement dated 08-May-2018 will remain
valid.

{d} salient terms of the contracis oOr
arranigements or transactions including the
value, if any

The Company is proposing to enter into the said
agreement with TribeTech Private Limited for
modification of certain terms to the existing
Sourcing and Servicing Agreement dated 08-
May-2018 for sourcing, servicing and collections
{upto 90DPD) of clients.

The Material Terms and Monetary Value of the
Agreement is mentioned herein below:

Processing Fee Share: 100% to TribeTech Private
Limited

Interest on Loans:
Interest — Upto 21% of net yield (net of GST
impact) to IntelleGrow

First Loss Default Guarantee:

Cap of 7.5% of total loan disbursed which is
currently envisaged to be Rs.20Cr (Program
Limit) in the form of Corporate Guarantee.

This Agreement is an Addendum to the Sourcing
and Servicing Agreement dated 08-May-2018
and will be valid for a period upto which the
Sourcing and Servicing Agreement dated 08-
May-2018 will remain valid.

(e) Date(s) of approval of the Board 30-0ct-2018
{f) Amount paid in advance, if any Nil
(g) Date on which the special resojution was 30-0ct-2018

passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188




2jv. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: The following
contract or arrangement or transaction is at arm’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Aavishkaar Venture Management Services
Private Limited, a Company in which Mr. Vineet
Chandra Rai, Mr. Anurag Agrawal and Mr.
Pradeep  Pursnani are  interested  as
Director/Shareholder in  Aavishkaar Venture
Management Services Private Limited

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements /
transactions

Loan Agreement dated 12-Nov-2018

{c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

This Agreement is valid for a period of 6 months
from the date of execution of this agreement.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or | Term Loan of Rs.50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty

arrangements or transactions including the | Crore only) with a tenor of 6 months along with

value, if any Rate of Interest of 12.15% p.a. to be paid
monthly.

(e} Date(s} of approval of the Board 30-0ct-2018

(f) Amount paid in advance, if any Nil

{g) Date on which the special resolution was | 30-Oct-2018

passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188

2.v. Details of contracts of arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: The following
contract or arrangement or transaction is at arm’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
refationship

Aavishkaar Venture Management Services
Private Limited, a Company in which Mr. Vineet
Chandra Rai, Mr. Anurag Agrawal and Mr.
Pradeep  Pursnani are  interested  as
Director/Shareholder in Aavishkaar Venture
Management Services Private Limited

{b} MNature of contracts / arrangements [
transactions

Loan Agreement dated 26-Mar-2019

{c} Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

This Agreement is valid for a period of 12
months from the date of execution of this
agreement.

{d} Salient terms of the contracts or| Term Loan of Rs.10,00,00,000/- {Rupees Ten

arrangements or transactions including the [ Crore only) with a tenor of 12 months along with

value, if any Rate of interest of 12.44% p.a. to be paid
monthly.

(e) Date{s) of approval of the Board 22-Mar-2019

{f) Amount paid in advance, if any Nil

{g) Date on which the special resolution was | 22-Mar-2018

passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188
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Form No. MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return as on financial year ended as on 31-Mar-2019

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1} of the Companies {Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014

1. Registration and Other Details:

1 | N U65910TG1998PLCO8RI41
2 Registration Date 05-Feb-1998
3 Name of the company Jain Sons Finlease Limited
4 Address of the Registered | Babukhan's Millenium Centre, 4th Floor, Block-B, Premises No. 403
office and contact details and 404 (6-3-1099/1100), Somajiguda, Hyderabad — 500082,
Telangana, India
Tel: 040 40300200; Fax: 040 40300275
Email id: chirag.desai@intelfegrow.com
Website: www.intellegrow.com
5 Address of the Corporate office | 128, 3 Flpor, Techniplex-il 1T Park, Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover,
and contact details Goregaon {West}, Mumbai — 400062, Maharashtra.
Tel: 022 62492700; Fax: 022 62492787
Email id: chirag.desai@intellegrow.com
Website: www.intellegrow.com
6 Whether listed Company Yes {Non-Convertible Debentures are Listed with BSE}
7 Name, Address and Contact Satellite Corporate Services Pvi 1td. {For WNon-Convertible
details of Registrar and | Debentures}
Transfer Agent, if any Category [ Registrar to Issue & Share Transfer Agents
B-302 Sony Apartment, Opp. St jude High School, 90 Feet Road,
larimari, Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072.

Il. Principal Business Activities of the company:

All the busmess a

ctivities contributing 10% or more of the tota! turnover of the companv shall be stated:

Sl No - Nar ejand Descrlptl' n'_o "mam NIC Codeof the [} - % 1o total turnuver uf

IERRIPE ' ' ' : Pmduct/Semce

1 Fmancnal Serwces 804 9 100%
111. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies:

si. | Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding % of Equity Apuglicable

No. [Subsidiary shares held section

JAssociate
NA NA NA MNA NA
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T1-Mg-2Di4 - shaves arcuibrsd by Lramder fram 1200 0.18] 62,17,105 54.50
Akbar Khan
114dmy 2018 hares ycquiaad by transfer iram 1,009,000 L3 E €1,17,19% H5.41
[tim Agrawal
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iv. Shareholding Pattern of top 10 shereholders jother than Directors, promaters and kratders of GDRs and ADRs)

5l Name of sharghalder Sharehoiding Lumaolative Sharehelding during the
year
He. of shares. %of tetal | Mo, ofshares | % of total shares of
shares of tha the Company
Company
1 [ON Mauritis
Bt the beginning of the year 100 0.00 100 LG3
22-Mar-201% - Conversion of Serles 47,84,58% 216t 47,84, 585 2161
B CCPS into Equily Shares
AL the End of ihe yaar 47,684,680 21.51%
7 | CArk {Enternational) Mauritius
Limmitad
At the begfaning of the year 975,566 8.83 3,75.566 B.83
22-har-2019 - Conversion of Serles 2,587,081 1.30 12,562,647 570
B2 COPS into Equity Shares
Bt the End of the year 12,62,647 57
3 | Tricdos Custody B.Y. INE Trodaos Fair
Share Fund
At tha beginning of the year 9,87,784 5.95 9,872,734 E S5
22-Mar-201%9 - Conversion of Series 1,83,540 0.65 11,3134 S11
B2 CCPS into Equity Shares
Althe End of the year 11,3324 5.11%
& |Triades SICAV 1| - Tricdos
‘Moﬁnam:e Fund
At the beglnning of the year ©,87 783 8.95 9,87, 762 B85
27-Mar-2019 - Conversion of Secies 1,43,540 065 11,231,323 511
B2 CCPS into Equity Shares
At the End of the year 11,31,383 T.i1*
5 |#ichael and Susan Dell Foundatian
AL the baginning of the year 5,659,525 B.78. 9,659,525 .78
At the End of the year 9,69,525 438"
& |Rajan luneja
At the beginaing of the yeas 50,701 046 50,701 .46
At the End of the year 50,701 023"
7 Hehn Arunkumar Diaz
At the beginning of the year - 0.00 - 0Kl
11052018 Shares acguired by way 30,589 038 3D,589 028
of transfer From Nitin Agrawal
3,200 0.03 32,789 03l
11-05-2018 Shares scquired by way
of transfer from Pratik Mandvia
11-015-2018 Shares acquired by way 2,000 082 35789 LRE]
of transfer from Akshit Gupta
11.05. 2018 Shares acquired by way 1 0.00 35,790 0.33
of transler from R 5 Mani
At the £nd of the year 35,790 0.16*
& |Ruchir Shaly
At the baginning of the year 15,700 0.14 15,7040 0.14
At the End of tha yzar 15,700 0071
4 |Vijay Kumar Haswani
At the Begis of the yaar 3,08 03 10 0.03
At the End of the year 3,700 .02
10 [Swapna Nair
At the heginning of the year 3,200 w03 3,200 003
At the End of the year 3,200 0.1
* changa in percentage holding due to allotment of Equity Shares to A Yenlure b Services
Private Limited and conversion of Series B1 ECPS and Serfes B2 CCPS inta Equity Shares
v. Sharehalding of Directars and KMFPs
sl Name of shareholder harehold lative Shareholding during the
year
Mo of shares Y% oftotel | No.ofshares | % of 1otal shares of
shares of the the Company
Company
1 |Akbar Khan
At the begmning of the year 17,208 16 17,203 016
11-May-2018 - Transfersed shares la 17,200 -0.16 - 000
tnteliectual Capital Advisory Services
Peivate Limed
At the End of the yeor 4
2 |Mitin Agrawal
At tha begh of the year 1,30,589 1.1E 1,309,585




11-May-2018 - Trensferred shares to 30,589 028 -30,58%9 028
John Atankumar Dz
11-May-2018 - Transferred shatesto 5,041,008 050 - -
Intellectual Capital Advisory Services
Private Limited

At the End of the year - -
Chirag Desai
At the heginning of the year 2,100 o2 2,100 g8.02
At the End of the year 2100 .01
* change in percentage holding due te allabment af Equity Shares to Aavishkaar Venture M t Services

Private Lirnited and conversion of Serles B1 CCPS and Series B2 CCPSinta Equity Shares

M




REMUNERATION OF BIRECTORS AND ¥EY MANAGERIAL PERSOMNMNEL

A. Remunsatian ta MO { WTD } Manager

i |
51 No, Particulars of Hemunemation Mame af MD § WTE | Manager

- —
1 I 3 4 Totl Amaunt

Akhar Khan {upto 38~ Fohn Arankumar Olaz Nikesh Kumar Sinha

Apr-2018) ek, 2eApr-2018) | fwel 30-0ct-2018)

ross Salary:

{a) Salacy as per provisisns cartained tn Section 5,00,000 - 38,78,345 - 45,78,345
1 [17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1361

[b] wxlue of perquisites ufs 172} of the Income - - - - -
Tax Act, 1961

{c} Prokits in ligu ol salary ufs 1743} of the Incame - - : - -

2 tssue of Equity Shares 14,99,436 . - - 1-1,99l¢i96
3
4
5

Sweal Louily - N _ _ T
Cornipissian - - - - .
- a5 % of prafits - . -
- athers, specify - B - - -
Others, spesify - Profecsional Feel - 30,24,000 - -

Fotat 34,99,496 30,24,000 39,173,345 - 51,01,841
Caiting as per the Act | 2,40,00,£40,000 2,40, 1,00,000 32,40,00,00,600 b

B, iom 1o athet direct

51 Mo, particulzrs of Remuneratian Name &f director

J
1 z 3 4 Total Arnount

1 independent Directors Rakesh Rewari Bhama Krishaamurthy
Fees for ing board f ¢ i i 470,000 670,000 - - 11,40,000

Commission - - - - -
Traveling sxpanses - - - - -

Total 11] 4,700,000 5,70,00K) - - 14,340,000
2 Other Mon-Exacutive Directors Vineat Chandra Rai Anur ruwal
Faes for ding board [/ i 90,000 4,230,000 - - 520,000

Commission - - - - -
Cthers, please specify - - - - -
Total (2} 40,600 4,30,000 - - %,20,000
Total (142} 16,60,000
Total Managerial Remuneration
L Orverall Ceiling a5 ptr the Act {per Board BMeeting 1,00,000

€, Remuneration (o KNP other than MG f Mapager / WTD

3l Mo, Particwlars of Remuneration KMP
CED CEST oo CFD [+3
AkbarKhan lupla 15- | Nikesh Kumar Sigha | Nitin Agrawsl (upto | Kian Agarwal chirdg Dasal
Jup-Z018} [W.e.f, 16-Dct-2018) 23 May-2018} Todi (w.e.l. 02
lan-2819}

i Gross Salary:
la] Salary as per provisions contained in Section 15,00,000 43,733,101 9,75,30% 13,40,902 HLTA,167
17{1) ef the income Tax Act, 1061

(b} Walue of perqulsites ufs 1742} of the Incame - - . - B
Tay het, 1961

{r) Profitsin lleu of salary ufs 17(3) of the Intome - . . - -
Tax Act, 1361

2 iswee of Eguity Shares - - _ . R
3 Sweal Fguity - - - - -
4 Commission - - - - -

- a3 % ol profits - - - . -
- others, specig - - - . .
5 [others, specify f - .
Total 15,600,000 43,33,301 9,75,805 13.40,802 20,74,167

PENALTIES / FUSISHMENT, COMPOLINDING OF DFFENCES:

Companies Act punishiment { FRELT{ Court] feive deralls)
Compounding faes
Fmpased

Type Sectian of the Briaf Description Detalls afpenalty / | Authority [RD Appeal made, il any '

A, COMEANY
Penalty - K - z .
Punisliment - - . - -
Compoaunding

B, HAECFORS
Penally - - R R -
Funishraent 3 . . - i
Compoundin

. GTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penally - . . i

Punlshment - - . .
Carppoundi - - R i
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Apnnexure-i - Management Discussion and Analysis Report

a. Industry structure and developments:

Micro, Small and mMedium Enterprises are the fargest employment generator in any society. However,
they are starved of Capital-both Debt and Egquity. The enterprises are constrained by the challenge of
reach, economies of scale, cost of technology and a lack of pricing power. Combine the lending
opportunity of the individual entities, and the impact of scale of opportunity dawns upon Uus.

i Micro SME Mid Large Overatl 7
\ I | <aer 3 -0 25 -100Cr  PAO0CT
| Pl P I S 498
'1 Mar'17 31 7.8 49 34.1 50.0
ey 33w so | wma som
Sep’l7 35 85 5.2 347 51.8
T e e i D
e _ T S S S S
sép'ia" e S I EOR o
N e e e S o
o S e LT e
growth (Dec'18) 19.2% 159% 5.0% 14.9% 14.4%
.So;rc;‘.Tl.'.ansi;l.nir;;r.\.t‘:I.éIL..“ BRI e e

MSME lending in India has grown by 15.7%CAGR to entities and 26.1% to Individuals for business
lending. NBFC share in NBFC lending has grown from 6% to 13% in the last 5 years.

B l
Individuals Total
CAGR 15.7% 26.1% 19.3%

25.2

IMH Lakh Crores

a

Dec 15 Dec' 16

Dec' 14

Dec' 13

|
|
|
L

Source: TransUnlon CIBIL
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Annexure-] - Management Discussion ang Analysis Report DRTALYZIND 2

MSME’s are crucial to the economic fabric of India, and any lending to them, impacts the society and
nations well being at large.

Fconomic growth in India has not able to touch the fives at last mile and with increase in socio-
economic disparities, there is more focus on the market-based approach to tackle the chafienges. Our
endeavour is to reach deep with timely funding to a segment with products, hitherto not available to
them at large, thereby contributing to reduce economic disparities at the tower end of the economic
spectrum.

IntelleGrow acts as a financial intermediary for this segment and helps the MSME in availing debt
facility for working capital.

b. Opportunities:

The opportunity in the segment is best summarised by the MSME Pulse report of Transunion CIBI for
March'19 as under:

“The NPA rates in commercial lending are now inching dowmwards and it is possible that we may have already
seen the peak of NPA rates in the Indian Banking system. The Mid and Large Corporate lending is also enlering
another cyclical growth phase. MSME fending has grown in the past 3 years and given the structural strength af
the MSME lending segment combined swith the taibwinds of growing Large Corporate sector with declining NPA
rates, we may see the MSME lending intensity grow even further. In addition, while PSB's market share it this
segment has been shrinking, digitization initiatives in these banks and few more banks prabably coming oul of the
PCA framework, we may witness PSB's lending expansion in the MSME segment further fueling growth in this

»
segment.,

This places us in a sweet spot 1¢ harness the learnings of tough times to maximise the fast clipped
opportunity which seems headed our way. The headwinds seem to be giving way to tailwinds.

Post impiementation of G5T, new to credit borrower has expanded dramatically as is'_-_i'jti,:stré'té'd"i'h;{'-hg
table below: e Ao
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m

-

T

=

S

< 10 Lakhs 0 Lakhs - 10 Crores

Hl-16 H2 - 16 H1 - 17 H2-17 Hl - 18 H2-18
Mumber of NTC entities (in "000°)

Source: TransUnion CIBIL
£
As per CIBIL Transunion, NTC additions grew from 9.7% to 10.6% in the borrower upto Rs.10takh and
T 29 to 6.7% in the Rs10 lakh to Rs.10cr segmient fromt H2 17 to H2 18.

This gives us an opportunity to leverage the massive opportunity through innovative risk
modelling, embedded in a technology, expand the network beyond Mumbai to create value
for ourselves and serve our customers.

c. Segment wise or product wise performance:

The overhang in the SME book continued in 18-19. However, we are now witnessing a reduction in
the stress levels. We posted a PBT of Rs1.88 cr. The PAR numbers came down, partially due to the
temporary strategy of lending to MFI's/NBFC. As mentioned in section b, we believe the MSME par
numbers to improve at a systemic level. Within SME space, the granularity of our book has increased.
Fintech tie ups has yielded good results in terms of yield with NiL credit costs to us.

d. Qutlook:

The preceeding paragraphs bring out the immense opportunities in the Micro and SME space. it is
ours for taking with the right risk modeiling, distribution and use of technology. The only imminent
headwind is the NBFC liquidity scare. However, we are better placed because, we are tiquid in all
maturity buckets and are currently geared at 1.4 only. Our learnings impel us to have-a more portfolio
approach to lending than a deal based one.

e. Risks and Concerns:

= Execution for build'ing book & stagnation avoidance;

o Portfolio Quality, ring fence portfotio from further slippages;

* Enhancement in credit rating;

« Strengthen risk metrics to improve onboarding

 Need to strengthen monitoring function to really track and report risk triggers;
+ Templatize and standardize to increase productivity.




JAIN SONS FINLEASE LIMITED @ INTELLEGROW
Annexure-1 - Management Discussion and Anatysis Report ) ATEIFIING ERR T

LN

i

f. Internal control systems and their adequacy:

The company has an internal control system which is commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The Internal Auditor monitors the efficiency of the internat control
systems in the company, compliance with operating systems/accounting procedures and policies of
the company. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to Audit
and Compliance Committee of the Board on timely basis.

g. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance:

During the financial year ender review:

¢ Revenue of the Company has grown up by 11%;

» The Company has disbursed Rs.327cr. fresh {Rs.598¢r gross including rollovers) as compared to
Rs.305cr. fresh {Rs.342cr. gross including rollovers) in previous financial year FY18, showing a
YoY growth of 7%

« Operating Expense Ratio has come down to 4.3% from 4.4%;

+ Portfolio OQutstanding (POS) of the Company has increased from Rs.317cr to R5.379c¢r, showing a
growth of 20%

¢ The Company made a net profit of Rs.1.88cr as compared to previous year loss of Rs.19.95cr.

h. Materiai developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of
people employed:

The company aspires to use its Human Capital as Knowledge Capital while ensuring efficient resource
utilization and cost control. Employees are most valuable resource and assets of the company. Your
company is managed by majorly professionals like, Chartered Accountants, Company Secretaries,
Lawyers, Cost Accountants, Business Administrative persons having rich experience and vide
knowledge. The Company follows and believe in the policy of building strong team of professionals
and continue to do that. During the year, team size of the company has grown to 48 employe_es:-frep___

30 employees last year. /,/_-/D?\w:/‘t S
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
7th Floos, Block i, White House
HKundan Bagh, Begumpet
Hyderahad 500016
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T +91 40 6630 8200

F +91 40 6530 8230
Independent Auditar’s Report *

To the Members of Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Ovpinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jain Sons Finlease Limited (‘the Company’), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of ocur information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Compaties Act, 2013 {("Act’) in the manner $o requited
and give 2 true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India incloding
the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
{(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as applicable 10 a
Non-Banking Financial Company, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities uader those standards are Further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financizl statements under the provisions of the Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fuifilled our other ethicat responsibilities in accordance with these
requitements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
Appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of aur audit of
the financizl statements as 2 whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
S _.'_pﬁ_i-‘nion on these matters.

W

(...—. .‘T"_\..‘

Walker Chandion & Cu-LEP is registered with Enuited fabilty
with iderbication mumber AAL-2085 and ils registered
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5.

We have determined the matter desctibed below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our

report:

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Identification of loss assets
Reler note 1.5 and 2.35 in the financial staremenss for
significant accounting policies.

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has loans
aggregating to $36,193.23 lakhs. As per the directives
of the Non-Banking Financial Company -
Systemically Important Nom - Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 (“the RBI Prudential Norms™)
and Accounting Standard (AS) - 4 ‘Contingencies and
Events Occurring After the Balance sheet date’, the
Company is required to tecognize provision for loans
outstanding beyond specified nomber of days
(idenufied as non-performing assets), and for loans
identified as ‘loss assets”.

In accordance with the RBI pmdential norrmns, a loan
asset which is adversely affected by a potential threat
of non-recoverability due to either any fraudulent act
or onission on the part of the bozrower or non-
availability of security is identified as a loss asset by
the management. Identificarion of a loan asset as a
loss asset requires significant judgement in assessing
the lkelthood of defanlt on repayment of loans and
could have a material impact on the reported profits
for the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
has identified 5 loan accounts with aggregate balance
of 1,140.27 lakhs as loss assets, which have been
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Considering the significance of the above matter to
the financial statements, complexitics and judgement
involved, and the significant anditor attention
required to test such management’s judgement, we
have idemified this as a key auditc matter for current
year audit

Our proceduzes in respect of the identification of
loss assers included, but not limited to, the
following:

Obtained an  understanding of  the
management process of identification of loan
assels as loss assets.

Evaluated the design and tested operating
clfectivencss of the Company’s key controls
over computation of ageing of loan assets as at
period end, identification of loss assets and
appropriate provisioning as required by RBI

prudential norms.

On a sample basis, tested the ageing prepared
by the management of the loan assets as at year
end by inspecting the undedying loan
documents and related repayment schedules.

For over-due accounts selected on a sample
basis, examined the management’s assessment
for identification of such over-due loan
accounts as non-performing assets/loss assets
by performing inquires with the management,
performing 2 review of overdue perod,
inspecting communications with the customer,
evaluating management’s assessment of credit
worthiness of the customer and reading the
minutes of Risk Committee of the Board.

For the samples selected and tested as above
for identification 2s loss assets, tested the
measurement of provision made / loan
written-off in accordance with the RBI
prudential norms.

Ensured appropriateness of the disclosures
made in the financial statements with respect
o Joss assets and provisioning thezeof.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Company’s Board of Directors s responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s

T, report thercon.

N\i

(JE agsurance conchasion thereon.

i

LCharterd Accountama

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informarion and we do not express any form
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iIn connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsihility is to fead the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otharwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informadon, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Govemance for the Financial Statements

7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5} of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial starements that give a wue and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read
with rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank
of India as applicable to a Non-Banking Financial Company. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preveniing and detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selection and application of
appropriate accounting pohaes, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudeng; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were opcxatmg effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recotds, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

8. In prepanng the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversceing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurarce is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents
can atise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually ot it the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

11. As pare of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Anancial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a2 material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from estor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgety, intentional umissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that ate appropriate in the circumstances. Under secton 143(3)({} of the Act, we are also rcsponsible for
explaining our oplmon on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

«#"s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
: 'i and related disclosures made by management.

Chararod Accouniants
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matedial nncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as.a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncettainty exists, we are required to draw attention in out auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures ate inadequate, to modify our opinian. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
Future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

12, We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
tirming of the audic and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify duting our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with 2 statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requitements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial staternents of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communtcated in our repott because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public intetest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its directors
during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits kaid down under section 197 tead with Schedule
V to the Act.

16. As required by the Companies (Audiror’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in tetms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

17. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by secdon 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessaty for the purpose of our audit

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of acocount;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

.- £) onthe basis of the wtirten representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board

" of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director
7 in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

Charlersd Avcotntanis
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f) we have also audited the internal finandial controls ever financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company as
on 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date and ont report dated 8 May 2619 as per Annexure B expressed unmodified
opinion; and

g} with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accorddnce with ruie 11 of the
Companies (Andit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i the Company, as detailed in note 2.32 to the finandal statements, has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2019;

ii.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
wete any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 201%;

ii.  there were no amounts which were required to be transferred 1o the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company dudng the year ended 31 Maxch 2019; and.

. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were
applicable for the pedod from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not relevant to
these financial statements, Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

1) Ve-d

TS

Pattner

Membership No.: 213356 .~

Place: Hyderabad L
Date: 8 May 2019 RN

Chartared Azcountams
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Annexute A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Jain Sons Finlease
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and tzking into consideration the infortation and explanations given to us and the
bocks of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i) {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and sitaation of property, plant and equipment.

{b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification of the property, plant and equipment is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢) The Company does not hold any immovable properry (in the nature of ‘property, plant and
equipment’). Accotdingly, the provisions of clause 3{())(c) of the Order are not applicable.

@i The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the
Order ate not applicable.

(it} The Company has granted unsecured loans to company covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act; and with respect to the same:

{(a) in our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not, prima facie,
prejudicial to the Company’s interest;

{b} the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayment of the principal amount and the interest are regular;

(c) there is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such company.

(iv) In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under Sections 185 and 186
of the Act Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Otrder are not applicable.

(¥} The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(v) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act, in trespect of Company’s services. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(viij(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, goods and services 1ax, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than
six months from the date they become payable.

Chartgrad Accounianis
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(b)

(viii)

)

()

(i)

(s

(xiv)

(x9)

(xvi)

The dues ocutstanding in respect of income-tax, goods and service tax, service-tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of | Nature | Amount Amount paid | Period to which | Forum  wherte

the statute | ducs (% in Lakhs)| under Protest | the amount | dispute is

(¥ in Lakhs) relates pending
Income-tax{ Income 3272 32.72 | 2013-14 Income Tax
Act, 1961 | tax Appellate
Tribupal

The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to a government during the year. The
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to bank aad financial
institution or any dues to debenture-holders during the year.

The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt
instruments). In our opinion, the term loans were applied for the purposes for which the loans wete
obtained, though idle/surplus funds which weee not required for immediate utilisation have been
invested in Hquid investments, payable on demand.

No fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the period covered by our audi.

Managerial remuneration has been paid/provided by the Company in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisicns of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V 1o the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not 2 Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable.

1n our opinion all transactions with the related parties ate in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of
Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the Snancial statements ete., as
required by the applicable accounting standazds.

During the year, the Company has made private placement of equity shares. In respect of the same, in
our opinion, the Company has complied with the requirement of Section 42 of the Act and the Rules
framed thereunder. Further, in our opinion, the amounts so raised have beer used for the purposes
for which the funds were raised. During the year, the Company did not make private placerent /
preferential allotment of fully / partly convertible debentures.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash mansactions with the directors or
persons connected with them covered under Secton 192 of the Act.

The Company is required to be registered under Secion 45-TA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
and such registration has been obtained by the Company.

For Wallcer Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076 /N500013

rel) ljc__tp

ikhil Vaid

Partner

Membership No.: ‘313356

Place: Hyderabad SRR

Date: § May 2019 L L
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Jain Sons Finlease
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report an the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act)

1. In eonjunction with eur audit of the financial statetnents of Jain Sons Finlease Limited (‘the Company’) as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2019, we have audited rthe internal findncial controls over financial reporting
(TFCeoFR) of the Company as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maineaining intexnal Binancial controls
based on the internal finandal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“the ICAT”). These responsibiliies include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, mduding adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frands and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accouuting recotds, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

E.,-.\

Onr responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted out
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICATI and deemed te be prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectvely in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and
their operating effeetiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's IFCoFR.

Meaning of Intermal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial repotting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accotdanice with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR include those policies and procedutes that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the wansactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordatice with generally accepted accounting
principles, and thar receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

- ... authodsations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding

"+ prevention or tmely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that

"coald have a material effect on the financial statements.

Charterad Azceuntanis
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the zisk that the
IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Ia our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at-31 March 2019, based on the internal financial
controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Finm’s Registation No.: 0010761N/N500013

Nikhit Vaid =
Partner S
Membership No.: 213356

Place: Hyderabad o o
Date: 8 May 2019 T

Chartared Aczoumtants
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Walker Chandink & Cy LLP
7 Flogs, Block i, Wiite House

Kundan Bagh, Begumpet
Hyderabad 500016

India

T +91 40 6630 8200

. .. F +81 40 6630 B230
Independent Auditor’s additional report for the year ended 31 Masch 2019 pursuant to the requirement

of Master Dircction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Resetrve Bank) Directions,
2016 issued by the Reserve Bank of India

To

The Board of Ditectors

Jain Sons Einlease Limired
Babukhan's Millenium Centre
4th Floor, Block-B

Premises No. 403 & 404
(6-3-1099/1100), Somjiguda
Hyderabad, Telangana

India - 500682

1. This report is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 30 October 2018 with Jain
Sons PFinlease Limited {the “Company’) and the requirements of the Master Direction — Non-Banking:
Financial Companies Auvditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directons, 2016 (‘the Auditor’s Report Directions’)
issued by the Reserve Bank of lndia {“the RBI%).

2. We have audited the accompanying Enancial statements of Jain Sons Finlease Limited, {the ‘Company’)
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended 2nd a surnmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information and have issued an unmodified opinion vide our report dated 8 May 2019.

Management’s Responsibility for the financial statements

3. The Company’s Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act)) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accotdance with the
accounting principles genenally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventiog and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting polices; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudeat; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

.. controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accountng

i “» records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view

...+, and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
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4,

The management of the Company is also responsible for compliance with the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 (‘the RBI Act), Master Ditection- {Non-Barking Financial Company —Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Direcdons, 2016} (‘the NBFC
Disections’), and other cisculars and directions issued by the RBI thereunder and for providing all the
required information to the RBL

Anditor’s responsibility

5.

6.

Pussuant to the requirements of the Auditor’s Repors Directions, itis our responsibility to provide reasonable
assurance on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Auditor’s Report Directens, to the extent
applicable 1o the Company, on the basis of our audir of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and examination of books of accounts and other records maintained by the Company
for the year then eaded.

We conducted our examination of the aforementioned mattets in accordance with the ‘Guidance Note on
Reports or Cenificates for Special Purpases (Revised 2016)’ (‘Guidance Note?) issued by the Institate of
Chartered Accountants of India (the TCAT). The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical

requirements of the Code of Bthics issued by the ICAL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1,
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits aad Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements issued by the [CAL

Opinion

8.

Charwred Accotmtanin

Based on our audit of the accompanying financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2019 and
examination as above, evidences obtained and the information and explanations, along with the
representstions provided to us by the management, we report that:

2. The Company is engaged in the business of Non-Banking Financial Institation (not accepting or
bolding public deposits) and pursuant to the provisions of Section 45-IA of the RBI Act, tequining
it to hold & Certificate of Registxation {"CoR’); the Company has obtained 2 CoR vide cerrificate
no. B-09.00441 dated 25 Septerber 2014 issued by the Hyderabad Regional Office of the RBI;

b. The Company is eatitled to continue to hold such CoR in terms of its asset/ (income pattern) &5
on 31 Marchk 2019

¢. The Company has met with the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in NBFC
Directions as at 31 March 2019;

d. The Board of Directots of the Company in their meeting held on 24 April 2018 has passed a
resolution for non-acceptance of any public deposits for the financial year 1 April 2018 to 31 March
2019;

e. The Company has not accepred any public deposits during the year ended 31 March 2019,

£ The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recogmnition, accounting
standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubeful debts as applicable o it in
terms of the NBFC Directions;

g. The Company being a systematicaily important non-deposit taking NBFC as defined in the NBFC
Directions:
i) The Company has furnished Farm NBS-7 for the quarter ended 31 March 2019 based on the
provisional financial information, according to which the capital adequacy ratio as at 31 March
2019 stands at 40.73%. lo cur opicion, the capital adeguacy ratio of 42.07% as disclosed in the
gudited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 has been corxectly arrived at
and such ratio is in compliance with the minimum CRAR prescribed by the RBI;
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i) The Company has furnished to the Bank the quarterly statements of capital funds, disk
asscts/exposuces and risk asset ratio (Foxm NBS-7) within the stipulated time period during
the year ended 31 Marxch 20619.

h. The Company is not a Nog-Banking Financial Company — Miero Finaace Iastitution as specified
under patagraph 3(xix} of the NBFC Directions.

Restriction on Distribution or Use

9. Our work was performed solely to assist you in compliance with the Auditor’s Report Directions by the
Company. Our obligations in zespect of this report are entirely separate from, and our responsibility and
liability is in no way changed by any other role we may have as statutory auditoss of the Company or
otherwise. Nothing in this report, nor anything said or done in the course of or in conaection with the
services that are subject of this report, will extend any duty of care we may have in our capacity as statutoty
auditors of the Company.

10. The report 1s addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors pursuant to our obligations under the
Anditor's Report Directions requiring us to submit 2 report on the additional matters as stated in the
aforesaid directions and shonld not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose or to any other
party without our prior wiitten consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liahility or any dury
of carc for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whase hands it
may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Walker Chandiok 8 Co LLF
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N5000153

N Wesd
Nikhil Vaid B S
Membership No: 213356 ¢ ST

Place: Hydetabad
Date: 8 May 2019
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jain Sons Finlease Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019
{AH amounts in X Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

MNote 31 March 2619 31 Maxch 2018

Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital Z 3,061.41 4,489.19
Reserves and surplus 23 12,612.94 3.853.51

15,674.35 833270

Share application money pending atlotment 2.1 (x) - 1,969.72
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 23 13,719.61 15,362.67
Other Iong-term Habilities 24 637.25 1,224.10
Long-term provisions . 25 65.76 10589

14,422.65 16,692.67

Current Habilities
Short-term borrowings 26 - 500.00
Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises 27 - -

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 42.82 3204
Other current Habilities 28 11,034.86 10,354.96
Short-term provisions 29 299.98 168.55

11,377.66 11,055.55
Total 41,474.66 38,060.64

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Tangible assets 210 164,48 178.26
Intangible assets 21t 8032 48,34

Nornvcurrent investments 212 - 1,920.77
Deferred, tax assels (net) 213 114.7% -
Long-term Joans and advances 214 10,862.61 9,055,60
Cther nor-current assets 2,15 101.16 145.83

11,323.36 11,348.80

Current assets
Current investments 216 1,716.55 489.60
Cash and bank balances 217 987.33 4,479.57
Shori-term loans and advances 218 27,040.33 21,451.86
Other current assels 219 107.69 290.81

30,151.30 26,711.84
Total 41,4743.66 38,060.64

The accompanying rotes form an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiolk & Co LLP Tor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Firm registration no.: 001076N /N300013 /
p\);'tL'.\ \.}c_ol r\}:u" roAd

Nildil Vaid Vineet Chandra Rai Nisci:MKum.{r Sinha

Partmer _ Chairman : Marlaging Difector

Membership No.: 213356 DIN: 006062 DIN: 08268336

e
-caa;g’ﬁe?;

Cotnipany Secxetary

Kiran Agarwal Todi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 8 May 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: 8 May 2019




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss fr the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amounts in ¥ Lalhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Nate 31 Maeeh 2019 31 March 2018

Revenues
Revenue from operations 220 5,447.53 4,958.21
Cthar income 221 626.39 504.60
Total revenues 6,143,92 5,463.81
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 22 73901 755.16
Finance cosls 2.3 3,254.44 3,346.50
Dapreciation and amortisation expense 210 & 211 56.72 3319
Provision and write-offs 224 1,242.28 275808
Other expenses 225 72119 52409
Toizl expenses 6,013.64 741703
Profit/ {loss) before tax 130.28 {1,953.22)
Tax expense
+ Current tax 56.08 -
- Deferred tax (benefit)/charge {114.79) 42.61
{58.71) 42.61

Profit / (loss) after tax 188.99 {1,995.83)
Earnings per share 226
Basic 1.61 (18.12)
Diluted 675 (18.17)
Momdnal vatue of equity share 10.00 10.00
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Staternent of Profit and Loss referred to it our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Jain Sona Finlease Limited
Firm registration no.: 001076N/ N500013 i

!
l\);‘kL‘l\}a:o[ . N Nike;ﬁbiurnyl Sinha

Nikhil Vaid Vineet Chiandea Rai
Pariner Managing Director
‘Membership No.: 213356 DIN: 0268336
e
Kiran Agarwal Todi ag Desal
Chief Financial Qfficer Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad Place: Mumbai
Date: 8 May 2013 Diate: 8 May 2019




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amounts in X Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated}

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Cash flow from aperating activities:

Profit f {loss) before tax 130.28 {1,953.22)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 56.72 3319
Provisions from employee benefits (10.71} 1240
Interest income from investments {336.18) {79.51)
‘Gain on sale of investments {203.28) (313.81}
Employee stock option plan expenses 1119 -
Provisions and write-offs 1,242.28 2,758.09
Operating profit before working capital changes 8%0.30 45713
Changes in working capital:
Increase in trade payables 10.78 -
increasse in other liabilities 182.47 133689
Increase in loans and advances (8,021.22) (6,661.63)
Decrease in other assels {103.60} {7.76}
Cash used in operations (7.051.28) {4,875.37)
Dlirect taxes paid {370.61) (44254)
Met cash used in operations {7,611.8%} (5,317.92)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipments / intangible assets {76.85) {67.96}
Proceads from disposal of praperty, plant and equipments 193 42.65
Investments in Pass Through Certificates (PTC's) - {2,410.38)
Proceeds from redemption of FTC's 693.83 -
Purchase of mutual funds {60.805.00) {99,550.¢1)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 61,008.28 93.563.83
Movement in margin money depasits [net) 2419 (8L19)
Interest income from investments 325.50 68464
Net cash generated frem { {used) int investing activities 1,163.88 (2.134.42)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of share capital {net of share issue expenses) 5,161.75 2,001.40
Proceeds From fong-term borrowings 14,000.00 18,500.00
Repayments of long-term borrowings (18,732.46) {11,454.81)
Proceeds/ (repayments} of short-term borrowings (net) {500.00) 500.00
Net cash generated from financing activities 2,929.28 9,506.59
Met inereasef{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents {3,512.73) 2,054.%6
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,900.40 1,846.14
Cash and rash equivalents at end of the year {refer note 1} 387.68 3,900.40
G
/f." )
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Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2013

{All amaunts in X Lakhs, except far share data or as otherwise stated)

Note 1

Cash and cash equivalents includes
Cash in hand

With banks in current accouris

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

277 6.20
384.91 3,594.20
387.68 3,900.40

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Férm registration no.: GO01076N /ING00013

Wit esd

Partner )
Membership No.: 213356

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 8 May 2009

For znd on behalf of e Board of Directors of

Jain Sonsfninlease Limited

Vin&&hé Rai

Chairman

DIN: 006(1&290

Kiran Agarwal Todi
Chief Finandcial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: & May 2019

Managing Director
DIN: 08268336

lirag Desai
Company Secretary



Jair Sons Finlease Limited
Sumumary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
fAll amounis in T Lakhs, excepl for share data or 25 stherwise stated}

Note 1 Company overview

Jain Sens Finjease Limited (“the Company”) is a company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Effective 7 Jantary
1999, the Company s registered as a non-deposit taking, Nen-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”) under the riles and regulations framed
by the Reserve Bank of India ("the RBI”}. The Company is engaged in lhe business of ]endmg The Company is part of a Systemically
Imnportant Non-Deposit taking NBFC group.

Nate 1.1 Surnmary of significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting and preparation of financial staiements

The financial statement has been prepared on accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the accounting standards netified pursuant
to the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) {the “Rules™) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013(" fhe Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended) and other recognized accounting practices and
policies generally accepted in India including the requirements of the Act (*Indian GAAP”} and guidelines issued by the RBi as applicable to
non-banking financial companies. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis except for interest on non-performing
loan assets which have been accounled on cash basis based on RBI rules. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the
Company and ara consistent with those used in the previcus year.

All asscts and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current a5 per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criloria sel out
in the Schedule I 1o the Act. Based on the nature of work, the Coinpany has ascertained its operating cycle as up fo twelve mionths for the
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and Habilities,

Note 1.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial staternents in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relaling to conlingent lizhilities as at the reporting date of the financial statements
and amounts of income and expenses. Examples of sich estimates include the pravision for doubtful loans, employee benefits, income taxes,
recognition of deferred fux assets, classification of assets and Habilities into current and nor-current and useful tife of fived assets,

Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could materially diffor
from those estiznates. Any revisior b accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.

Nuote 1.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the collectability is reasonably
assured.

* Interest-on Ioans is recognised on accrual basis, except in the case of non-performing assets, where interest is recogmised upon realisation, in
accordance with the directives of the Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non - Deposit laking Company and Deposit
{aking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {”the Prudenitiat Norms”). Additional interest and other charges for delfays in payments is
recognized as income only when it is certain that the amounts will be cellected from the customers.

* Loan processing fecs is accounted on the basis of agreement with the customers,

» Profit / loss on the sale of investments is computed on the basis of average cost of investments and recognized at the time of sale /

» Interest income is recognized on a Bme proportion basis taking into accourit the amount outstanding and the rate applicable,

» Income from other financial services is recognised when the services are rendered and related costs are incuzred.




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{All amounis in T Lakhs, except for share datia or as otherwise stated)

Note L% Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and depreciation f amostisation

Fixed assets are carried at the cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impaicment losses, if any. The cest comprises the
purchase price, freight, non-refundable taxes and duties, and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
its intended use. Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are staled at their estimated net realisable values or net book values,
whichever is lower.

Depreciation is provided using the straightline method at the rates estimated by the Management which coincides with the rates specified in
Schedule T1 of the Act. The table below summuarises usefut lives of various category of fixed asseis:

Lives
Property, plant and equipments
Furnituze and fixtures 14
Office equipments 5
Computer & peripherals 3
Intangible assets
Computer software 3

Naote 1.5 Provision on perfontning and non-performing assets

Assets are identified and categorised into Standard, Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss category bused on the guidelines and directions issued
by RBI, detalted ag follows:

Asset Classification Period of Over Dac

Standard assels Mot overdue or everdue for fess than 9 days.

Non-performing assets {NFA) Orverdue for 90 days or mare.

-Sub-standard assets An asset that has been classified as NPA for a period not exceeding

12 months or an asset where the terms of agreement regarding
interest and/ or principal have been renegotiated or rescheduled.

- Doubtfu} assets Sub-standard assets for more than 12 months,
- Loss essets . Assets that are identified ax loss assets by the Company or internal
auditor or external auditor or by the RBL

Provision o loan porifolio
Assel classification Fercentage of Provision
Standard assets 040%
Sub-standard assets 10%
Doubtfnl assets
“Unsecured 108%
-Secured
Up'to one year 20%
One to three yeass 30%
More than three years 50%
Laoss assels 100%

Provision on restructured accourils classified as sub-standard rdvances is made at 10%

Note 1.6 Investments

Investments that 2re readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments, All other
investiments are classified as Jong-tern investments,

The Company purchases credit rated asset poals from banks / nan-banking finance companies by way of pass through certificates issued by
special purpose vehicle. Such transactions are accounted as investmends as per Accounting Standard 13 "Accounting for Investments” and the
provisions for the said investments are created in accordance with the policy meationed in note 1.5.

Cutrent investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are

carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the long-term
investments.
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Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information
{All amounts in 2 Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Note 1.7 Employee benefitx

All short ke employee benefils are accounted on andiscounted basis during the accounting year based on services rendered by employecs.
Retirement benefit inn the form of a provident Fund is a defined contribuition scheme and the contributions aze charged ta the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no oiher abligations other than the contribution
payable to the respective authorities.

Gratuity is a post-employment defined benefit obligation. The liabRity recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date, togelfier with adjustments for past service cosis. An independent actuary, using the
projecied unit credil method calculates the defined benefit obligation annually. Actuarial gains of losses arising from expetience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are credited or charged to the Statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses
arise.

Note 1.8 Taxation

Current tax
Provision for current income-tax is recognized in accordance with the provisions of Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 and is made annually based
om the Lax HzbRlity after taking eredit for tax allowances and exemptions,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax charges or credits reflect the tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period. The
deferred tax charges or credits and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are mcognized using the tax rates that have been
enacied ot substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty
that the assets can be realized in the futuze periods; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation
laws, deferred tax asscts are recognized only if there is a virfual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are foviewod at
each balance sheet date and writters down or written-up 1o reflect the amount that is reasonably/vistually certain (as the case may be) to be
realized,

At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recagnises unrecognised doferred tax asseis to the
extent that it hay become reasonably certain or virtually cerlain, as the cage may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Mate 1.9 Impairment of assefs

The catrying amounds of assets are reviewed at cach Balance sheet date if there is any indication of impainnend based on intornal/external
faciors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the greatar of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash Aows are discounted to their
present value at the weighted average cost of capital. After impainnent, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset
over its remaining useful life.

Note 1.18 Pravision and contingencies

Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as & result of 2 past cvent and when it is probable that an cutflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted 1o their
present value and are determined based on management’s best estimate required to setile the obligation af the balance sheet date. These are

raviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. A disclosure of a contingent liability is made
when there is a possible or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an owtflow of resources.

Note 1.11 Borrawing cost

All borrowing cesls are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing cost consist of iflerest and other costs that the Company incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Note 1.12 Leases

Where the lessor effectively retains all risk and benefits of ownership of the leased items, such leases are classified as operating lease,
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss on a straight fine basis.
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Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Sumnary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated}

Note 1.13 Eamings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share are caleulated by dividing the net profit (loss) for the year attributable to equity sharaholiders by the weighted
averape number of equity shares ountstanding during the year. For the purpuse of calculating diluted earnings per equity share, the net profit
or loss for the year atiributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusied
for the effecis of alt dilutive potential equity shazes.

Note 1.14 Employess stock option scheme

Measurement and disclosure of the employee share-based payment plans is made in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for
Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the Instifute of Chartered Accountants of India, Compensation expense is amortised over the
vesting period of the option on a straight line basis.

Nate 1.15 Foreign cmmency transactions

Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded i the reporting cusrency, by applying to the forefgn cumency amount the exchange rate befween
the reporting currency and the foreign cutrency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items ace teparted using the closing rate, Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in 2 foreign currency are reporied nsing the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and son-monetary ilems which are
carsied at fair value or other similar valeation denominated in a foreign currency are reporiéd using the exchange rates that existed when the
values were determined.

Exchange diffurences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on the reporting of monetary items at rates different Fromm those at which
they wera initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or 2§ expense in the year
in which they arise.

Note 1.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise of cash at bank and on hand and include short-term investments with an
original maturity of three months or Iess.

NN




Jair Sons Finlease Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, except for share data or as atherwise stated)

Nate 2.1 Share capital

Authorised
Eqguity shares of Rs 10-each

0.001 % Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

{"CCPS™ of 120 each

0.001% Series B1 CCPS of 2100 each
0.001 % Series B2 CCPS of 7100 pach
0.001% Series C CCPS of 1§ cach
0.001% Series [ QCPS of #19 each

Issued, subsaribed and paid up
Equity shares of ¥1( each

0.0 % Series BI OCPS of 1100 each
0.001% Series B2 OCTS of T10H} each
0.001% Series C CCPS of 310 each
0.001% Series D CCPS of 10 zach

31 March 20193 31 March 2018

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
4,14,00,0041 4,340.00 2,60,00,000 2.600.00
20,00,000 400,00 20,060,600 40000
25,4004 2.500.00 25,000,000 250000
3,060,000 10090 3,00,000 300.00
60,040,000 &60.00 60,00,008 /0050
54,00,000 560.00 56,600,000 560.00
B3,500.80 6,960.00
2,21,36,447 2,213.64 1,140,42,437 1,104.24
- - 24.99,948 2,499.95
- - 3,050,000 300.060
58,49,966 585.00 58,49,966 585.00

26,27,724 26277 - -
3,063.41 4,489.19

L The reconciliation of the nomber of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 is set

wat below

Equity Shares of T10 each

Balance at {he beginning of the year
Add: Allotted during the year
Add: Converted during the year
Halance at the end of the year

0.801% Series B1 CCPS of T10d each
Balance at the beginning of the year
Less: Converted during the year
Balanee at the end of the year

0.001% Series B2 CCPS of ¥108 eack
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Allotted during the year

Lass: Converted during the year
Balance at the end of the year

0.001% Series C CCPS of ¥10 cach
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Allotted during the year
Balance at the end of the year

0.001% Series D CCPS of 710 each
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Allotted during the year
Balance at the end of the year

NN

31 March 2014 31 March 2018
Mo, of shares Amaunt Mo. of shares Amount
1.10.42.437 1,104.24 1,09,69348 L0156.93
57,35,260 57353 73,080 731
53,058,750 535.87 - -
2,21,36,447 2,213.6¢ 1,10,42,437 1,104,284
31 March 2619 31 March 2018
Nuo, of sharcs Amount ‘Mo, of shares Amount
24,99,948 2,499.95 24,99,948 2,499.95
(24,99,948) {2.499.95) - -
- - 24,99,948 249995
31 March 201% 31 March 2018
Ma. of shares Amount No, of shares Amount
3,00,000 200.00 3,00,000 300,00
(3,00,000% {300.60) - -
- - 3,060,080 300.00
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
No, of shares Amaount Na. of shaires Amount
58,439,966 585.00 58,49,966 58500
58,45,.966 885.00 58,409,566 585.00
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Mo, of shares Amount Mo. of shares Amount
26,217,724 26277 - -
26,27,724 262.77 - -




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Semmary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information
{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

if. Shareholders holding more than five percent of paid-up equity share capital

31 March 219 31 March 2018

Equity shares No.of shares % of holding  No. of shares % of holding.

Infellectual Capital Advisary Services Privale Limited {"ICAP"} 51,726,693 A% 59,92,995 54.34%
Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited (" AVMSY) 04,15,853 089% 8,480,593 T97%
COIN Mauritius * 47,84,689 2161% NA NA
Triodos Custody B.V.INZ - Triodos Fair Share Fund ("TCTESE") 1131324 511% 9,87,784 A95%
Triodos SICAV 1I-Triodos Microfinance Fund {TSTME") 11,31.323 5i1% 9,87,783 B.95%
DWM (International) Mauritius LTD {{DWM7) 12,62,647 570% 9,75.566 883%
Michael &r Sugan Dell Foundation* NA MA 9,69,525 R78%

* Equity shares held by Michael & Susan Dell Foundation as at 31 March 201% and by ON Mauritius as at 31 March 2018, were tess than five
percent of the paid-up equity share eapitat of the Company, hence the disclosure is not applicable.

iii. Shareholders holding more than five percent of CCPS

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Equity shares Nu. of shares % of holding  No.of shares % of holding
0.001% Series Bl CCPS of 100 each
ON Mauritius - - 24,99,948 100.60%
0.001%: Series B2 CCPS of 2103 -each
WM - - 15046060 50,00%
TSTMF - - 75,000 25.00%
TCIFSF - - 75,000 25.00%
0.001% Series C CCPS af T10 each
On Mauritius 17,220,578 2941% 17,320,578 29.41%
Pwid 0,64,694 35.29% 20,64,694 35.29%
TSTMF 10,32.347 17.65% 10,32,347 17.65%
TCTESE 1032347 17465% 1032347 17.65%
0.001% Series D CCPS of ¥10 each
AVMS 11,47,052 43.65% - -
TCTESE 3.70,168 1409% - -
TSTMF 3,70,168 14.09% - -
AVM 740,336 28.17% - -

iv. Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having 2 par vatue of 210 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indfan rupess. The dividend proposed by the Board of Divectors, if any, is subject to the
approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing general meeiing,

fn the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enbitied to seceive remaining assets of the Company in
proportion of their shareholding.

o
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v. Terms and rights attached to preference shares

Terms and rights attached to Series B CCPS of T100 each

The Company had issued 2,499,948 Series Bt CCPS and 300,000 Series B2 CQCPS of face value TIO0 each fully paid-up at par {collectively
Series B CCPS) on 18 February 2014. The Series B CCPS carried dividend: of 0.001% per annum, In addition to the Fixed dividend, each CCPS
swas entitled to participate along with the equity shares in any dividends declared by the Company on the equity shares, as if such OCPS has
been converted inte equity shares immediately pries to declaration of dividend by the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of the issue, Series B CCPS has been converted into 5,358,750 equity shate of T10 each fully paid-up ata premium of
M2 75 pec share.

Terms and rights attached to Series C CCPS of 710 each

‘The Company had allotled 5,849,996 non-cumalative CCPS of face value 210 cach fully paid-up at & premium of ¥77.18 per Series CCCFS on
6 May 2016. The Series C CCPS carry dividend of 0.001% per annem. fo addition to the fixed dividend, each CCPS shall be entitled to
pariicipate along with the equity shares in any dividends declared by the Company on the equity shares, as if such CCPS has been converted.
into equity shares immediately prior to declaration of dividend by the Company.

Tn arcordance with e terms of the Shareholders Agreement, 1 (one) Series C CCPS shall be automatically canverted into I{onc) equity shaze
of 710 each af the end of 8th year from the date of issuance or on cccusrence of an initial public offer. In the event of liquidation of the
Cornpany before conversion of CCPS, the holders uf CCPS will hiave prierity over equity shares in the payment of dividend and repayment of
capital.

Terms and rights attached to Series D CCES of €10 cach

The Company has alotted 2,627,724 0.001% Series D CCPS of T10 each on sights basis, an 8 April 2018, in the ratio of 1 {one) 0.601% Seties D
CCPS of £10 each for every 4 equity shares (on fully diluted basis) of T10 each at a premiwm of ¥77.18 per §.001% Series P OCPS. In addition
to the fixed dividend, each CCPS shall bie entitled to participate along with the equity shares in any dividends declazed hy the Company on
the eguity shares, as if such CCPS has been converted into equity shares immediately prior to declaration of dividend by the Company.

In accordance with the termis of the Shareholders Ag t, 1 (one} Series D CCPS shall be automatically converted inte 1{onc) equity share
of 210 each at the end of 8th year from the date of jssuance or on occurrence of an initial public offer. In the event of liguidation of the
Company before conversion of CCPS, the holdess of CCPS will have priorily over equity shares in the payment of dividend and repayment of
capital

vi. Issue of bonus shares ot buy back of shares

The Company has not issued any bonus shares not there has been any buy back of shares during five years immediately preceding 31 March
2019,

vii. Shares issued for a consideration other than in cash

The issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital as at 31 March 2013 includes Mil {31 March 2018: 150,000) equity shares of 710 each
fully paid-up, allotted during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date, on exercise of the optiohs granted nnder the
employee stock option plan wherein past consideration was received in the form of employee services.

viii. Shares reserved for issuance to emplayzes
At its meeting held on 10 Decembee 2012, the Board of Directors {"the Board™) had approved allotment of 841,889 equity shares of 210 each to
employees of the Company under a share based employee compensation plan.

Of Ihese, in the earlier years, the Board had allotted 783,085 equity shares to identified employees on private placement basis and the balance
57,800 equity shares has been terminated subsequent to the implementation of Intellegrow Employees Stock Option Plan - 2018,
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ix, Employce Stock Option Flan

The Company in it's Extra-Ordinary General Maeting held on 38 October 2018, has approved to creale, grant, issue and allot zt any time in
one or more tranches to is employees, selected on the basis of criteria decided by the Board or the Nomination and Remuneration Commiltee
of the Board under the Emplayee Stock Optivn Schieme - Intellegrow Emplayees Stock Option Plan - 2018 (ESOP-2018), such number of stock
options convertible into Equity Shares of the Company, in one or more tranches, not exceeding 727,068 equity shares of face value of Rs.10
each, at such price and on such terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by the Doard or Nomination and Remuneration
Conunittee of the Board in accordznce with ghe ESOP-2618, and al! applicable provisions of the law and/or guidelines issued by the relevant
authority. Consequent to the above, the Company has granted stock options to employees of the Company, details of which are disclosed in
the table below:

Particulars Intellegrow Employees Stock Option Plan - 2018
No. of ophions granted during the year 275,000
Optiosns vested during the year Nit
Options exercised / lapsed: Wit
No, of ontstanding options as at end of the year 2,753,000
Weighted average exercise price 5227 per option
Expected life { in yoars) 481

In accordance with the guidance note on “Accounting fer Employee Share based payments”, the excess, if any, of the market price of the
sharc, preceding the date of grant of the option wnider ESOPs over the exercise price of the oplion is amortised on a straighf-line basis over lhe
vesting period,

In the apinion of the management, the cost of share based payments under fair value method is not expected to be significantly different from
the cost determined under intrinsic value method, the proforma disclosures rgarding impact of fair value methed on the reported net profit
and earnings per equity share is not considered necessary.

x. Share application money pending alfotment

Share applicatior money pending aHotment as at 31 March 2018, represents the subscription money received from the shareholders against
the rights issue of 0.001% Series D (CCPS of 130 each at a premium of 277.18 per .001% Series D CCPS. Sabsequent to 31 March 2018, the
rights issue was dosed and the Company had allotted 2,627,724 0.001 % Series D CCPS of T10 each on & April 2018,

Note 2.2 Reserves and surplus

51 March 2019 3t March 2018

Securities premiunt

Balance at the beginning of the year 467276 4,648.40
Add; Premium received on allobment of shares 2,715.62 2436
Less: Share issue expenses {159.36} -

Balance at the end of the year 1323202 467276

Statutory reserve fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 238.70 23870
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and boss 39.69 -
Balance at the end of the year 27839 238.70

Share options outstanding account
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Additions on account of the oplons granted during the year 11.19 -

Balance at the end of the year 11.1% -

Deficit in the statement of profit and loss

Balance at the beginning of the year {1,057.96) 937.87
Add: Profit /{loss) for the year 18599 (1.595.83)
iess: Transfersed to statutory reserve fund (35.69} -
Balance at the end of the year (908,65} {1,057.94)
1261294 3,853.51
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Note 23 Long-term borrowings

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Secared

Debentures

- Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Iebentures {NCDs) {refer note (a)} 7.272.00 727200

- Rated, Unlisted, Redeemable, NCDs {refer note (b}} 1,197.91 1,666.67

Term loans

- From ofhers {refer note {c}} 13,959.21 15,222.91
22,479,112 24,161.58

Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings {refer note 2.8) 8,709.51 8.798.91
13,719.61 15362.67

Note {a)

The Company had allotted 4,000 NCDs of face value of 21 each fully paid-up at par on 16 November 2016, N(Ds are securcd by way of
hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carries interest rate of 13.25% per annum. The NCDs are redeemable at par in
two equal instalments on 17 May 2021 and 17 November 2021.

The Company had aliotted 1,330 NCDs of face value of 1 each fully paid-up at par oo 16 June 2016. NCDs ave secured by way of
hypothacation of specified book debits/loan receivables and rarsies interest rate of 13.25% per annum. The NCDs are redeemable at par in
two equal instafments on 14 December 2020 and 14 June 2021.

The Company had allatted 1,942 NCDs of face value of 11 each fully paid-up at discount of .81 per debenture on 8 October 2014, NCDs are
sccured by way of hy pothecation of specified book debis/loan receivables and carries interesi rate of 13.5% per annum. Interest 1ate shalt be
reset after a period of 36 months from the date of allotment. The NCDs are redcemable at par on 8 October 2020, with call and put option
exercisable at the end of 36 months. Since the Company and the debenture holder have not exercised the option, the tenor for the NCD has
been resel to 8 Gotaber 2020, with interest rate revised (o 12.5% per annum.

Note (b)
The Company has aliotted 130 NCDs of face value of 110 each fully paid-up at par on 29 August 2018, NCDs are secured by way of

hypothecation of specified boak debts/loan receivables and carries intérest rate of 11.311% per annum, which are repayable in periodic
instalments ranging from 3833 to ¥41.67 till August 2021.

The Company had allotted 2,500 NCDs of face value of 31 each fully paid-up 2t par cn 11 September 2017. NCDs were secured by way of
hypothecation of specified book debis/loan reteivables and carries interest rate of 12.80% per annum, which was repayable in equal monthly
instalmenis over the period of 18 months. The NCDY's have been repaid during the year.

Note {¢}
Loans from others are secured by way of hypothecation of book debts created out of the loan amount. Further loans amounting to 33,911.08

{31 March 2018; 74.827.41) are also secured by way of pledge of cash/fixed deposits. Interest rates on these loans ranges from 11.11% to
14.50% per annum (31 March 2018: 11.00% to 15.18% per annum}.

Repayment scheduie of term foans

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Up to I year £,215,93 713224
2te 5 years 5,740.72 §,090.68
13,960.65 1522292
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Mote 2.8 Other long-term liabilitics

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash collateral from customers 319.80 975.87
Advance from customers 31748 24823
43728 1,224.10
Note 2.5 Long-term provisions
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Provision for gratuity 16.98 26.64
Contingent provision against sfandard assels 36,78 306.57
Provision
« On sub-standard assets 1200 4100
- Oninvestments - 7.68
65.76 105.8%
MNote 2.6 Short-term borrowings
31 March 2019 31 March 20138
Secured
Loan from banks - 50000
- 500.00

Loan from banks cuistanding as at 31 March 2018, was secuzed by hypothecation of book debis created out of the loan amount and carried
interest linked to bank’s prime lending rate plus 3.75% per annumn and was repayable in 12 monthiy instalments from the date of drawdown.

Note 2.7 Trade payables

Based on the information available with the Company, there are no dues outslanding in yespect of micra and small enterprises 25 at 31 March
2019 and 31 Masck 2018. Further, no interest during the year has been paid or payable in respect thereof. The above disclosures has beent

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Note 2.5 Cther current liabilities

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Current malutities of long-term borrowings {refer note 2.3} 8,709.51 8,798.91
Interest accrued bot not due MTAT 393.79
Statutory liabilities 41.83 &0.20
Cash collateral from customers 814.67 50095
Advance from customers and refundable reimbursements 975.37 476.78
Oither liabilities 14301 12433
11,032.86 10,354.96
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Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

{All amounts in 2 Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Nate 2.9 Shart-term provisions

Provision for gratuity

Contingent provision zgainst standard assets
Provision

- On sub-standard assets

-On investments

Note 2,10 Property, plant and equipment

Gress block

As at 1 April 2017
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 March 2018
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 March 201%
Arcuraulated depreciation
Up ko1 April 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals

Up to 31 March 2018
Charge for the year
Disposals

Up te 31 March 2019

Met hlack
As at 31 March 2019
As at 31 March 2018

Note 2,11 Intangible agsets

Gross block

As at 1 Aprif 2017
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 March 2018
Additions

Blisposals

As at 31 March 204%
Accnmulated depreciztion
Up to 1 Aprl 2017
Charge for the year
Up to 31 March 2018
Chazge for the year
Up to 31 March 2019

Net block
As a 31 March 2019
As 2t 31 March 2018

Ny

31 March 2819 31 March 2018

005 110

102,14 8152

16.92 83.97

5,87 196

29998 16855

Office Furniture and
Computers equipment Fixtures Total
42,15 2297 54.87 119.99
733 12,84 16808 18825
{1.42) (6.53} {54.57) {62.82}
48.06 29.28 168.08 24542
828 199 0.87 11.14
{7.13) {0.65} - {7.78}
492 3062 168.95 248.78
31.48 1L.77 15.07 58.32
923 485 14.92 2901
{1.07) 310 {16.00) {20.17}
39.64 1353 13.99 £7.16
T3 A.73 16.93 234K}
{5.29} {0.57} - (5.86)
35.69 16.69 30.92 84.30
1252 13.93 138.03 16444
8.42 15.75 154.0% 178.26
Software Total

7482 7.82

4812 4512

55.94 55.94

&5.70 £5.70

12564 121.64

343 143

417 4.17

7.60 7.60

3372 33.72

£1.32 41,32

80.32 80.32

4834 4834




Jain Sens Finlease Limited
Summary of significant acceunting policies and other explanatory information
{Alf amounts in T Lakhs, except for share data or as atherwise stated}

MNote 212 Non-current Investments

31 March 2019 31 March 2013
Units Amount Units Amount

Investment in Pass Through Certificates ([TC's) (Unquoted, non-trade}
Series A% PTCs of Cedar [nclusive Finance Trust 2 - - 6,58,90.018 658.90
Series AZ FTCs 'of Vivriti Tatooine B03 2018 - - 3,13,09,579 31310
Series A2 PTCs of Vivriti Helm 002 2018 - - 2.54,70,197 284,70
Series A2 PTCs of Vivribh Trebor 110 2017 - - 1,92,84,382 19284
Series A2 PTCs of Vivrili Pereiva 001 2018 - - 1,65,51.536 165.52
Setries A2 PTCs of Vivriti Morris 002 2618 - - 1,17,64,806 117.65
Series A2 PTCs of Vivriti Krishi 002 2018 - - LASS1472 105.51
Series A2 PTCs of Vivriti Naboo D02 2018 - - 58,599,527 5899
Series A2 PTCs of Vivrili Tisng $03 2018 - - 43,55,859 1356

- - 1%,20,77,368 1,94.77

{Aggregate value of unquoted investments - INiE (31 March 2018 - 11,920.77))

Note 2,13 Deferred tax assets (net)

3% March 2019 31 March 2018

Defeired tax Hability

On property, plant and equipment {283} -
Ereferred bax assets

On provision for standard and sub - standard assels 10354 -
On others 1608 -

11479 -

As at 31 March 2019, Company has not recognised possible deferred tax ascet of 2530.09 (31 March. 2018: 2627.50) on brought forward losses.

Note 2.14 Long-term loans and advances

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Loeans to customers

Considered good
Standard assets
Secured 4,961.40 3,73713
Unsecured 423412 3,90440
Sub-standard assets
Secured - -
Unsecured 120.00 410.00
%,31552 805153
Others {Unsecured, considered good)
Collateral security given to lenders 55.06 317
Security depaesils 53.58 50.98
Advanca tax {net of provision) 143845 923,92
1,542.0% 1,004.07
10,862.61 8.055.60
Loans lo customers include dues from following companies, in which director of the Company is/was a directoz
Closing balance Maximum eatstanding during
the year
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Arohan Financiat Services Limited {"Arohan™)* 4.50 7575 27575 581.09
Connect India E-Commerce Services Private Limited - - - 115.04

“Note : Pursuant to the approval received from the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench. IntelleCash Microfinanca
Network Company Private Limited (" IntetleCash®) has been merged with the Arohan w.e.f 1 April 2017 {*appointed date”)




Jain Sens Finlease Limited

Surmary of significant accounting poticies and other explanatory information
{AH amounts in ¥ Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated}

Note 215 Other non-current asseis

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Fixed deposits with bank (with maturity of more than12 monthsy* 10116 14583
101.16 14583
*Fixed deposits are on lien against term foans and unutitized overdraft timit
Note 2.16 Current investments
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Units Amount Units Armourtt
Unquoted, non-teade
Saries AT PTCs of Vivriti Matic (10 2017 - - 2.14,98.929 21499
Series AZ PTCs of Vivrit Kenobi 002 2078 - - 1,92,64.967 19265
Series AZ PTCs of Trarit Viviti Capitat 2018 - - 81,96488 8196
Serics A3 PTCs of Cedar Inclusive Finance Trust2 6,58,90,010 £58.90 - -
Series A2 PTCs of Vivriti Tatooine 003 2018 3,13,00,57% 313.10 - -
Series AZ PTCs of Vivriti Helm 002 2018 2,64,70,197 264.70 - -
Series A2 PTCs-of Vivriti Trebor 010 2017 1,53,69,468 163.6% - -
Series A2 PTCs of Viviitl Pereira 001 2018 51,47,914 5148 - -
Series AZ PTCs of Vivriti Morris 002 2018 56,60,618 56.61 - -
Series A2 TTCs of Vivriti Krishi 002 2018 10551472 0551 - -
Series A2 PTCs of Viveiti Naboo (02 2018 58,99,527 59.00 - -
Series A2 PTCs of Vivriti Timo 003 2018 43,55 859 43.56 - -
17,16,54,644 1,756.55 4,89 60,384 48960
{Aggregate value of unquoted investments - 11,716.55 {31 March 2018 - %485.60))
Mate 2.17 Cash and bank balances
31 March 2015 31 March 2018
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash om hand 277 6.20
Balances with banks in current accounts 3584.91 3,894.20
387.68 3,500.40
Other bank balances
Fieed deposits with banks® 599.65 57917
95733 157957
*Fixed deposits are on lien against term loans and unatitized overdraft Hmit
Note 2.18 Short-term loans and advances
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Loan to customers
Considered good
Standard asscts
Secured 12,604.41 5,608,70
Unsecured 12,931.31 10,770.51
Sub.Standard assets
Secured 82507 48380
Unsecured 51692 356.75
2687271 21,219,326
Others (Unsecured, Considered good)
Collateral sccurity given to lenders 115,00 157.14
Recetvable for services 6.34 26,20
Prepaid expenses 3150 1788
Loan and advances to employees 918 15.16
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for valne to be received 0.60 3.12
16262 23250
27.040.33 21,451.86




Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, except fov share data or as otherwise skated)

MNote 2,19 Ciher cugrent azsets

Interest receivablc on [oans to customers
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Other recoivables

Mote 2.26 Revenae from operations

Interest income from :
Loans to customers
Ohhers

Leoan processing fees

Loan syndication fees

{Others

Note 221 Other income

Interest income {rom investments and fixed deposits
Gain on sale of inveshnerits

Bad debts recovered

Miscellaneous income

Liahilities no longer required writlen back

Note 222 Entplayee benefit expense

Salaries, bonus and Incontives
Contributions to provident fund
Gratuity

Employee stock option plan expenses
Staff welfare expenses

Note 2.23 Finance costs

Interest expensc
Processing fee
Bank charges

_(\N_

31 March 2019 51 March 2018
382,01 279.18
13.03 0.35
12.0% 1128
467.09 250,51
31 March 2019 31 March 20168
4.941.95 4,463.39
763 18.88
43414 35961
L53 35,60
6228 77.73
544753 495921
31 March 2019 31 March 20%8
336.18 7951
203,28 313.81
146.50 95.44
3,42 12.84
7.01 -
£96.3% 504.60
31 March 2019 3% March 2018
667.63 690.44
3560 3739
- 12.40
11.19 -
2459 14.93
739.61 755.16
31 March 2019 31 Maxrch 2016
3,174.60 3,184 87
45,08 11225
34.76 49,38
3,254.44 3,346 50




Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information
{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, except for share data oz as otherwise stated}

Note 2.24 Provisions and write-offs

Contingent provision against standard assets
Provision for sub-standard and non-performing assets

Provision on investments
Loans wrillen-off

Note 2.25 Other ¢xpenses

Rent

Repaiss and maintenance
Office expenses

Electricity expenses

Legal and professional foes
Rates and taxes
Coaununication experise
Travelling and conveyance
Corporate social responsibility expenses
Director sitting fees
Printing and stationery
Payments to the auditor

- Btahrtory audit fees

- Tax audit fees

- Limited review fees
Advertisement exp
Sourcing and servicing fees
Mizcellaneous expenses

Note 226 Earning per share

Net profit/ (loss) after tax as per statement of prafit and [oss

Less: Proposed dividend to the CCPS

Net profit after tax altributable to the equity share holders - for basic EPS
Net profit after tax attributable to the equity share holders - for diluted EPS
Weighted number of equity shares for earnings per share

{a} For basic eamings per shaze*
{b) Por diluled earninigs per share*

Earnings per equity share - Basic {in %}
Earnings per equity share - Diluted {in I)
Neminal vatue per share (in'Y)

*The company has reported fosses in the previous year and kence CCPS were anti-dilulive in nature

Note 2.27 Segment reporting

31 March 2039 31 March 2018
26.34 7542
7295 70.14
Q7 9.64
1,148,276 2.652.89
1,242.28 2,756,09
31 March 2615 31 March 2018
10153 105.09
357 .
46,33 4565
946 1871
214.88 14233
54.94 61.92
1522 252
56.36 7709
- 1330
16.60 13460
345 672
13.00 1250
1.50 150
5.50 350
2469 165
157.16 -
- 18t
72119 524.08
31 March 2619 31 March 2018
18359 (,9958%)
0.0E -
188.98 (L595.83)
18898 (1,995.63)
13725495 1,014,002
25548327  1,10,14002
161 (1812
078 (1812)
10.00 1000

Based on the Company's business model and considering the internal financial reporting to the management, “Lending” has been considered
23 the ondy reportable segment, Further, all operations are based only in India. Hence, no separalc financial disclosures have been provided

for segment reporting.

i\N




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{AH amounts in T Lakhs, except for share data or as-atherwise stated)

Note 225 Emplayee Benelits

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, according to which every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a
graluily on separation at 15 days salary (Jast drawn salary} for edch completed year of service afler deduction of necessary taxes uplo a
maximum limit of $2,000,000, The scheme is not funded. The following tables summaerize the components of net employee benefit expense
recognized in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity ability as required under A515-

Employee Bencfits:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
L. Assumptions:
Discount rate 750% 725%
Salary escalation rate 2.00% 5.00%
Attrition rate 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement age (years) 60.01 60.00

31 March 2019 3% March 2018
H. Table showing change in benefit obligation:
Liability at the beginning of the year- 774 1535
Interest cost 2.08 L1t
Current service cost 672 9.11
Benefits paid {3.70) -
Actuarial {gain) / loss {15.81) 217
Liability at the end of the year 17.03 27.74
HI. Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of assets
Present value of funded obligations as at year end (i7.03) 27.74)
Fair value of plan assets as at year end - -
Funded liability recognised in the Balance sheet (17.03} {27.74)
IV, Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss:
Cuzsrent service cost 6.72 131
Interest cost 208 511
Actuarial (gain)/loss {15.81) 218
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss {7.81) 1240
V. Balance shect bifurcation:
Carrent liability 0.05 110
MNon-current liability 1658 26.64
Amount recognised in balance sheet 17.03 2774
VI Experience adjustment:
Experience adjustment (gain}/ loss for the plan liabilities {15.54} {031)
Vil. Amoants for the current and previous periods are as follows:

31 March 2019 31 March 201 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Defined benefit obligation 17.03 W 15.35 B.52 310
Deficit {17.03) {(37.74) (15.35) {B.52) {510}
Experience gain for plan Liability (15.54) (031) {4.93) - -

WY




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and ather expianatory information
(All amoants in T Lakhs, except for share data or s otherwise stated}

Nete 229 Operating lease

The Company has entered into agreements for taking its office premises uruder leave and license arrang 3. These ag i5 are for
tenures between 12 months and 36 months and are renewable by mutual corsent.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Eease rent for the year 101.53 109.09
- Within 1 year 100.73 100.92
- After T year but before 5 years 8.50 9631
- After S years - -

Note 2.38 Income [ expenditure in foreign currency

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Incame in foreign cumency
Miscelfaneous income (service fees) 15.63 1732

Expenditure in foreign cumrency
Travel and conveyance 6.44 591

Maote 231 Urhadged foreign currency exposure
The disclosures pertaining to unhedged foreign currency exposure ate as follows:

3t March 2019 31 March 2018
Foreign Amount in ¥ Foreign Amount in ¥
Currency Currency
Receivable s 9.97 Usn 167

Rote 232 Contingent liabilities

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

(i} The Company had filed for compounding of offences relating to non-compliances with Section 293 and
297 of the Compianies Act, 1956. The Management is of the view that Tribunal will Ieok at the matiers
favourably and the impact of settlement on financial statements will not be malerial. - -

{ii} The Company had filed appeals with relating to the demand raised by assessing officer for the financial
year 201314 arising on account of disallowances of certain expenses. The Management is of the wiew that
such disaflowances are not sustainable and the matter will be decided in favour of the Company. 372 3272

Nuote 233 Foreign direct investment

The Company has teceived foreign direct investinent under automatic route as prescribed under the Consolidated Foreign Direct Investment
Poticy of the Government of India, which, in view of the management and based on opinion of an independent counsel, is in accordance with
the extant guidelines notified by the RBL

Note 234 Loans sanctioned but not disbursed as at 31 March 2012 amouats to X150 (31 March 2(118: 1616)

Mote 235 Loans te customers

Loan o customers has been classified in accordance with the directives issued by the KBI vide MNon-Banking Financial Company ~
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Depasit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Birections, 2016 (the 2016 Directions’),
read with accounting policy mentioned in note 1.5 above. The necessary provisions as per REI norms have been made, The details are as
follows:

Loan outstanding Provision
Asset classification As at As at tipto Paring the Upta
31 March 2019 3t March 2018 31 March 2038 year 31 March 2019
Standard assets o ME L) 28,021.14 3112.08 2683 138.92
Sub-standard assets 1451.5% 1,249.75 124,97 77.95 0252
Total 36,193.23 2927089 237.65 104.79 M1LE4

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has identified 5 (31 Mazch 2018: 14) loan accounts with aggrogate batance of TL,140.27
{31 March 2018: 2,652.89) as loss assats, which has been written-off.

W




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{Alt amounts in ¥ Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)}

Additional disclosures purseant to Master Direction - Non Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taldng Company (Reserve Bank} Diirections, 2016

Note 236 Additional disclosures as required by NBFC Master Directions issued by RB1

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Liabilities Amount Amount A E A t
cutstanding overdet outstanding overdue

1. Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive of interest acerued thereon but not paid:
(3} Dabentures

Secured (incleding interest accrued but not due) 8,782.50 - 9.253.55 -
Unsecured

{other than falting within the meaning of public deposits) - - - -
(b} Deferred Credits - - - -
{<) Term Loans (including interest accrued but not due) 13,994.09 - 15,300.63 -
{d) Intec~<orporate loans and barrowing - - - -
(¢) Commercial Paper - . - -

{f) Others - Short-term borrowings (incleding interest acaued but not due - - 50120 -
Assets 31 Maxch 2019 31 March 2018

2 Break up of loans-and advances including bills receivables Jother than those included in {4} below]:

a) Secared, gross 18,399.88 13.828.83
b} Unsécured, gross 17,802.35 15.442.06

3. Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities:
(i} Lease assets including lease rentats under sundry deblors:
{a) finanice lease -

(b} operating lease - -
{ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

(a) assets on hire - -
(b} repossessed assrt - -

(iii) Other Joans counting towards AFC activities
{a) loans where assets have been repossessed - -
(&) loans other than (a) above - -

4. Breakop of investments
Current Investmends :

1. Quoted

(i) Shates :

(a) Equity - -
(b} Preference - -
{it} Debentures and Bonds - -
{izi} Units of muhual funds - -
{iv) Government Securities - -
{v) Others

2. Unqueted

(i) Shares :

() Equity - -
{b) Preference - N
(ii} Debenhires and Bonds - -
(iif)Units of mutual funds - -
{iv) Government Securities - -
fv) Others - investment in PTCs 1,716.55 489.60

N\




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summarty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated}

Assels

Long Term investrnents :
1. Quoted

(i) Shares :

(a) Equity

{b) Prefetence

{ii} Debentures and Bends
{iii) Units of mutual funds
{iv) Government Securities
{v) Others

2.Unquoted

(i) Shares:

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

{iii) Units of mutual funds

{iv) Government Securities

{v} Others - investmient in PTCs

5. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (%): { Net of Provision}
For 31 March 2018
Category Secured

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Vasecored

Total

1. Retated parties

{a) Subsidiaries -
(b} Companies in the same group -
{c} other refated parties -
2. Other than related parties 13,727.15

27465

15432.03

27465

28,759.18

13,72735

15,306,658

29,033.83

For 31 March 2019
Category Secured

Unsecured

Total

1. Related parties

(2} Subsidiaries -
(b) Companies in the same group -
{c) other related parties -
Z, Other than related parties 18,238.11

448

17.608.7%

448

35,846.90

18,238.11

17,613.27

3585138

6. Investor group-wise classification of all investments {currents and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquotedy

Market valae / Breakup or fair
Category value ox NAV
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Book value {net of provisions)

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

1. Related parties - -
2. Other than related parties 1,718.55 2,410,38

L709.68

2400.74

Totaf L71655 2.410.38

1,7(19.68

Z2,400.7¢




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Sarmary of significant acconnting policies and other explanatory information
{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stafed)

7. Other information

{i} Gross non-performing assets
{2} Relaled partics

{b) Gther than refated parties
{ii) Net non-pedforming assets
(a) Related parties

(b} Other than related partics

Note 237 Additional disclosures pursuant to the other RBI guidelines and notifications:

1. Capital to risk asscts ratio {'fCRARY

) CRAR(%)

i) CRAR - Tier [ Capitat {%)

i) CRAR — Tier Il Capital (%)

iv) Amount of subocrdinated debt raised a5 Tier - 11 capital
v} Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier - i capital

2 Investments

A. Vatve of investments
Gross value of investmenis:
a} o India

b} Quiside India

Provisions for depreciation:
a) InIndia
b Ouside india

Net value of investments
a} In India
b} Cuiside Indja

B. Mav t of previsians held towards depreciation an investments

Opening Balance

Add: Provisions made doring Lhe year

Less: Write-back of excess provisions duting the year
Clasing Balance

3. Derivatives
The Company dees nol have any derivatives exposure in the curpent and previous year.

4. Disclosures relating to Securitisation
The Company has not done any securitization during the carrent and previcus year.

NN

31 March 2019 31 Maxrch 2618
1.461.599 L249.75
1,259.07 1,124.77

31 March 2819 31 March 2018

4207% 27.78%
41.68% 27.38%
D39% 0.40%
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
3,716.55 241038
6.87 .64
1,70%.68 240074
S04 -
- 9.64
@77) -
6.57 9.61




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accoanting policies and other explanatery informaticn
{AlL amounts in ¥ Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

5. Exposures
A. The Company does not have any direct exposure to real estate sector in the current and previous year. Details of exposuze to capital
market are as follows:

31 March 2019 51 March 2018

i direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debenhires and units of equity-criented
smutual funds the eotpus of which is not exclusively invested in carporate debt; - -
ii. advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or an clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares (including 1POs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debenfures and uoaits of

equity-oriented mutual funds; - -
iii, advances for any other purposes where shares or convestible bonds or convertible debentures or units of _
equily orienked mutual Funds are taken a5 primary security; 2,634.68 4,031.53

fv. advances for any otlier purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentuses or units of equity oriented mutual funds fe. where the primary security
other than shates / convertibte bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds
does not fully cover the advanees; - -
v. secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees. issued on behalf of stockbrokers and
market makers; - -
+i. loans sanctiohed to corporates against the sccurity of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or
on-clean basis for meeling promoter's contribution ta the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
TESOUICeS; - -

vii. bridge Ipans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; - -
viii. all exposures to Venture Capital Punds. (both registered-and unregistered) - -
Total exposure te capital market 2,631.68 4,031.53

B. Details of firancing of parent compiny preducts
The Company has not financed any parent company product,

C. Details of Single Borrower Limit {SBLYGroup Borrower Limit {CBL} exceeded by the NBFC

The exposure to a single bamower and group of borrower does not exceed the limit stipulated wnder the concentration of credit norms
applicable to the Company.

D, Unsecured advances

The details of unsecured advances are provided in Note 2.14 and 2,18 fo the financial stafements. Further, the Company has not given any
loan against intangible assels.

6. Miscellaneous
A. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company has not cbiained any registration from other financiat secior regulators.

B. Disclosure of penalties imposed by RB{ and other regulators
No penalties have been imposed by RBI or other Bnancial sector regulators during the current and previous year.

. Related Party Transactions
Details of all material related party transactions are disclosed in Note 2.38.

D. Ratings assigned by aedit rating agencies and migration of ratings doring the year
Credit Analysis & Research Limited {CARE) has assigned a rating of 'BEB- Megative’ o the facilities in the current year. Subsequent to the
year end, CARE has revised the rating to 'BBS - Stable’.

E. Revenue recognition
The Company has nal postponed recognition of revenue pending resolution of significant uncertaintics.
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Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(AN amounts in 2 Lakhs, except for share data or as atherwise stated)

7. Additional Disclosures
A. Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown ander the head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss

Provisions for depreciation on investment
Pravision iowards sub-standard assets
Provision made towards income tax
Provisian for gratuity

Provision for standard assets

B. Draw down from reserves
The Company has not made any drawdown. of reserves during the year,

. Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

i. Concentration of Advances
Total advances 1g twenty largest botrowers
Parcentage of advances to bwenty largest borroswers ta total advances

ii. Conceniration of Exposures
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers fcustomers
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest bocrowers / customers to total exposure

iif, Concentration of NPAs
Tota} exposure lo top four NPA accounts

iti. Sectar wise NPAs

Percenlage of NPAs to lotal advances in that sector
Agriculture & allied activities

MSME

Corporate borrowers

Services

Unsecured pezsonal loans

Aauto loans

Other personat feans

. Moverment of NFAs

{I} Met NPAs to net advances (%)

(i) Movemenl of NPAs {Grass)
a) Opening balance

b} Additions during, the year

¢) Reductions during the year
d} Closing balance

fIIE) Movement of Met NIAs

a) Opening balance

b} Additions dazing the year

¢) Reductions during the year
d) Closing balance

{TV) Movement of provisions for NPAs {excluding provisions on standard asseis}
a) Opening balance

b} Provision made during the year

¢} Reductions during tha year

&) Clesing balance

W

31 March 2013 31 March 2618
@77) 9.6

77.95 70.14

56,08 -

- 12.40

26.34 2542

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
10,208.86 12,030.82
28.46% 4091%
10,298.86 12.030.82
2846% 4091%

700.16 122975

31 Miarch 2019 51 March 2018
404% 47r%

31 March 2019 51 March 2018
351% 3.57%

124975 528.41
1,392:50 1,249.75
{1,180.226) (528.41)
1,461.59 1,24975
1,124.77 47358
1,19653 112477
{1,062.23) {473.58)
1,259.07 112477
12487 54.83

19587 124.97
(118.02) {54.83)

202.52 124,97
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L. Overseas Assets {for those with Joint Ventures and Sabsidiaries abroad)
The Company did not have any overseas assets during the current and previous vear.

F. Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored (which aze reguired to be consolidated as per accounting norms)
The Company did not sponsor any SPVs during the current and previous year.

8. Disclosure of customer complaints

33 March 2019 31 March 2018

a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the yeaz - -
&) No. of complaints received during the year - -
c} No. of comnplaings redressed during the year - -
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - -
9. Asget liability management
31 March 2019

Assets Liahilities
Maturity within Investments Loans portfolic Bomowings
Uplo one month 189.51 4,79L.05 B61.87
COver 1 month and upto 2 months 259.75 3,86997 765,60
Over 2 months and upto 3 months 458.83 321006 529.38
Over 3 months and upio 6 months 513.76 593926 3,238.36
Chver 6 months and upto 1 year 264.70 9,067 36 331286
Over 1 year and upto 3 years - 9,311.09 13,608.29
Over 3 years and upto 5 years - 443 11277
Above 5 years - - -
Total 1,716.55 36,193.23 212,429.13

31 March 20138

Assets Liabilities
Maturity within Investments Loans partfolio  Borrowings
Upto one month - 2,060.50 75239
Over 1 month and upto 2 months - 2.5%%.24 999.67
Cwver 2 months and upto 3 months 8196 2,6659.79 793.28
Over 3 months and upto 6 months - §,17645 3,068.08
Chrer 6 months and upto 1 year 40764 771618 3,68548
‘Over 1 year and upto 3 years 152078 602845 1022893
Over 3 yoars and upte 5 years - 2308 5133.75
Above b years - - -
Tetal 241038 29,270.89 24,661.58
Notes:

1. The above borrowings excludes interest accrued but not due.

2. The advances comprise of loan portfclio and does not include interest accrued.

3. The above information has been considered as per the Asset Liabikity Management (ALM) report compiled by the management and
reviewed by the ALM commiitee.

10 Disclosure of restructured accounts

The Company has not restrectuzed any loans in the current as well as previous financial year. Accordingly, the disclosures perlaining 1o
restructured accounts are not presented.

W
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{All amounts in T Lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Nute 238 Related party disclosures

a} List of related parties:
Individuats / Companies having significant influence

Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited ("AVMS")

Archan Financial Services Limited {* Arohan"}
Intetlecap Advisory Services Private Limited {"Intellecap™}
TribeTech Private Limited ("Tribe™}

Intellectuat Capital Advisory Services Private Limited ("Intellectual™)

Key Management Personnel
Mr. Akbar Khan, Executive Divector and CEQ (till 15 June 2018)

Mr. Nitin Prakash Agarwal, Deputy CEO and CFO (till 24 May 2018)

Nature of relaHonship

Entity which has significant influence on the Company

Assaciate of AVMS
Subsidiary of AVMS
Subsidiary of AVMS

Entity which has significant influence on the Campany

Mr. John Arunkumar Diaz, Managing Director (from 24 April 2018 till 4 December 2018}
Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director {from 22 Jan 2019, Executive Director/ CEQ from 16 Oct 2018 to 21 Jan 2619))

Ms. Kirar Agarwal Todi, CFO {from 2 Jan 2019)

b} The follotwing table represents transactions between the Company and its related parties:

Mature of Transactien Transactions with 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Retmbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company Intellectual - 0.39
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company Intellecap 6.34 8.06
Loans given Archan - 90.00
Interest income Archan 13.69 7692
Processing fees income Archan - 090
Assignment of loans, including acerued interest Archan - 1205
Sale of fixed assets Arohan - 41.65
Reimbutsement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company TribeTech 015 -
Seurcing and servicing fees TrbeTech 15716 -
Syndication fees TribeTech 073 -
Cash collateral received TribeTech 75.74 -
Cash collateral adjusted TribeTech 3333 -
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company AVME 1.27 0.07
issue of equity shares AVMS 4,999.99 -
lssue of preference shares AVMS 999.99 -
Loan taken AVMS 5,500.00 -
Interest paid AVMS 176.60

Remuneration Akbar Khan 1500 72.00
Issue of equity shares Akbar Khan - 1499
Professional fees John Arunkumar Diag 3024 -
Remuneration Nitin Prakash Agarwal 9.76 66.00
Issue of equity shares Nitin Prakash Agarwal - 913
Remuneration WNikesh Kumar Sinha 4333 -
Remuneratien Kiran Aparwal Todi 1341 -

The KMP's are covered under the Company‘s gratuity policy and ESOP scheme along with other employees of the Comipany. Proportionate
amount of gratuity and stock compensation expense is not included in the aforementioned disclosures as it cannot be separately ascertained.

<} Balances at the year end:

Balarnces with Nature of balances 31 Maxrch 2019 31 March 2018
Intellecap Other payable 0.64 -
Arohan Loans given 4.50 27575
TribeTech Other payable 6734 -
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Note 3 : Previgus year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged to conform to thase of the current year.

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory Information referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandick & Ca LLF For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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